The development of modern and efficent

5 a wrporate sedor and apital market, based
VlSlo n on sound regulatory prindples, that proude
impetus for high economic growth and foster

socal harmony in the country.

To develop a fair, effident and transparent
requlatory framework , based on intermational

leqal standards and best pradices, for the o i
protedion of investors and mitigation of M lSSlon
sistemic risk aimed at fostering growth of
a robust corporate sector and broad based

aipital market in Pakistan.

To dewelop an efficient and dynamic
requlatory body that fosters principles of
good governance in the corporate sector,
S t ra t e gy ensures proper risk management progediires
in the aipital market and protects inestors
through responsive policy measures and

effective enforcement pradias.
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P Chairman’s Review

The Securities and E xchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) has made tremendous efforts to ensure
that it keeps pace with Government of Pakistan’s economic development programme and indeed to supplement
the same as we recognize that the Commission has a developmental as well as a regulatory role. Consequently;
the Commission has taken great strides in its efforts to ensure that the standards and principles adopted in the
Pakistani capital markets conform to international best practices. With this objective in view; a comprehensive
review is being undertaken of the laws, rules and regulations in all areas within our remit with a view to
ensuring that a transparent, orderly and stable market place is established. Investor protection is a key
objective and SECP is moving towards a regime where onsite and offsite inspections are common place.

Market Review

The Karachi Stock Exchange 100 Shares - Index showed a healthy growth of 34 percent, closing at 9,989.41
on 30 June 2006 compared to 7 450.12 at the end of last year. Market capitalisation of Karachi Stock Exchange
(KSE ) crossed PKR 2.8 trillion (USS 46.69 billion), an increase of 35 percent over last year.

Capital Market Reforms - E nsuring Transparency and Mitigating Risk

To reduce systemic risk at the exchanges, the Commission, during the year, introduced a new risk management
structure based on Value at Risk (VaR ) principles, together with a new valuation methodology, again based on
VaR, for valuing the collateral held by the exchanges. A pre-trade margin verification system was also implemented
in all the markets Position limits at market, member and client levels have been introduced and are in the process
of being implemented. To recognise the true exposure of the market, netting regime has been overhauled and
now netting across markets, across settlements or across clients is not allowed.

In order to ensure that the market is not starved for funding, the Commission has followed a policy of improving
and strengthening the avenues of accessing liquidity besides introducing new leverage products to give the
market a choice. The carry-over trading (badla) system of financing was replaced by a Continuous Funding
Systemn (CFS) which was introduced as an interim measure during late 2005. The Commission revamped the
CFS system this year and strengthened it by introducing position limits, CFS funding can be availed against
ready purchases only, banning inhouse badla, increasing the number of scrips to accommodate inhouse badla
positions and enhancing the CFS limit from Rs. 25 billion to Rs. 70 billion. This had a salutary effect on cost
of financing and average cost of funds has come down to 12-13 percent from earlier 18-20 percent. The
Commission has introduced CFS Mk 11, a new financing product, essentially akin to margin financing, which
would adequately address the biases inherent in the existing CFS and also provide a level playing field to all
market participants. This product is under implementation at the National Clearing Company of Pakistan
Limited.
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To ensure transparency in the market place, the use of client codes was made mandatory and Universal
Client Identification Number (UIN) was introduced and implemented from 1 August 2006. Now UIN and
client codes are checked at a pre-trade level ensuring that all trades can be tracked to the real investor.

Direct Margins by Financial Institutions

To ease the capital and working capital requirements of the brokerage community and to enable them to use
their scarce resources for development of the retail sector, the Commission has promoted a regime where all
local financial institutions will be required to deposit the relevant margins on their trades directly with the stock
exchanges. This will enable small brokerage houses to provide specialized services to financial institutions.

Inspection - Monitoring and Surveillance

The Commission has made a policy decision that monitoring and surveillance of the market will be its top
priority. Inspection and investigation capacity of the stock exchanges and the Commission is, therefore, being
enhanced to enable onsite and offsite inspection to take place on a routine and regular basis, together with the
capacity to undertake full blown investigations whenever the need arises. Where, either on a complaint or based
on offsite reviews, special investigations are necessitated, these will be conducted immediately. A serious fraud
investigation unit is in the process of being set up manned by fully qualified and trained persons to handle serous
fraud.

The Commission has purchased a market surveillance and monitoring system to enable the Commission to
monitor the market on a real time basis. This system together with the UIN capability would ensure that
manipulation, wash sales and front running are eliminated and that the Commission has the wherewithal to react
in a timely manner. Presently, the Commission continues to monitor the market through inhouse developed
utilities. The Commission has also developed a new capital adequacy regime for the broking community which
is currently in discussion phase prior to implementation.

Demutualisation

In order to ensure that the ownership and management of the exchanges are seperated, the Commission has
single mindedly pursued the process of demutualization of the stock exchanges. Amendments were piloted in
the Finance Bill 2006 to enable the process to start pending enactment of a specialised Demutualisation Act.
The Commission has signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with KSE which provides for an eighteen
months timeline to complete the demutualisation process We are confident that demutualisation shall take place
by December 2007.

Corporate Sector Development

Several initiatives have been taken to encourage businessmen to opt for incorporating a company rather than
working as a partnership or sole-proprictomship. The steps include facilitation to form a single-member company,
provide templates of memorandum and articles of association, self selection of business name, providing
guidance by publication of guidelines, holding of promoters conference, reduction in fees and abolition of stamp
duty. These steps resulted in increased incorporations in as much 6186 companies were registered in the year,
which is a 100 percent increase over the previous year. During the year renewed efforts were made to clean up
the CRO data.
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Holding Companies

A lot of developmental work has been done on introducing a Holding Company concept to our corporate
sector. Extensive discussions have been held with all stakeholders and the Central Board of Revenue to ensure
that necessary tax incentives are provided to enable companies to move towards group holding structures.

N BFI Review

The Commission is at an advanced stage of implementation of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005. Four
applications have been received for the grant of registration to act as Pension Fund Managers and licences have
been issued.

Based on the market feedback, necessary changes in the tax treatment of the Voluntary Pension System (VPS)
have been made through an amendment in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Various tax anomalies have been
removed and scope of the VPS has been expanded. The Commission is in the process of finalising several
guidelines for proper implementation of the VPS Rules.

In pursuance of its objective to develop the market and encourage new products, the Commission is preparing
to put in place the Private E quity and Venture Capital Rules developed with the recommendations received
from market participants.

The Real Estate Investment Trust Rules were also finalised by the Commission during the year and are expected
to be promulgated shortly. The development of Real Estate Investment Trusts would enhance the outreach
of consumers, particularly middle-income, interested in acquiring a stake in real estate. Moreover, they would
provide for financing of large projects at the same time providing for diversification and deepening of the
mutual fund industry.

Insurance Sector

Insurance is an important segment of capital markets and the Commission’s capacity in this area is being
strengthened. With the introduction of Takaful, the sector has shown considerable growth and three new life
insurance companies and one general insurance company have started operations or are in the process of
commencing soon. The Commission has revised the paid-up capital requirements for existing and new insurance
companies to ensure that the insurance sector can grow and develop and be able to play an effective and due
role in our capital markets.

Participation in IOSCO

The Commission actively participated in the International Organisation of Securities Commissions (I0SCO).
As Chair of Working Group 3, Pakistan was tasked with providing a Report on “Guidance to Emerging Market
Regulators Regarding Capital Adequacy Requirements for Financial Intermediaries”. The Commission prepared
and submitted the report which has been accepted by the Emerging Markets Committee of 10SCO and is in
the process of being implemented.

Capacity Building of the Commission

The biggest challenge facing the Commission is access to high quality and well trained manpower. The Commission
has revised its payroll and perquisites in consultation with HR Consultants to bring the same in line with the
market. Annual reviews and promotion policies and procedures have been streamlined and bell curve introduced.
Systems have been put in place to ensure that the evaluation process is fair, just and properly conducted.
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To enhance capacity at the Commission, we are in the process of hiring over 200 officers in various grades.
Again the process and procedures have been revamped to ensure that the selection process is transparent to
ensure that the best candidates are selected and sifarish has no role. Continuous training is an avowed goal of
the Commission as we believe that training the existing staff will make a huge difference for the Commission
as well as to the individuals concerned.

With a view to providing an effective service to the regulatees, a full fledged Karachi office has been established
so that the Commission becomes accessible to the regulatees and our capacity to access the regulatees is increased.

E-Services

With a view to providing effective and convenient service to our corporate regulatees and to streamline and
facilitate the procedures for registering a company together with selection of name, submission of various forms
and fees, registration of charges etc., we are in the final stages of instituting an internet based system, which
would facilitate and speed up the process and would dispense with the need to visit the Commission offices.
In future, all returns, filing of all types of forms etc., would be done through the internet. Once implemented,
this process will increase the Comission’s efficiency, reduce turnaround time and provide great convenience to

the regulatees.

We are also in the process of introducing a new Corporate Universal Identity Number for each corporate, which
will replace the old style registration numbers and instead of provincial registration, registration will be on an
all Pakistan basis.

The Continuing Reform Agenda

The key challenges facing the Commission today arise mainly from its expanded mandate over recent years and
the inconsistency in its regulatory authority in different sectors. While in certain areas the Commission has wide,
proactive regulatory powers, in others it found itself restricted and thus forced to be reactive. Over the years,
several amendments have been made in the legislation to cater for the Commission's expanded mandate but
these did not go beyond providing stop-gap interim measures. The regulatory framework, therefore, needs to
be updated so as to effectively address modern-day market issues.

The Commission will continue implementing its reform programme based on international best practices,
conforming closely to IOSCO principles. The areas of focus include market /product development; enhancing
governance of exchanges and risk management; development of a well-capitalised clearing house; improving
the licensing regime for market intermediaries; and strengthening the legal and regulatory framework. The
purpose is to mitigate trading risks and corporate failures.

Development of Laws

The Commission has taken up the task of strengthening the laws, rules and regulations and is committed to
ensuring that these are reviewed and modernized at all times and are brought in line with developments
around the world. The Commission has, therefore, been involved on a number of laws, some of which are
in the process of enactment, while others are on the drawing board and in process of eliciting public opinion.

Drafts of the new Securities Act, the Financial Services Commission Act and the Futures Trading Act have
been developed and have or are being refined in consultation with stakeholders. The Companies Ordinance,
1984 is being redesigned and reformatted in line with the recommendations and policy guidelines provided by
the Company Law Review Commission set up for the purpose.
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During the year, the Commission initiated the process of amending the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 as well as the Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980.
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The Commission

3.1 Organisational Structure

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) was established in pursuance to the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997 (SECP Act). It became operational on 1 January
1999. Its establishment represents an important milestone in development of the regulatory framework for the
corporate sector and the capital market in Pakistan.

Dr. Tariq Hassan, who had been Chairman of the Commission since August 2003,
left the Commission on 11 January 2006. Mr. Razi-ur-Rahman Khan was appointed
as Chairman of the Commission on 12 January 2006. Mr. Khan is a Fellow of Institute
of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales and possesses extensive experience
in finance, banking, corporate sector, mutual fund, brokerage, investment advisory
and equity investments. He also has extensive experience of corporate and capital
market operations during his career spanning thirty-six years in the private sector and
international financial institutions including ANZ Merchant Bank, ANZ Grindlays
Bank, JP Morgan, National Investment Trust Limited and Hub Power Company.

3.2 Management Team

The Commission is a collegiate body with collective responsibility. Orperational and executive authority is vested
in the Chairman who is the Commission's Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). He is assisted by Commissioners in
overseeing the working of various operational units.

In addition to the Chairman, the Commission presently comprises two Commissioners.

Mr. Salman Al Shaikh, who is overseeing the Specialised Companies Division (SCD),
is a senior emerging markets banker having over thirty-two years experience with
various leading banks in the country including Citibank. He was also the Managing
Director of an investment bank and part of the senior
management team that led the turnaround of Habib Bank
Limited.

Mr. Rashid I. Malik oversees the Company Law Division
(CLD) and the Securities Market Division (SMD). A
Chartered Accountant (CA) by profession, Mr. Malik
possesses over thirty years experience in business operation,
management, finance and accounting in Pakistan as well as in UK.

During the year under review, Mr. Shahid Ghaffar, who was Commissioner SMD
since October 2001, left the Commission.

Mr. Etrat Rizvi completed his tenure as Commissioner on 31 July 2005 and left the Commission. Mr. Rizvi was
Commissioner Professional Services and Policy Division.

Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi is an Advisor to the Commission. A lawyer by profession, he has been associated

with the Commission and the erstwhile Corporate Law Authority (CLA) since 1976. He has served as Commissioner
Specialized Companies, Company Law, Enforcement and Monitoring and Support Services Division.
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Dr. Mumtaz A. Hashmi is an Insurance Advisor to the Commission; he holds a PhD from England. Before
joining the Commission, Dr. Hashmi had managed the Pakistan operations of Royal and Sunalliance, a leading
UK composite insurer group, for almost twenty-five yvears. Dr. Hashmi has served the insurance industry with
his technical expertise and has been an important contributor to insurance education and training,

Mr. Muhammad Hayat Jasra, who is presently serving as Secretary to the Commission, has been associated with
the Commission and the former CLA for over thirty years.

The following E xecutive Directors are presently heading the Divisions/Departments:

= Mr. Shafaat Ahmad - Insurance Division

* M. Javed K. Siddiqui - Finance and Administration Department

s Ms. Amber Darr - Legal Department

*  Mr. Nazir Ahmed Shaheen - Registration Department

= Mr. Akif Saeed - Specialized Companies Division

*  Mr. Arshad Javed Minhas - Information Systems and Technology Department
e Mr. Mansur Ahsan - Human Resource and Training Department

= Mr. Zafar Abdullah - Securities Market Division

3.3 Divisions

As of 30 June 2006, the Commission's main operations were being performed by the following Divisions:

*  Company Law Division;

*  Securities Market Division;

*  Specialized Companies Division;

*  [nsurance Division;

= Professional Services and Policy Division;

*  Support Services Division; and

*  Chairman's Secretariat and Legal Department assist the Chairman and Commissioners in the discharge
of their duties.

Subsequent to the close of the year under review, a re-organization of the Divisions was undertaken pursuant
to which, the Professional Services and Policy Division was merged with various Divisions of the Commission
so that each Division now has a dedicated Policy Wing within it.

3.4 Securities and Exchange Policy Board

While ensuring full autonomy of the Commission, the SECP Act provides that the Federal Government shall
appoint the Securities and Exchange Policy Board (Policy Board) consisting of nine members, of which five
shall be from the public sector who will be ex-officio members and four from the private sector.
During the year under review; Dr. Tariq Hassan was the Chairman of the Commission and the Policy Board
up till 11 January 2006. T hereafter Mr. Razi-ur-Rahman Khan became Chairman of the Policy Board.

The Policy Board provides guidance to the Commission in matters relating to its functions and policy. The
Policy Board formulates SECP policies in consultation with the Commission. As part of its functions, the Policy
Board advises the Government on issues pertaining to the securities industry and regulation of the corporate
sector when so asked by the Government. It also provides opinion on policy matters referred to it by the
Government or the Commission.
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As of 30 June 2006, the Policy Board consisted of:

E x-officio Members

Mr. Tanwir Ali Agha
and E: o . Secretary
Commission of Pa Finance Division

(Chairman of the Policy Board)

4

Mr. Justice (R)

Mansoor Ahmed Mr, Tawfig A. Hussain
Secretary Deptd)éggwﬂmr

Justice, Human Rig
amentary Affairs

Private Members

Dr. Mohammad

Zubair Khan Mr. Zubyr 1. Soomro hahida Jaffrey
Managing Director ing Director e Chancellor

Financial Techniques ilgroup Sardar Bahadur Khan

Internationale Women University
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3.4.1 Policy Board Meetings

During the year under review, three meetings of the Policy Board were held.

The main focus of the two Policy Board meetings of 2005 was on the volatile stock market situation of March
2005. The report of the Task Force set up to review the situation was presented to the Policy Board, highlighting
further action required to be taken by the Commission.

The Policy Board took up various operational matters during the year as per its mandate. Major reviews
considered or decisions taken by the Policy Board are given as under:

= approval of Sixth Annual Report of the Commission along with a copy of its Annual Accounts for
the year 2004-05 for submission to the Federal Government;

= approval of the registration fee, renewal fee, and rate of penalty under the Clearing House (Registration
and Regulation) Rules, 2005;

= consideration of report on securities market situation prevailing in March 2005; review of actions
taken by the Commission on the recommendations of the March 2005 Task Force;

= approval of Rs. 10 million as supplementary budget of the Commission for contribution to the
President’s Relief Fund for earthquake;

= approval of the Commission's new logo;

= approval of the Commission's budget for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2006-07; and

= approval of the Commission's plans to establish a Southern Region Office in Karachi to improve
operational efficiency and attract suitably qualified persons to the Commission.

Policy Board meeting in progress under chairmanship of Mr, Razi-ur-Rahman Khan
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Auditors' Report to the Federal Government of Pakistan

We have aundited the accompanying balance sheet of the Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("the
Commission™) as at 30 June 2006, and the related income and expenditure account and statements of cash flows
and changes in funds for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Commission's
management. Gur responsibility is to ¢xpress an opinion on these financial statements based on cur audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sipnificant
estimates made by the management, as well as, evaluating the overall financial statement presentaton. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Commission as

of 30 June 2006 and of the results of its operations and cash flows and changes in funds for the year then ended
in accordance with the policies given in note 3.

{15 OCTOBER 2006 EKPFMG TASEER HALH & CO.
ISLAMABADY CHARTERED ACCOLINTAINTS

1 securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan




o
=
(=]
o

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2006 s
o
o
(a5
2006 2005 LLd
Nair {Rupees *000) o
Restared
Property, plant and equipmen: 4 107,511 0,673 =
Long tetrn frveatiments - held to matutity 5 291,350 298,803 <
=
Long term loans to employees ] 2,001 2937 =
=
Current agzets >,
Advances, deposits, prepayments and ather receivables 7 102,326 52,739
Shatt torm imvestments - held to mamtity E3 1,555,473 763,111
Cazh and bank belanees 4 163,346 153743
1,821,145 969,093
Current liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities 10 (72,147 {37,863)
Net cuttent assets 1,748,998 $11,240
Deferred Hability for employees’ retirement benefit ) {24,943) {16,091}
Net ansets 2,124,977 1,287,552
Represented by
Funds iz 2124977 1,287 52
Conangencies & commitments iz

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial staternents.
These financial statements were approved by the Commission in its meeting held on 05 Cctober 2006.

RAZI-UBR-RAHMAN KHAN RASHID I, MALIK
CHAIRMAN COMMISSIONER
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Income and Expenditure Account

For the year ended 30 June 2006
Netz

Income

Tees and other tecoverics i+

Other income 15
Expenditnre

Salaties, allownnces and other benefits 15

Operatng expenses 17

Depreciation

Amordzaton on Pakistn Investment Bonds

Banlk charges

Surplua of income over expenditure for the year
Surplus of income over expenditure brought forward
Accumulated surphas

Transferted to assets acquisition reserve
Transferred to general reserve

Surplus of income tover expenditure carried forward

The anncxed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements

RAZI-UR-RATIMAIN EFIAN
CHATRMAN

8 sscurities and Exchange Commissicn of Pakistan

2006 2005
(Rupees "000)
Restated

1,204,066 901,810
130,760 48,559
1,334,826 950,369
331,977 239,269
136,291 91,358
21,493 26,240
7453 7482
187 761
497,401 365,110
837,425 585,259
177176 91,917
1,014,601 677,176
(450,000) (500,000)

(400,000 -
214,601 177,176

RASHID I MALIK
COMMISSIONER




Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Cash flows from operatdng actvitdes
Surplus of income over expenditure for the year

Adjustments for:
- Deprediation for the year
- Amortization of premivm on Paldstan Investment Bonds
- Provision for pension
- Prowision for gratuity
- Provision for Jeave encashment
- [nterest income

- Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

Opectating income before working capital changes

Inctease in loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other recetvables
Increasc in accrued and othet labilides

Conrtibuticn to pension fund

Conributicn to gramity fund

Leaves encashed

Contributicn received on account of pension, gratuity and leave encashment
Centributicn on sccount of divil servant paid to Governmetit of Pakistan
Nt cash genictated from operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of pioperty, plant and equiprment
Purchase of Pakistan Investment Bonds

Shost term itrvestrits

Interest received on investments and bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activitics
Net Inhereasef (decteasc) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beglnning of the year
Cash and ¢avh equivalents at end of the year

The anneved aotes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

RAZ]-UR-RAITMAN EHAN
CHAIRMAN

2006

837,425

21,493

7,453
20,342
11,965
11,114

{125,812)

2,857)

(56,282)
751,143

(17,119
8,531
772,955

{(1,200)

{5,700)

{2,26%)

54
Ta3, 752

(58,554)
3,400

(792,362)

93,787

{754,12%)

5,603
153,743

163,346

2005
{Rupcces "0

585 259

26240
7462
200230
6,791
1,500

(44.252)

(2,980
14,571
600,230

(12,788)
5,003
592,445
(39,774)
{13,502)
(1,028
960
(333)
538,768

(23,820
2,580
99,671
(763,111)
43,864

(839,758)
{300,990)

454,733
153,743

RASHID I. MALIK
COMMISSIONER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1 Legal Status and Operations

Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("the Commission™) was established as a body corporate under
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997 ("the Act”) for the beneficial regulation of capital
markets, superntendence and contral of corporate entities and for matters connected therewith and incidental
thereto,

2 Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have heen prepared under the historic cost convention. The accounting policies adoptzd
in the preparation of these financial statements, as stated in the note 3, significandy comply with the applicable
International Accounting Standards. However, the Commission is not required to comply with the requirements
of the International Accountdng Standards.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

3.1  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciadon and impairment losses, if any except
for leasehold land which is stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method to write off the cost
of each asset over its estimated useful life without taking into account any residual value. Rates of depreciation
are specified in Note 4 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the
date af acquisition or the date the asset Is available for use and on disposals upto the date of disposal.

Previously, full year's depreciation was belng charged in the year of additions and no depreciation was charged in
the year the assets were disposed off. This change in estimate has been made prospectively as per the requirement
of International Accounting Standard- 16 "Property, plant and equipment”. This chanpe has resulted in decreasing
the depreciaton expense for the year by Rs. 8.9 million with the corresponding increase in written down value of
property, plant and equipment.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred, Major renewals and improvements

are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant an
equipment are included in the income currently.

3.2 Receivables

These are stated at cost less an allowance for any uncollectible recelvables.

3.3 Payables

These are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future.
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34  Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Commission maintains an approved defined Contributoty Provident Fund, Commissionets and tegular employees
ate entitled to either provident fund or gratuity, while contractual employees are entitled for gratuity. The Commission's
conttibution to defined Conttibutory Provident Fund is charged te income and expenditure account for the year.

Defined bengfit plans

The Commission maintains approved funded defined pension plan and approved funded defined gratuity fund.
Commissicnets and tegulat employees are entitled for pensicn. Antusl conttibutions are made to pension and
gratuity fund on actuatial tecommendations using "Projected Unit Credit Method”, The most recent valuation was
conducted on June 30, 2006,

The Commission's policy with regard to actuarial gains / losses is to follow minimum recommended approach
under IAS 19; Employee benefits, Transitional liability is being recognized on a straight line hasis over a peried of
five yeats,

Significant assumptions used for actutial valuation wete as follows:

Discount rate 10% p.a,

Expected rate of return on plan asset 10% p.a,

Expected rate of increase in salary 10% p.a,
Compensated absences

The Commission recognizes provision for compensated absences payable to employees at the time of retirement/
termination of service, The provision is determined on the basis of last drawn basic salary and accumulated leaves
at teporting date,

3.5  Revenne recognhition

Fees and other recoveties are recognized on accrual basis other than fees under Insurance Otdinance, 2000 and
fee from Non Banking Finance Companies which are recognized on receipt basis.

Penalties are recognized on receipt basis,

Income on held to maturity investments and hank deposits is recognised on time proportion basis.

3.6  Administered projects

The Cotnnission is the executing /implementing agency under vatious donot assisted projects. Transactions and
balances relating to these projects are repotted under Administered Projects. The sutnmaty Information is presented

in the notes to these financial staternents. Fixed assets acquited in these projects and transferable to the Commission
are recognized and are subject to the policies adopted by the Commission for such irems.

2} 3Securities and Exchange Commissicn of Pakistan




3.7 Impairment

The carrying amount of the Commission's assets are reviewed at each halance sheet date to determine whether
thete is any indication of itnpaitment loss, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is
estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the income and expenditure account,

38 Investments

Investinents with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, that the Commmission has the positive intent
and ahility to held to maturity are classified as held to maturity investments and are carried at amortized cost, less
impaitment losses, Premium paid on purchase of investments is amortized using effective interest method.

Previously, premium on Pakistan Investment Bonds was belng amortized on a straight line basis over the remaining
pericd of the investment. This change in policy has been made to comply with the requirements of International
Accounting Standard - 39 "Financial Instruments - Recogniticn and Measurement, Comparative figures of 2005
have been restated with the full amount of effect of this change, Opening balance of accumulated surplus for the
yeat 2005 has not been restated as the effect was not considered taterial, Had the policy not been changed, surplus
for the year 2006 and the long term investments would have been lower by Rs. 1.18 millicn and Rs, 1,84 millien
respeciively,

39 Pravisions

Provisions ate recognized when the Commission has a present legal or constructive chligation as a result of past
events, it Is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be fequired to settle the
ohligation and a reliahle estimate of the amount can be made,

310 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial Liabilities are recognized when the Commission becomes a party to conttactual
provisions of the instrument, These are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given
and recefved respectively, These financial assets and lishilities are subsequently measuted at fait value, The Commission

derecognizes financial assets and liahilities when it ceases to be a party to such contractual provisions of the
Instrumetits,

311 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and bank balances which
ate cartied in the balance sheet at cost,
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

5. Long term investmenta - held to maturity

These represent investtnent in ten wears Pakistan Investment Bonds (FIBs) having face valne of Bs 235 million, Profit is receivable semi-
annually at the rates ranging berween #2% o 12% per annum, Fair value of these PIBs at the vear end was Rs. 246,036 million
{20405: Rs. 256.169 million). Unamortized premium oo these invetmenits as at 30 June 2006 was Rs. 56.35 millien (2005: Rs. 3.8 million).
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. Laong term lpana to employees-seruced, considered good =T
=
These represent long termn loans given to repular emplovees and commissioners for vehicle purchase and honse repair ete. These are seeured
againgt redrement benefits and respective asact. These loans carry mark-up at bank rarc. Prncipal is recoverable on 4 monchly basis and mark- =
upr afiet completz recovery of principal. —=
=T,
20606 2005
(Rupees "000)
L Advances, depoaits, prepayments and other recefrables
Current portion of long erm loans te employess-considered good 6,294 4,626
Acdvances 15,922 2,727
Dcpasits 2432 2,383
Propayments 2084 2208
Advance tax 3,070 3,07¢
Fer tercivable - congideted goed 10,510 12,667
Reccivable ageingt projects-cotsidered good 1,460 3,143
Marle up receivable on Pakistan Invesunent Bonds 16,199 13472
Mark vp reccivable on ghort teem investment 34,180 3,962
Matl up teccivable oh Ioans to emplayees 268 1,181
Crthet recsivables - considered good 907 758
102,326 52,235

8. Shori term investmenis - held to maturity

These represent investment in Treasury Bills and fxed deposits which are placed with different banks for the pesiod of one year and three
months respectively. Profit is reccivable on manarity at the mies manging berween B.74% to 10.55% per anmim.

20056 2005
Nz (Rupees "000)
9 Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand - imprest 1,226 205
Cash at bank on:
- CUTIENt ACE0unt (13,125) 61,373
- deposit accounts 175,246 91465
162,120 152,838
163,46 153,743
1 Accrued and other liabilities
Averued expenses 12,7112 10,035
Areounts payable M7 3,834
Payable to staff retirernent funde 10 20272 3919
Unenrned incame 10.2 25,866 16,904
Clsirs payahls under Court arders 1,11 1,171
Orther Habilities 2T 2,000
72,147 37 Ba3
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Payable to staff retieeroent fonds

Pension fund
Gratuity find

Pensgion fund
R iliztion of i racogsived dn Balance chawt i as folfowe

Net present value of defined benefit abigation
Fair walus of plan assets

Deficit it the futid

MNet untecegnised acturial losses

Net tiability recogmised in the balance sheet

Ddoversent i uer Sabifizy recoppized

Opening net Hability

Expense for the pear

Payments during the ysar

Contripution received an acoount of pension

Contribution on account of dvil servant paid to Goveroenent of Paldstan
Closing net lighilioy

Charge for 1he year

Current service cost

Lnterest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Loterest on teansferrable amount

Awcturial Inss recognized

Gratdty fund
Revonciliation gf tiv amswnt recomyiced i balance iheet i3 as folows:

Present value of defined benefit ohigation
Fair value of plan assets

Deeficit in the fund

Net untecopnised acturial losses
‘Transitional lishility not yet recognised

Net liahility tecogieed in the balance sheet

Dovessent 2 uer Labifizy recopwized

Opening et lability

Hapense for the year

Contribution received an acconnt of gramity
Payments during the year

Clasing nce liabilicy

Charge far the year

Cnrrent service cost

Interest cost

BEaperted returm on plan assets
Actmarial lngses reeopnized
Recognized transitional aseet

Nt (Rupees '000)

e 21,972
1.2 7,300
28,272

109,614
(60,795)
4818
(26,87)

2884
20,342

,200)

o)
2‘12973

16,962
15,253
.569)
(6,728)
824

20,342

1,035
11,965

{5,700)

10,926
3,266
(2,584)
258
9

11,565

10.Z ‘This represents smnount recetved in advance from companies tder Compandes Ordinance, 1984,

1L

&

2,884
1,035
2919

85244
{59.694)
25,550
(22,668)

2612
20,230
{39,774y
149
(338
2,864

14413
8973
1.268)
(.882)
1,994
20,230

32,661
(25,843)
6,818
(5,580
{19%)
1,035

205
6,791
541

{13,502
1,035

6176
1,457
{341)

99
6,791

‘This repwresents the Commission's liability towards employees’ eompensated absenees which is puyable at the fime of retivement of eligible

ernplovees,
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2006

Funda
Gtant provided by the Government of Pakistan 50,000
HAsacts acquited from erstwhile Corporate Taw Authotor 2,538
Ahsacta acquited from reappropriation of funds

by the Government of Paldstan 2,433
Agacts fecetved under techaical assistance from Aglan Devclopment Bank 55,405
Gunernl reserve 300,900
AsIct Acqrisidon reserve 1,00, HH
Burplus of income over expendinasc 214,601

2124,977

Contingencies & commitments

(Rupees '000)

2,433
55,405
200,000
600,000
177,176
1,287,552

The Commisssion has been made party io the cases filed by Muhammad Haif Moosa » Karachi Stock Bxchaoge and others and Shahmir
Sohangi v Mr, Salim Chamdia and others under which damages aggregating to Re301.4 million have been claimed, The Commissgion i
hapeful that there will be no Gnancial impact of these cases as there is no possibility of decision of these eases against the Commission,

The Commissiom has entered into 4 contract of Rs. 36 million for renowation of its office premises,

Feen and other recoveries

Fess under Companiss Ordinance, 1984

Fees under Sexuritics and Huehange Ordinanee, 1969
Fees under Modaraba Ordinanee, 1980

Fest under Ingmance Crdinance, 2000

Fees on transactions cxcouted at stock cxchanges
Brokets' regisicration focs

Fer from Non Banking Finance Companics

Tiee from credit tating agencics

Other income:

Income on Pakistan Irvestment Bonds
Income on short term investments
Interese on loans to employecs
Cain on salc of property, plant and cquiprocot
Other ineome

Salaries, alloemnces and other benefita

Basic salary

House reot allowance

Medical allowance

Comveyance allowance

Ualitics

Oiher allwance

Prowsion for pension
Provident fund contdbudon
Provision for gramity
Provision for lesve encashivent
Frovision for rest and recreational allowanee

2006

{(Rupees '000)

658,684
5,1-:74
42,842
318,657
3,165

175,634
mw

1,204,046

2006

(Rupees '0)

4,084
25,300
95,421

507
2,837
2111
130,760

140,138
76,603
12,798
10,667
13,493
15,436
20,342

3,588

11,365
11,114
11,853

351917

2005

560,586
546
14,343
44,654
270,063
2,595
19,3
10
901,810

2005

3,120
17,590
22,697

2,980
1,287
48,559

95,341
52,552
9,079
8,241
8,501
26,770
20,230
2,698
6,791
1,500
7566
230,269
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2006 2005
— 17 Opetating expenses (Rupees "000)
o Repairs and maintenance 5 4% 4,102
Traveling and eotveyance 24,957 9,058
= Telephone, postage and courier 15,124 10,804
o Usilities 5270 5007
L Rent and rates 37,768 39,770
Printing and stationery 7,531 5323
o Legal and professional charges 5,967 3777
Bee and subscription 1432 1,584
-1 fiuman resource development 1,807 3,387
< Ingatance L1k 724
Adverdsement 5,364 612
= Emztiainment 1,011, 380
= Audit fec 150 150
Donations for carth quake relicf 16,000 -
= Others 16,998 6,680
w 136,291 91,358

2

Financial inetromenns and related disclomres
181  Interest rate Hak sxpamoe

The Crmmission’s copomie to interst e vtk and effective mtcs ob it fnandal assets and lisbilides am summarired as follows: -

Int=test beathng
N NS Duc with in ohe year Dre after noe yeat Non £
2006 2005 2004 2008 2006 2005
(Ruapees '000)
Floancial Asaets
Lotig tetm jirmestners - - 29L.350 208,803 - -
Long term loans to employees 6,204 4,626 2,001 2937 - -
Advances and other teceivables - . 2 R 93,948 45,405
Ehett terim itreestmsne ‘1,555,473 Ta3ill - - - -
Cash and bank balances 175,245 01,455 - - {11,900% 62278
Teortal 1,737,H3 B52.202 293,351 301,740 B2,048 107,583
Fitaticial Liabflites
Accrued and other Eabilitics - - - - 72,147 3T AR63
Total = = - - 72,147 37,863
Exoeas of fimanrial agseta cver Ananclal
liahbilities 1,737,013 B5D.202 293,351 301,740 9,041 60820

18.2 Creditrlak
The Gommission believes that it is not exposed w mujor concentrtion of eredit risk,
18.3 Formign cxchangr risk managemen:

Forcign cunteacy tisk atises mainly whete receivables and payables exist dur to transaction with foreigh undertakings, The Commission believes thae it s not
onatednlly exposed o Povelpn exchangs risk,
18.4  Fair value of financial asscs

The watrying amuount of all finemciel instruments reflected in the Anancial saterments approximate their faie value except for long-term irvestments as stated
in note 3,
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19.2

Administered poojects
Banking Sector Technical Assistance Froject - Anti Mooey Laundering

‘The Wodd Bank approved techoical assistznee for hanking sector reforms (TABS) to State Bank of Pakistan SBP) under Deyelopment Credit Apreement.
EBP in the exconting agency for the ssid program and one of the compabents of program, Antd Money Laondeting,/Financial Fraud, has boen assighed to the
Comenission. An amount of US§ 350,000 has baen allovated for this component and out of this, 2 sum of Rs, 4,094,447 fequivalent US3 67,398) has been
cxpended vpte 30 Tune 20806, An amouat of Ba2,765,73 /- §s receivable from World Bank on account of short recovery of fonds. The project will be
campleted by the end of Jaouary 2007,

Capacity Bullding for Capdtal Merlost Dieveloprment and Conpodate Gorret s

Asian Develepment Bank ("TATHB™) has provided a technical assistance under which ADE has to provide USE 655,000 and Government of Pakistan has to
previde B 1.4 million for Capacity Building for Capital Marlket Development and Corporate Governanee, Out of this, & sam of Rs. 5809211 {equivalent
TS84 95,636/-) has been expended upm 30 fons 2006, An amount of Red,694,141/- is receiveble from ADE on account of shott teeomery of funds, The
pruject will be completed by the end of June 2007,

143 Capacity Byilding of the Commiggion
The Wotld Bank apptoved a grant of Re 27126954 (U5 § 454 0I0) to the Commirsion uodet Inetitationa]l Development Fund, The Commission wall
conttibute TS § 25000 in cath and provide support, mminly in terms of office spacs, tesearch suppott, key personnel and other logistie suppott to the
project. The objectves of this grant are to strengthen the Commission's abilities to build 4 facilivative and cohesive legal franvework and develop independant
and high quality professional pervice providers, A qum of Rs, 605,528/ (rquivalent TS5 10,033/-) hag heen expended upts 30 June 20§, The projert wil be
cotnpleted by the eod of Aptil 2008,

Hl. Related pratty traneactiohs
The Commission vpetates in m economic regime cutrently dominaced by entitics ditectly of indirectly coneolled by the Guvemment of Pakittan ("State-
controlled entities™) through s govertiment anthorides, agencies, affiiates and other organisations. Transactions with these state-controlled entities are not
wery significant and henes impracticable to quantify for disdesure in these financial statements,

2 Grheral
Pignirs have been tounded off 1o the nearest thousand of rupee

BRAZI-UR-RAHMAN KHAN RASHID I, MALIK

CHATRMAN COMMISSIONER
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Chairman's Secretariat

5.1 Operational Structure

5.1.1 Structore

The Chairman's Secretariat (C8) coordinates the functioning of the Chairman's office and liaises with external
entitdes, including government agencies and multlateral and invernational organizations such as the World Banlk,
Asian Development Bank {(ATYB) and International Finance Corporation (JPC) and is responsible for the
management of donor-funded projects.

5.1.2 Management Team

The C3 is headed by a Director who oversees various professionals in the C8 for internal audit, monitoring and
compliance, external communication and project execution.

5.2 Appellate Bench

The Appellate Bench Registy of the Commission is headed by the Registrar Appellate Bench who works under
general superintendence of the Appellate Bench, Administratively, the Registrar reports te the senior-most
Commissioner, currently Mr. Salman All Shaikh.

Dhwring the year, 100 appeals were filed before the Appellate Bench of the Comimission, against orders passed
by Commissioners, Executive Directors and Directors. The Appellate Bench disposed off twenty-one appeals
during this period. Of these, five were accepied, eleven dismissed and the remaining five were either rejected
or dismissed as withdrawm.

5.3 Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Department serves as zn independent appraisal function within the Commission. It works
in accordance with an Internal Andit Manwoal and Internal Audit Charter, and reports to an Andit Committee
comprising Mt. Abdul Rehman Quteshi, Adviset to the Comntnission as chair and Mr. Mohammed Hayat [asta,
Secretary to the Comumnission. The Internal Audit Manual cutlines the standards, gnidelines, and procedures for
the Internal Audit Department and encompasses 4 risk-based audit appreach.

Duting the yeat, the Internal Andit Depattment carried out the following majot activities:

i,  review of payroll processing, petty cash management, revenue collection, travel, procurement and
administration functions;

pre-audit of all third party payments at the head office;

monthly review of budget allocations and utilization;

review of the moenthly MIS reports and annnal accounts of the Commission;

post-audit of transactions of the Support Services Division of the Commission; and

analysing the control environment at the Company Registration Offices (CROY.

A.4 3B

At the end of each audit assignment, a report of observations and recommendations was submitted to the Audit
Committee for review and to the Chairman and the concerned Commissioner and for necessary action by the
Deparunent head. Adequate follow-up is maintined to monitor progress in respect of significant audit coneerns.

¥ gecurities and Exchange Commissian of Pakistan




54 Monitoring and Compliance

The Monitoring and Compliance Unit in the C8 ensures that the problems and concerns of various individuals,
investors and corporate entties are duly received, considered and appropriate action taken by the concerned
Division of the Commission. Investors and public forward all enquiries or complaints through the online links
available at the Commission's website besides utilizing postal services. The Unit provides information
and seeks expeditious resclution of complaints and queries through regular follewr up.

Status of the complaints, appeals, enquiries and government references received during the period under review
is depicted in Table 1.

Since the appointment of Federal Insurance Ombudsman {FIO} in April 2006, the complaints pertaining to
the insurance sector are being looked after by the FIO.

The number of complaints received by the CS during the year significantly increased compared to the previous
year because investors and shareholders felt encouraged to utilize electronic facilities to lodge their complaints
with the Commission. For details see Table 2.

5.5 Media and Publications

Dhuring the year under review, the Media and Public Relations Unit maintained a regular liaison with print and
electronic media to provide information on the reforms inwroduced by the Commission. Particularly, regular
statements issued to media on the reform process in the capital market helped stakeholders and the general
public to get a regular update and generate their feedback. Press briefings by the Chairman were regularly held
to update journalists on various reform measures.

Telewision channels, newspapers and magazines were regulatly monitored to manage dissemination of misleading
informatien. Suitable clarificatons were {ssued to counter negative media reports and articles.

5.6 Foreign Relations

5.6.1 Backgtound

The Foreign Relations Unit (FRU) in the CS is primarily respensible for coordinating with multilateral and
international organisations,

International cooperation between regulators is necessary for effective regulation of domestic markets. The
increasing internaticnalization of financial activities and the globalization of markets requires that relevant
information is available in other jurisdictions.

Furthet, 2 censiderable number of companies have their secutities listed in more than one jutisdiction and a
significant part of such issuzers commercial activities take place internationally. Individual investors alse invest
in foreign markets and securities either directly or through managed funds. An increasing nurnber of collective
investment schemes are marketed across jurisdictional boundaries. It is common for scherne promoters, managers
and custodians 1o be located in several different jurisdictions. Similar financial products may be traded on
varicus markets in several countries; moreover, there are many derivatives in which the underlying product or
reference price is traded, produced or derived from foreign markets.

Securltles and Exchangs Commisslon of Paklstan = M
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As cross-berder listing increases in volume and countries, the possibility of fraud, market manipulation, insider
trading and other illegal conduct can and does occur more frequenty in 4 increasingly smaller global market
alded by modern telecommunications. In these cirenmstances, effective regulation can he compromised when
necessary information Is located in another jurisdiction and is not available or accessible to the local regulator,

5.6.2 The Scope of Cooperation

The FRU wotked on formulating and putting into place cooperative mechanisms such as memoranda of
understanding at the international level to facilitate the detection of eross-border misconduct The Unit assisted
the Commission's coordination with multilateral and international organizations.

Recognising that the form and content of the co-operation will vary from case to case, the FRU developed a
Memorandum of Understanding (Mol template as a precursor to 2 more formal relationship. The commission
believed it important that assistance should be provided not anly for use in investigations but also for other
types of inquiry as part of a larger international compliance program for the purpose of preventing illicit
activities. The need to exchange general information ahout matters of regulatory concern including financial
and other supervisory infotmation, techinical expertise, surveillance and enforeement technigques, and investor
education was alse considered.

The basic characteristics of the memoranda of understanding are:

* identification of the circumstances under which assistance may be scught

* identification of the types of information and assistance that can be provided;
= safeguards of the confidentiality of information transmitted;

= adescription of the permitted uses of the information; and

*  vations additional areas of technical assistance and co-operation.

5.6.3 Outcomes

The multilateral Mol) agreed to between the securities regulators of the South Asian regien facilitated the
fotmation of the South Asian Securities Regulatots Forum (SASRE) to serve as the forum to promote cooperation,
facilitate sharing of informaton, and encourage harmonization of regulations and policies between South Asian
securities regulators. At the fitst meeting of the SASRF in Islamabad in May 2005, all concerned jutisdictions,
other than India, Maldives and S+i Lanka signed the MoU. During the reporting period, the securities regulators
of India and Maldives became signatories to the MoU. Se Lanka was the only country whose signature to the
MoU was awaited.

The FRU worked closely with the SMID in preparing the necessary documentation for assessment by the International
Organisatien for Secutities Commissions TOSCQ) as a first step in becoming a signatory to I0SCO's Multilateral
Memotandum of Undetstanding,

Initial explotatory communications took place with regulators in the Middle East, Asia-Pacific, and Australasia
regions. Of these, UAE, Oman, Jordan, Thailand, China were at the final stages of signing MoUs with the
Commission. The process of discussion was on-going with other countries such as Egypt, Sandi Arabia, Philippines
and New Zealand.

3% securities and Exchange Commissian of Pakistan




5.7 Project Management

The Project Management Unit executes donor-funded projects and assignments of the Commission. During the
period under review, & major portion of the Techmical Assistance (TA) to the Commission under the Financial
{non-bank) Markets and Governance Program of the ADEB was completed while an action plan was chalked out
to commence activities under the World Bank's Institutional Drevelopment Fund Grant.

In an effott to improve corporate governafice practices in the country, the Unit also maintained close liaison with
the recently established Paldstan Institute of Corporate Governance.

5.71 Financial Markets and Governance Program

The Financial {(nen-bank) Martkets and Governance Program (FMGP) was an integrated assistance package of three
loans and two political dsk guarantee facilities from the ADB to the Government of Pakistan, It primarily seeks
to support the development of Pakistan's non-bank financial matrket thtough reform, capacity building and
international private sector patticipation,

The tmain objectives of the FMGP are to:

i. stenpthen market soundness, stabllity and investor confidence through improved governance, ransparency

and risk management;

ii. improve availability of and access to financial instruments for savings and investment and related services;
and;

iii, improve market efficiency and attractiveness to issuers and investors, including institutional and foreipn
investors.

Under the FMGP, the Commission is the executing agency for one of the TA loans to strengthen regulation,
enforcement and governance of non-bank financial markets. The total amount of the TA is US§ 4.4 million - of
this, ADB will finance US 3 million while the remaining portion is counterpart financing,

While the TA mainly involved a consultancy assignment focusing on operations of a wide array of financial
intermediaries i.e, stock exchanges, NBFCs and insutance companies, funds wete also earmatked for procutement
of information technology equipment as well as training of the Commission's officials and market participants.

The consultancy assigiiment incladed 2 detailed review of legal and regulatory framework and addressed key issues of the
capital market, such as ingider trading, development of new products, risk management and electronic transaction systems
for the stock exchanges. Capacity building of the Commission and other market participants also formed a part of the
copsultancy assignment. The cutputs of the consultancy assipnment focus on the following four components:

s

upgrading the legal and regulatory framework;

i. support for development of non-bank financial institetions {NBFI) and capital market, including restructuring of
stock exchanges;

fii capacity building of the Commission, with particular attention to its enlarged mandate for regulation and supervision
of capital market, NBFIs, insurance and pensions; and

iv. estzblishment of sustainable mechanisms for skills development and training,
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During the year under review, International Securities Consnltancy Limited wha had been awarded the contract completed
the consultaney assignment that had commenced in August 2004, Several international and domestic consaltnts were
fielded in the Commission's head office.

Ower the course of the year, the consultants submitted a number of reports making recommendatons for amending
the legal structute as well as development of the vatious sectors, A mumber of laws were also drafted under the project,
These reports were supplemented with presentations to the Commission and were under review and implementation.

The consultancy teamn also conducted several workshops and seminars on various topics for employees of the Commission
as well as market participants.

5.7.2 World Bank Assistance for Capacity Building of the Commission

Dhuring the year under teview, a Letter of Agreement was signed with the World Bank to provide a grant to the Commission
under its Institntional Development Fund facility in the amount of US$454,000, Pursuant to this agreement, the
Commission and Wotld Bank agreed on several activities to be cartied out undet this facility which would be available
till June 2008,

The objectives of this grant are to: (i) Stengthen the Commission's abilides to build a facilitative and cohesive legal
framework for sectors under its purview through better managing its own resources, enhancing the capacity of its
professionals threogh in-country training and via exposure to international best practice in regulation and supervision
of the financial and corporate sector and (i) Develop independent and high-quality professional service providers and
encourage a greater role of self-regulatory organizations (SRO) in the markets.

57.3 Ant-money Laundering

The Anti-Money Laundeting Unit is alse part of the C8 and undertales necessary activities for establishing and-money
laundering {AML} measures in the corporate and financial sectors in Paldstan. It also ceordinates and liaises with relevant
agencies, both locally as well as internationally, te further promote AML activities in Pakistan.
Funding for AML and the combating of terrorist financing has heen provided to the Government of Pakistan under
the Wotld Bank's TA for Banking Sector Reforms (TABS), A total of TIS$800,000 was allocated for AML, of which the
Commission has = share of TUS$350,000 for capacity building in enforcement and supetvision.

Dhuring the year under review, the CS lisised with various apencies to shate with them the AML measutes instituted by
the Commission. Notable achievernents were as follows:

*  The Cemmissicn, along with other stakeholders, underwent mmtual evaluation by Asia-Pacific Groug in 2004,
The evaluation was geared towards assessing Pakistan's legal, law enforcement and regulatory framework in
respect of AML and Countering the Financing of Terrodsm, The third meeting of the Consultative Group
on Anti-Money Laundeting {CGAMLY) was held in Manila, Philippines in July 2006, The CGAML setves as a
forum for policy gnidance on AML and comprises representatives from public and private sectors. Participants
of the thitd meeting agreed that concerted efforts should be undettuken by all concetned, including the regulatory
authorities, enforcement agencies and financial and corporate sectors, in designing an appropriate AML framework
As part of the process, the Commission provided relevant information to the Ministry of Finance and the
National Accountability Bureau, who were participants at the meeting,
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The Cabinet approved the draft anti-money laundering bill and forwarded it to the Parliament in August
2005. The country is yet to come under a formal anti-money laundering regime as the necessary legislation
is awaiting promulgation by Parliament. The Commission provided detailed comments on the draft anti-
money laundering bill that was formulated by the Ministry of Finance and develeped in partnership with
SBP, the National Acconntability Burean, the Anti-Narcotics Force, and the Law Ministry. Upon promulgation,
the completion of this necessaty formality, the availahle Wotld Bank funding would be used fot strengthening
of the Commission's Fraud Investigation Unit, training of staff, develobment of necessary guidelings on
suspicious transaction repotiing in hon-hanking financial sectors and secutities markets.

Securltles and Exchange Commlisslon of Paklstan =~ 38

w
o
(o]
o
=
o
)
=
LLl
i

ANNUAL




Chapter 6
Company Law Division




2306

-
o=
o0}
2 8
L
o

ANNLUAL

Company Law Division

OBJECTIVE:  To promoi fealthy growth of corperate enterprises, protection of invetors and ereditors, promotion of investotent and
develgpmeent of economsy,

6.1  Operational Structure

The Company Law Division (CLD} is entrusted with the responsibility of tregulation, monitoring and enforcement of
laws pertinent to the cotporate sector, The CLD alse undertakes monitoring and vigilance of the cotpotate sectot with
4 view to promoting transparency, accountability and good corporate povernance practices, thereby protecting the interests
of investots, The CLD opetates with the following departments,

6.1 Registration Department

The Repistration Department is responsible for registration of new companies and ensuring compliance with legal and
tegulatory requirements by examining statutoty returns and accounts filed hy companies, It also supetvises and coerdinates
the working of the eight Company Registration Offices (CROs) which are functioning in Islamabad, Karachi, Lahore,
Multan, Peshawat, Sukkur, Quetta, and Faisalabad,

The Registration Depattment comptises of the following Wings:

Registration, Co-ordination, and Liaisen
Enforcement and Compliance of non-listed companies
Licenses and Complaints Handling

Management Information System (MIS)
Research and Publications

6.1.2 Enforcement Department

The Enforcement Department is responsibie for monitoring all listed companies except NBFCs, modarabas, and insurance
companies, It examines their published accounts, monitors compliance with applicable laws, tules and tegulations, and
takes necessaty actions against erting companies, their directots, management, and auditots, as approptiate,

6.2 Management Team

Mt. Rashid L. Malilk, Commissionet, ovetsees the CLD. He is a Chartered Accountant from England and Wales and a
fellow member of the Institate of Chattered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), He also bolds 2 Master's Degree in
Economics and possesses over thirty years of professional and wodking expetience of business operation, management,
finance and accounting in Pakistan as well as in UK, D, Sajid Qureshi was the Executive Ditectot heading the CLD at
the end of the reporting petiod; he left the Commission subsequent to the close of the year, He was assisted by a Registrar
of Companies, fout Additional Registrars and two Directots in the Registration Diepartment and CROs, Presently, the
Registration Department is headed by Mr, Nazir Ahmed Shaheen.

The Enforcement Diepartment functions under three Directors and a team of professionals comprising of CAs, cost
and management accountants (CMA), lawyers, and husiness gtaduates,
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Laws Administered

Companies Ordinance, 1984

Companies (Appoiniment of Legal Advisers) Act, 1974
Securities and Exchanpe Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997
Companies (Appointment of Legal Advisers) Rules, 1975
Companies {General Provisions and Forms) Rules, 1985
Companies (Invitation and Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 1987
Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996

Companies (Audit of Cost Accounts) Rules, 1998

Companies {Buy-back of Shares) Rules, 1999

Companies Shate Capital (Vatiadon in Rights and Privileges) Rules, 2001
Single Member Companies Rules, 2003

Companies (Registration Offices) Regulations, 2003

BRMFAEES FERT

The Repistration Department administets the laws pettinent to ptivate companies, unlisted public companies and foreign
companies while the Enforcement Department administers laws relevant to listed compandes,

The Enforcement Department also ensures compliance with the following Standards and Codes:
i, Compliance with International Accounting Standards (TAS)

fi, Compliance with International Standatds on Anditing (ISA)
fii, Code of Corporate Governance

6.4 Sector Review

The countty has witnessed remarkable growth in the registtation of companies over the past few years, New incotpotations
during FY2008, reached 6,186 as compared to 3,078 during the previous financial year (Fipure 1), showing 2 prowth of
101 percent,

Figure 1: Companies Incorporated by Financial Year
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During FY2006, for the first tme in the corporate history of Pakistan, new incorporations within a single month exceeded
1,000 companies i.¢., 1,135 companies were registered during May 2006, The monthly breakdown of registrations is given in
Figute 2 and the provincial distibuiion in Figure 3,

Figure 2: Menthly Incorporations in FY2006
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Figure 3: Province-wise Distribution of Companies Registered in FY2006
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A landrmark achievement was attained in May 2006 when the total partfolio of companies registered with the Commission
surpassed 50,000 companies. Total number of registered companies as of 30 June 2006 stoed at 50,401, depicting an increase
of 11 percent in the overall registeted cotpotate sector pottfolic when compared to 45,448 companies tegistered as of 30
June 2005, Detsils of types of companies as an 30 June 2006 are given in Table 3; capitalisation in the cotporate sector is
detailed in Tahle 4.
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The non-profit sector of any country plays a vital role in varicus felds such as commerce, art, Eterature, science, religion,
spoits, social services, charity, ete. Presently, there are 522 associations not-for-profit worddng in the country, formed under
Section 42 of the Companies Omrdinance, having a license issued by the Commission or trade organizations under a license
issued by the Ministry of Commerce, ‘The breakdowen is given in Figure 4.

Figure 4: Breakup of Associations Not-for-Profit Under Section 42 and Trade Organisations
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Foteign companies that are formed or registered in countries outside Pakistan, having a place of business in Pakistan, play an
impertant tole in Pakistan’s economy At the end of the year as many as 653 foreign companies were operating in Pakistan.
Country wise breakdown of such companies is given in Figure 5.

Figure 5: Breakdown of Foreign Companies by Country of Origin
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6.5 Petrformance Review

During the period under review, the Registration Department undertook watious measurtes for promoting corporatisation in
the country, ensuring healthy growth of corpotate enterprises, public facilitation, and regulatoty compliance by corporations.

Notable measures include (1) the establishment of a facilimtion counter at CRO Lahore; (i) development and publication of
new guideline booklets to promote awareness in the general public and cotporations; (if} holding of first ever Pramaters'
Conference at Lahore; and {iv) provision of e-name facility at CRC Islamabad.

Significant inftiatives wete also taken to develop and strengthen the legal framework to facilitate corporate entities and to
enhance regulatory compliance by registered entities through effective measures. A new project titled “Alert System™ was also
initiated for efficient monitting of non-compliant companies.

The Enforcement Departrment focused on improving compliance with statutory provisions and bringing clarity in the reporting
of financial and non-financial information to stakeholders. The regulatory and enforcement actions were directed tovards
preventing unauthorised inter-corperate financing, non-payment of dividend, irregularities relating to employees’ provident
fund accounts, and non-compliance of other statutory provisions. Moreover, legal actions were initiated to irmrestigate cases
where performance of a cotnpany was poor and its affairs were not being managred in accordance with sound business principles,
prudent commercial and good corporate governance practices, with the posaibility of deptiving members of a just return and
suffering consistently frorm losses endangeting its solvency.

The Department also reviewed financial staternents to ensure that they were prepared in accordance with prescribed financial
teporting framewotk to promete transparency and consistency in their presentation. Compliance with corporate laws and IAS
by listed carnpanies has shown improvement as a result of the vigilance and corporate discipline enforced by the Departroent.

6.6 Development of Laws and Regulations

6.6.1 Amendment in the Companies {General Provisions and Forms) Rules, 1985

An amendment was notified in Rule 14B of the Companies {General Provisions and Forms) Rules, 1985 vide SRO 1014
{(T}/20035, dated 28 September 2005 with the approval of the Federal Government, The amendment prescribed that a
retired government servant in BPS-19 {or equivalent) or above with at least fifteen vears service is also eligible to hold
the past of Company Secretary in listed companics.

6.6.2 Guidelines on Inforination to be Provided

The CLD issued a notification giving guidelines for publishing material information for shareholders by a listed company
in case of disposal of the undettaking ot sizeable part thereof,

6.7 Regulatory Actions

6.71 Amalgamations and Mergers of Companies

The Commission has been facilitating mergers and amalpamations among companies in order to strengthen their capital
base and achieve economies of scale. Consclidation within the corporate sector is expected to enhance the capacity to
deal with systemic risk and to withstand the glohal challenges, The Commission ensures that schemes of artangement
proposed by companies are not prejudicial to the interests of minority shareholders. In the event of a scheme of
arrangement appeating to be dettimental to the interests of minarity sharehelders, the concerned Registrar makes a
representation before the Court under Section 288 of the Companies Ordinance,
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During the year under review, the CLIY submitted oral and written representations in respect of eleven cases in various
Courts, While decisions in four cases were pending at the close of the year, the following cases (which inclade some from
previous vears) were concluded durng the year:

*  National Packages (Pvi) Limited into Forhan's (Pvt.} Limited

»  Sind Tank Storage Limited inte Home Products International (Pet,) Limited

*  Yusuf Teztile Mills Limnited into Indus Dying and Manufacturing Limited

*  Mahmood Power Geperation Limited into Mahmood Textile Mills Limited

*  Universal Aqua (Pvt) Limited into Nestle Pakistan Limited

¢ Qualituff (Pvt)) Limited into Habib Jute Mills Limited

*  Ghani Float Glass Limited into Ghani Glass Limited

+  YWotdcall Multimedia Limited, Wordecall Broadband Limited, Wordeall Communication Limited into Wotldcall
Telecom Limited

*  Yasir Spinning Mills Limited into Sitara Hamza (Pvt) Limited

6.7.2 Approvals and Permissions

The Companies Ordinance contains 2 number of provisions that mandate approvals either from the Commissicn or from
the Registrar for effecting the requitements of such provisions, A latge number of applications were received during the
year and, after due process, necessary approvals were accorded. Relevant details are given in Table 5.

6.7.3 Grant of Licence to Associations Not-for-Profit Under Section 42 of the Companies
Otdinance

The Commissicn undertook measures to facilitate the public in preparation of applications for grant of licence under
Section 42 of the Companies Otdinance and for ensuring quick disposal of these applications, Step-wise procedure for
chtaining licence from the Commission, model Memorandum and Articles of Asscciation for associations not-for-profit
and specimens of documents to be attached with the application, are provided to the applicants; this facilitates the
promoters of such associations. During the year under review, sixty-three licences were issued to associations not-for-
profit under Section 42 of the Companies Ordinance as compared to twenty-seven in FY 2005,

6.74 Capital Issues

During the year, twenty-three applications for issue of capital by companies were disposed off under the following
categories:

i) Issue of Shares without Right
Dwring the period under review, fifteen applications were received from companies requesting permission to allow them
to issue shares other than rights to the exzisting shareholders; twelve applications were disposed off by allowing companies

to issue shares worth Rs. 4,082 billien against conversion of loans, In one case, approval in principle was granted to issue
shares otherwise than right against comversion of US§ 25 million while twe applications were rejected.
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(i} Issue of Preference Shares

Under Section 90 of the Companies Ordinance tead with the Companies Share Capital (Vadation in Rights and Privileges)
Rules, 2000, 2 company limited by shates can issue mote than one kind of shate capital having different tights and
ptivileges. During FY2006, five listed companies and three private companies made applications for approval to issue
ptefetence shates. Apptoval was given in one case to issue preference shates to existing shatehalders ameunting to Rs.
& hillion, wheteas in three cases, approval was granted to issue preference shates amounting to Rs. 750 million otherwise
than rights to certain financial institudons; one application was in process ar the end of the reporting period pending
the provision of complete information by the company. In case of ptivate companies, approval was granted to issue
preference shares amounting to Rs. 93.217 million

Figure 6: Issue of Capital

.

T
Sectien 86 (1) af the Companiss Ordnencs, 1934 Sectian #0 of the Companise Ordinance, 1984
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6.7.5 Applications for Withholding Payment of Dividend

Dharing the year, two companies applied for approval to withhold payment of dividend. After examination of the applications,
one companry was allowed to withhald payment of dividend till such time the successors submit documentary proof, whereas
application of the other company was rejected.

6.8  Monitoring and Enforcement

6.8.1 Action Against Forex, MLM and Pytamid Schemes

The Commission took sttict action against illegal and unauthotized forex companies and international brokerage houses
that were operating in violation of law. During the reporting pericd, two cases wete brought to the Commission's notice.
Preliminary inquiry in these cases was under process and further action in accordance with the law would be taken on
completion of inquiry.

During FY2008, the Cominission detected four companies which were operating multi-level marketing /pyramid schemes,

deceiving the general public by encouraging them to make easy money and earn sky-high returns in 4 short span of time.
Action was taken against them and winding-up petitions against these companies have been filed in the Lahore High Court.
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682 Adjudication of Cases Under the Companies Ordinance

The Registrar of Companies plays a pivotal role in the administration of the Companies Ordinance. However, certain powers
of the Registrar ate delegated to the heads of the CROs for effective and efficient administration of the Companies Crdinance
and facilitating the corporate sector at their doorstep. During the period under review;, the CROs and Registrar of Companies
adjudicated 4,548 cases for violations under vatious provisions of the Companies Crdinance; 1,698 cases wete disposed off
and appropriate actions were taken against errant companics.

6.8.3 Holding of Election of Directors of Gammon Pakistan Limited

The Cotnmission, far the first time in the history of corporate regulation in Pakistan, facilitated the reschation of a corporate
conflict by conducting the election of the board of directors of Gammon Pakistan Limited, in complance with the Lahore
High Court's Rawalpindi Bench Consent Order dated 25 October 2005, The election was chaired by Commissioner (CLID)
in the company's AGM held on 31 October 2005. The role of the Commission in conducting a fair, transparent election
and resolving a long standing dispute was highly appreciated, patticulatly by the shareholdets,

6.8.4 Liquidation of Companies
The Commission disposed off 1,169 cases pertaining to liquidation of companies. Of these, eight cases of winding up wete

a result of Court orders, while thirty-five involved voluntary winding up and 1,126 companies were struck off from the
register of companies under Section 439. These liquidated companies had a paid-up capital of Rs. 728.115 million.

6.8.5 Complaints

During the perind under review, 108 complaints were received by the CROs and the Registration Department from shareholders
and the general public, Including the 14 pending complaints of the previcus year, 109 complaints were disposed off during
the year.

The complaints mainly pertained to issues such as non-payment of dividend, mismanagement, not helding the AGM on

time ot impropet holding of meetings, misapproptiation, non-tegistration of transfer of shates, non-issue of shate certificates,
non-receipt of notices, and improper election of directors.

6.8.6 Examination of Accounts of Listed Companies

Duting the yeat, financial statements of listed companies were examined and 168 companies were asked to provide explanations

with regard to the various ohservations made during the review. The following issues were taken cognisance of:
{0 Contents of Balance Sheet

Section 234 of the Companies Ordinance provides that every balance sheet of a company shall give 4 true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company as at the end of its financial year, and every profit and loss account or income and expenditure

account of a company shall give a true and fair view of the profit and loss of the company for the financial year.

During the year, 4 cases of non-compliance with Section 234 of the Companies Ordinance were dealt with and proceedings
wete in process at the close of the year.
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ii) Surplus Arising out of Revaluation of Fixed Assets

Section 235 of the Compaties Ordinatice provides that whete 2 company tevalues its fixed assets, the itictease in the value
of such assets shall be transferred to an accaunt to be called “Surphus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets Accounts™ and shown
in the balance sheet of the company after Capital and Reserves.

Duting the yeat, 6 cases of nofi-compliance with the afotesaid provisions of the Companies Grdinance were dealt with. Of
these, two companies were fined and wamed to be carefinl in future in complying with the requirements of law. Proceedings
against four companies were dropped on submission of satisfactory replies and ensuring subsequent compliance with law.

(1if) Actions against Auditors

Examination of accounts revealed that, in certzin cases, anditers failed to discharpe their duties and responsibilitics ervisaged
in the International Standards on Auditing and the Companies Ordinence, During the year, 16 cases of non-compliance with
the provizsions of the Companies Ordinance against 13 andit firms were dealt with. Of these, 3 andit firims were imposed an
aggregate fine of Rs. 120,000 for issuance of auditors teport which were not in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance while proceedings against one firm were dropped with a warning, Proceedings in 12 cases were in
process at the close of the year under review

Proceedings initiated against the auditors of a company who failed to make a report in thefr tenure to its members wete in
the process of finalization at the end of the vear,

(iv) Investipations inte the Management of Companies

The Department initiates investigations into the conduct of managements of companies to identify misstatements in financial
statements, cortinuous deptivation of reasonable return to shareholders, and/or violation of stattory provisions to defraud
creditors or members.

Druring the year, 5 cases of investigation were dealt with. An Inspector was appeinted under Section 265 of the Companies
Ordinance to explore management practices of one company. Proceedings were dropped against one company subsequent
to improved performance. Proceedings against 3 companies, however, were in the process of finalization,
Moseovet, proceedings initdated against a company under Section 246 of the Cotnpanies Otdinance for not providing the
requisite information on the Commission's order to the Inspector appeinted for investigation of its affairs were in progress
at the close of the year.

) Irregularites in Provident Fund

The Companies Ordinance requites companies to deposit the employees' and empleyers' contribution to provident fund in a
separate account and has prescribed the instruments in which such funds may be invested,

Duting the year, 9 cases of nen-compliance with the aforesaid provisions wete observed. The companies had failed to pay
overdue amount of provident fund. An aggtegate fine of Rs. 135,000 was imposed with the directions to pay the total
outstanding liahilities of the provident fund. Proceedings against 4 companies were in the process of finalization at the
close of the year.

(vi) Inter-Corporate Financing
Efforts wete made to detect unlawful intet-corporate financing, curb the misnse of funds, and making investments in the

eompatry's associated undertakings without obtaining the requisite authotization in violation of Section 208 of the Companies
Ordinance.
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During the vear, 18 cases of nen-compliance with the provisions of Section 208 of the Companies Ordinance were dealt
with. An aggregate fine of Rs. 3,500,000 was impesed on 7 companies with the directive to make gocd the default and
recover the unauthorsed investment/outstanding amount along with mark-up from the associated underealing, Proceedings
in two cases were dropped, the temaining ning were heing finalized,

(vii)  Enforcing Compliance with Provisions of the Companies Ordinance

During the year, the Department issued the following directions under Section 472 of the Companies Ordinance through
notices and orders o make good the defaults of certain provisions of the Companies Ordinance:

* A company was directed to submit audited finaneial statements along with consolidated accounts for the last three
years and atrange to hold the overdue AGMs,

= A company was directed to prepare the accounts for the years 2004 and 2005 in accordance with Section 234 of
the Companies Ordinance depicting the true and fair view of its financial position.

*  Two companies that failed to pay the amount of Employees Provident Funds were directed to make good the
defaults.

* A company whose auditors had qualified theit teport for the yeat ended 30 June 2004 was ditected to make good
the default by removing the auditor's qualifications in subsequent accounts for the year ended 30 June 2005.

*  Two companies were directed to place theit accounts for quarter ended 30 Septernber 2005 on their website.

*  One company was directed to furnish the revised statement of material facts.

*  Twelve companies were issued hotices to make good the loss/defaults regatding presentation of financial statements
in compliance with the legal requirements.

(viii) Non-Compliance with Directives of the Commission

During the year, proceedings against two companies were initiasted under Section 495 of the Companies Ordinance for non-
recovery of unauthedzed investment from asscciated undertakings and non-payment of entite outstanding amount along
with matk-up to the employees’ provident fund on directives of the Commission. A fine of Rs. 300,000 was imposed on
the chief executve and directors of a company with a directive to recover the entire cutstanding amount along with
mark-up from the associated undertakings wheteas proceedings against the other company wete being finalized.

{ix) Engagement of Chief Executive in Activities Competing with the Company's Business

Under Section 203 of the Companies Ordinance, a chief execntive of a public company shall not directly o indirectly engage
in any business or by a subsidiary thereof, which is of the same nature and divectly competes with the business carried on
by the company of which he is the chief executive,

Duying the year, four cases of non-compliance with the aforesaid provisions wete dealt with, In two cases, on assurance of
both the companies that they do not have the same line of business, proceedings were dropped. However, proceedings
against two companies were being finalized.

(x) Appointment of Compatty Secretary
The Comparies Ordinance and the Code of Corporate Governance require companies to appoint a whole time Company
Secretary. During the year, 10 cases of viclation of Section 204-A of the Companies Ordinance were dealt with. Of these

cases, proceedings against nine were dropped on rectification of defaults whereas proceedings against one company were
being finalised,
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() Lease-out Project without Approval of Sharcholders

Duting the vear, three cases of non-complisnce with the provisions of Section 196 of the Companies Ordinance were dealt
with a5 the managements of these companies were found to be selling/leasing out assets without the anthotisation of the
shatcholders. A fine of Rs, 700,000 was imposed on the chief executive and directors of one company. Proceedings against
two companies were being finalised,

(xii)  Disclosute of Information in Case of Special Business

The Cempanies Ordinance tequites that where any special business is to be transacted at a general meeting, a statement
setting out all matetial facts concerning the business should be citculated to shareholders along with the nodce of the
meeting, The intention fs to appdse the shateholders in advance abont the details of significant matters to be decided in

general meetings.

During the year, 217 cases of special business were examined and 47 such notices of meetings wete found to he matetally
deficient, The Depattment took the following action:

* 25 companies were directed to dirculate the revised notice of meetings inserting non-disclosed information to
the shateholders by way of an *Addendum.”

* 17 comparnies wete ditected to explain the non-disclosed infotmation in the meetings,

* 4 companies were issued show canse notices for failure to comply with the provisions of Section 160 and 161
of the Companies Otdinance, Proceedings in three cases were dropped after submission of satisfactory explanations;
however, proceedings apainst one company were being finalised,

(xiiijy  Circulation of Quarterly Accounts

The Companies Ordinance requires every listed company to prepare and transmit to the members, the stock exchange, the
Commission and the Registrar, a financial statement as at the end of each quarter, whethet audited ot otherwise.

A total of 1,594 quartetly accounts of liseed companies were due to be filed during the year. As mainy as 1,382 acconnts were
dirculated by listed companies.

During the year, pensities amounting to Rs. 5,820,000 were impased on the chief execurives and directors of twenty-five
companies for non/late filing of quartetly accounts as a failute to comply with the requirements of Section 245 of the
Companics Ordinance. Proceedings against thirty-three companies were in progress.

(xiv)  Direction of the Commiseion for Holding of AGM

Section 170 of the Companies Ordinance provides that if default is made in holding the statutoty meeting, AGM ot any
extraordinary general meeting in accordance with Section 157, 158 or 159, the Commission may direct the calling of the said

mecting,

Duting the yeat, six companies wete given direction by the Commission to hold overdue AGMs. Furthet, a fine of Rs. 33,200
was imposed on the chief executive of the company for non-compliance with the direction of the Commission for holding
of overdue AGM.

(x¥) Non/Late Holding of AGMa
The Departinent utidertook strict inonitoritg to ensute that listed commpanies held their AGMs within the presciibed time

petiod. Out of 530 companies being monitored by the Enforcement Departrent, 462 (87 percent) held AGMs while fifty-
five were in liquidation /winding-up and thirteen were in defanlt.
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During the year, an aggregate penalty of Rs, 3,160,000 was imposed on the chief executives and directors of fifteen companies
for non/late holding of AGMs,

{xvi)  Conditions for Declaration of Dividend

The Companies Ordinance requites the payment of dividend only out of profits of the company. Under Section 249 of the
Companies Ordinance, dividends shall not be paid out of the profits made from the sale/disposal of any immovahle property
ot assets of capital natute, One case of non-compliance with the aforesaid provisions was noted and relevant proceedings were

in progtess,

{xvii)  Minimum Numnber of Directors

Under Sections 174 and 180, every listed company shall have not less than seven directors to be elected in a general meeting,
Any vacancy occarting amaong the directots shall be filled up by the ditectors and the petson so appointed shall hold office for
the temainder of the term of the director in whose place he is appointed,

Duting the year, one case of non-compliance with the aforesaid provisions was dealt with wherein the company was working,
with only five ditectots elected in the AGM., On commitment of the management 1o unde the default and a stern watning, the
default was condoned and the proceedings dropped.

{xviii} Non-holding of Election of Directors Within Prescribed Period

Under Section 177, on the date of the first AGM of a company, all directors of the company for the time being who are subject
to election shall stand retired from office and thereafter all such directors shall retire on the expiry of the term of three years
as laid down in Section 180, The ditectors so tetiting shall continue to perform theit functions until their successots are
elected. The directors continuing to perform their functions shall take immediate steps to hold the election of directors and
in case of any impediment, report the circumstances of the case to the tepistrat within fifteen days of the expity of the term.

Duting the yeat, cne case of non-compliance with the afotesaid provisions was dealt with wherein the directots of 4 company
had failed to held eleetion after expiry of the period as provided under Section 180 and had not reported impediment in
this respect to the Registrar. Proceedings in the matter were in progress at the end of the year.

{xix)  Providing Unlawful Corporate Guarantee

Dhuring the year, three cases of non-compliance with the provisiens of Section 195 of the Companies Ordinance regarding
guarantee/loan to directors were dealt with. It was noticed that a company made loans to directors without approval of the
Comymnission and did not file the particulars thereof with the concerned Repistrat, wheteas another company gave a gnarantee
t0 its associated company on behalf of borrowing company to secure the loan and in 2 third case, 2 company gave cotporate
guarantee to 2 commercial bank on behalf of its assodiated company in conttavention of the afotesaid provisions of the
Companies Ordinance. In two cases, proceedings were dropped with warnings. However, proceedings against one company
were being finalised

{xx}  Making False/Incorrect Statements in Documents Required Under the Companies Ordinance
Duting the yeat, eleven cases of misstatement by companies were dealt with, These cases were disposed off as given belows:
fa) Proceedings against eight companies were initiated whetein these companies made misstatements hefore the

sharcholders at the time of approval of right issues and ntilized the proceeds of right issues otherwise than the
putpose described to the sharcholders, An appregate penalty of Rs, 420,000 was imposed on the directors including
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the chief executives of two companies. In another ¢ase, 4 company was directed to submit report on balancing,
modernisation, and replacement of machinery after conducting due diligence. Proceedings against five companies
were in progress at the end of the year,

(h) A fine of Rs. 30,000 was imposed on the chief executive and a ditectot of a company for making a misstatement
on having the annual accounts audited.

{© Proceedings initiated against a company for making misstatement in the prospecmus were undet progress at the
end of the yeat.

{d) Proceedings against a company wete inftiated as its Directot’s Report did not contain information and explanation
tegarding reservations contained in the Aunditors’ Report as required under the provisions of law: Proceedings in
the matter wete in progress at the end of the year,

(od)  Non-citeulation of Abstract on Increase in Chief Executive's Remuneration in the Directors' Report

Duting the year, two cases of default of the provision of Section 218 of the Companies Ordinance tegarding non-circulation
of abstract on increase in chief executive's remuneration in the Directors’ Report were identified. After due process, 2
penalty of Rs, 5,000 was imposed on 2 company whereas proceedings in the other case were dtopped on assutance o
comply with the requirements of law in future,

(xodi) Investors' Grievances

During the vear, the Department resolved 2,253 out of 2,297 complaints of varicus shareholders, whereas comments on
the remaining fotty-four complaints were sought from the concerned companies, The complaints mainly telated to non-
receipt of dividend warrants, non-encashment of dividend wartants, delay/non-transfer of shares, issue of duplicate shares,
non-teceipt of annual and interim accounts, wrongful deduction of Zakat, and other miscellaneons complaints relating to
noo-holding of AGM, non-citculadon of notice of meeting et

During the yeat, six cases of non-compliance with the provisions of the Companies Ordinance wete dealt with for non-
/late transfer of shares, non-issuance of duplicate shares and non-payment of dividend within the presctibed pedod. An
agpregate fine of Rs, 130,000 was imposed cn the chief executives and ditectors of two companies whereas proceedings
in one case were dropped when the company rectified the fault, However, proceedings against three companies were belng
finalised.

(odif) Liquidation of Companies

Duting the yeat, thirteen cases under Section 305 of the Companfes Ordinance were dealt with wherein the concerned
Registrats had sought sanctions of the Commission for filing of winding-up petitions in the tespective High Courts against
companies which had committed the defaults of not holding two consecutive AGMs or suspended its business fot more
than one yeat, The Commission accotded sanctions in five cases to the Registrars concetned for filing of winding-up
petitions in the Honourable High Courts whereas proceedings against one company were dropped, Proceedings against seven
companies were being finalised.

68,7 Examination of Anmal Accounts of Non-listed Public Companies and Associations Not-
for-Profit

The Registration Department cartied out the examinaton of annual accounts of 646 non-listed public companies and
associations not-for-profit during the peried under review Of these, show cause notices, warning notices, and explanation
letters were issued to 399 errant companies for non-compliance of the statutory requirements, while 244 acoounts were
found in order
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6.8.8 Itregularities in Utilisation of Secutity Deposits Received from Dealers

Durting the year, five cases of non-compliance with the provision of Section 226 of the Companies Ordinance tegarding
money received 2s security or deposit were dealt with. Of these, one case was decided and a penalty of Rs. 5,000 was imposed
on the chief executive of the company. Proceedings against four companies were being finalised.

6.9 Developmental Activities
6.9.1 Public Facilitation Initiatives
@  ITCN Asia 2005 Exhibition

The CRO Karachi participated i1 the TTCN Asia 2005, held on 9-10 Awgust, 2005, on behalf of the Commission contitming
the precedent of having meaningful presence in such exhibitions since 2000, During the course of the exhibition, instant
asgistanoe on company incotporation was provided and regulatory issues were explained. A fast-rack Company Incorporation
Desk for "on-the-spot’ ineorporation of companies was established. ‘The Commission's guidanee booklets were widely distributed
among the participants and the visitors in order to ereate public awareness. This effort of the Commission was highly appreciated
by local and foreign delegates.

(ii) Seminar for Promoters of Companies

“To encourage a corporate culture in the country, the Commission held a seminar for promoters of newly incorporated companies
on 30 March 2006 at the Lahore Chamber of Commerce and Industry. The objective of this seminar was to disseminate
information about the benefits of corporatization end te facilitate the promoters and management of companies in compliance
with post-incorporstion statutory requirements. The seminar was the first one in the series and similar programmes are planned
for other cities on a regular basis. It is envisaged that such endeavours will go a long way in the avwareness and development of
cotporate compliance.

(iii} Establishment of a Facilitation Centre at CRO Lahore

To facilitate the general public and the corporate sector, the Commission established a Facilitation Centre at CRO Lahore in
November 2005. The varicus counters of the Centre - Help Counter, Special Services Counter, Receipt Counter and Diispatch
Counter - extend specialized services in state-of-the-art facilities in 4 dmely and effective manner. The Centre provides an
investor friendly environment and helps in promoting awareness and assistance on corpofatization of businesses.

(iv) Publication of Guideline Booldets

To develop public awareness on various statutory matters and encourage best practices and cotporate governance in the
management of corporate entities, the following guide boeklets have been published and placed on the Commission's web
siter

*  Guidelines on Quarterly Accounts

*  Guidebook on Issue of Preference Shates

¢ Guidebook on Issue of Shares Otherwise than Rights

*  Convetsion of Status of Company

*  Guide on Investigation into the Affairs of a Company

*  Guide on Shareholders Rights

*  Foreign Companies' Guide

*  Winding-up and Dissolution of Companies Guide

*  ‘Translated vetsion of Promoters' Guide in Urdu
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=) Placing of Memorandum and Articles of Association on the Commission's Website

The Commission has developed and placed on its website, revarmped, simplified and standardised model memorandum
and articles of association for the following sectots for the cormvenience of public and promoters of companies:

*  Texiile Composite

»  Textile Spinning

*  Textile Allied and Others
*  Power Generation

*  Synthetics and Rayen

* Jute
*  Fishing
»  Livestock

*  Poultry and Breeding

The Commissien plans to develop and provide such model memorandum and articles of association for other sectots
as part of its goals for FY2007,

(vi} Meeting with the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and Industry

A meeting between the Federation of Paldstan Chambers of Commerce and Industry, and the Commission was held
in December 2004 to discuss matters relating to the licensing, formation, and incorporation of trade organizations and
the renewal of their membership.

Subsequently, 2 committee was constituted by the Ministry of Commeree vide notification No. 12 (1)/2006-T.0. dated
T April 2006, to examine, review, and sugpest amendments in the Trade Crpanization Ordinanee, 1961, in consultation
with business representatives and other stakeholders. The Commission actively participated in variouns meetings of this
Committee in which the terms of reference were finalized and the recommendations from different trade organizations
were teceived.

(viij Lizison with SMEDA for Corporatisation of SMEs

In order te promote corporate growth and extend the benefits of corporate status to small and medium enterprises, a
collaborative strategy was prepared to promote mutual collaboration and co-ordination with SMEDA in the reform
process.

(viii) Abolition of Stamp Duty in the Province of Sindh

During the reporting period, the Commission succeeded in its efforts to abolish the stamp duty on registration of
memorandum and articles of association levied by the provinee of Sindh. Previously, on the recommendation of the
Commission, the governments of Punjab and NWFP had waived off the entire stamp duty on the memorandum and

articles of association.

The Commission continued its efforts with the Government of Baluchistan and the Tslamabad Capital Tertitory to
abolish stamp dutics.
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6.9.2 Electronic Name Availability Setvice

To facilitate the company incorpotation process, an electronic intetface for name availahility for reservation of company
name was deployed at CRO Islamabad. The electronic facility allows an applicant to search and apply for the proposed
company name thtough the Name Reservation Request available on the Commission's website and enables promotets to
electronically reserve a company name,

This facility is presently operational in Islamabad though expansion of the service to other CROs is planned for FY2007,
6.9.3 Meeting With In-chatges of CROs

A meeting of the heads of the Commission's eight CROs was held on 22 September 2005 to discuss the reforms implemented
by the CROs and formulate the way forward to improve their overall working and functioning to implement the second
generation reforms.

6.10 Administrative Appeals

Dhuring the last year, 100 appeals were filed before the Appellate Bench of the Commissicn against orders passed by
Commissioners, Executive Directors and Directors. The Appellate Bench disposed off twenty-one appeals during this period.
Of these, five were accepted, eleven dismizsed while the remaining five were either rejected or dismissed ag withdrawn.

6.11 Judicial Appeals

Dwuting the year, three appeals were filed against two orders and one show canse notice of the Comrission in the respective
Honoutahle High Courts. These were pending at the end of the year.

Tor appeals were filed in the Honenrable High Court against the order of acquittal passed by the Coutt of 11Ird Additional
Sessions Judge Karachi South in 2 complaint filed by the Comrnission against the chief executive and a director of a company
who had violated the provisions of the Companies Ordinanee by not holding AGMs and not laying balance sheet and profit
and loss accounts therein for the years 1996 to 1999, The decisions of the Court were pending at the end of the reporting

petiod.
6.12 Aonnual Plan

6.121 Work in Progress

({} BExtension of Code of Cotporate Goversance to Aseociations Not-for-Profit

With a view to extend the Code of Corporate Governance to assoclations not-for-profit, the Commission has drafted the
Associaton Not-for-Profit (Licensing and Corporate Governance) Rules under Section 42 of the Companies Ordinance
which contain the regulatory framework, requirements and specifically the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance
proposed to be applicable on the associatdons not-for-profit. During the period under review, views/comments from well-
known legal consultants were taken into consideration and a final draft prepared.
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(i} Rules for Housing and Real Estate Development Sector

In order to closely monitor the real estate development sector, the Deparment is framing the draft Honsing and Real Estare
Development Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules which lay down comprehensive regulations and regulatory
framework for registration of companies in housing and real estate development sector and provide for the post-incorporation
compliance and legal requirements. Druring the petiod under seview, a draft of these Rules was bieng finalised taking inte
consideration the views,/comments from tenpwned legal consultants.

(iid) Draft Public Sector Companies {Corporate Governance) Rules

In prder to extend corporate governance practices to public sector companies, draft Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules have been formulated. At the end of the reporting period, views and comments from well-ktiewn legal
consultants had been recetved and were being taken into consideration.

(iv) Publication of Guideline Booklets

The following bocklets are in the process of publication:
Comphaints Lodging and Redressal Guide
Translation of Promoters’ Guide in other languages

Licensing and Repistration of Associations Not-{for-Profit
Company Name Availability Guide

*® ¥ + ¥

(v} Of1-the-Shelf {Readymade) Company

The Commission plans to intreduce a new concept of ready-made off-the-shelf company in the country. A 'shelf company'
would be 4 previcusly-incorporated company which would be available for purchase ‘off-the-shelf’, The main benefit
would be its readily available statas and that the buyer would not have to spend much thime setting it up. A concept paper
on off-the-shelf company detailing the modus operandi and expected benefits of the idea was prepared. An awareness
development campaign is propesed to get feedback on the concept from various quarters.

6.12.2 Automation
(§1] Online Registration of Companies and Filing of Returns

Online Registration and Filing of Returns will make it possible for registered corporate entities to do online filing, and
new companics to register online. The system is expected te be operational scon.

@)  Alert System

Presently, the Registration Department and the CROs ensute compliance in respect of statutory returns manually, 2 time
consuming process given the mamber of registered companies. An antamated alett system is being developed to facilitate
commpanies in filing of statotory returns within specified time and provide timely information to the Commission regarding
non-filing of statutory returns by companies. The system is expected to enhance menitoring of companies in a time-
saving and cost-effective manner.
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6.12.3 Futute Plans

(] Strengthening of Code of Corporate Governance

The Enforcement Drepartment monitored compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance by listed companies.
While at present, compliance with the Code is voluntary, it is proposed that its compliance must be made mandatary over
titme. This will requite a review of the extent of compliance achieved and the consequent imptovement to the cotporate
governance and compliance environment, leading to recommendations for reform and further revisions of the Code.
The Enforcement Department would collate the compliance reports and review the recommendations for further
implementation.

(ii) Fraud Investigation Unit

A Fraud Investigation Unit was established at the Commission in Awgust 2005 to target the prevention and detection of
white-cellar financial crimes. Identification of such ctimes is latgely 2 function of the Enforcement Department, which
reviews the financial reports and identifies areas of further inquiry. Close coordination with the FIU and synergetic
development in this area would be a key second-generation reform area for the Enforcement Department.

(i)  Strengthening Enforcement

For the Enforcement Diepartment to accomplish its chjectives and establish the image of the Commission a5 a regulatory
body fully cognisant of its duties, some key measures are called for to address present weaknesses, These measures ate
incorporated into the Annual Work Plan 2006-07 and are listed below:

f2) Monitoting of Auditots: It is the duty of the auditors to bring to the notice of the members the major breaches
observed in financial statements. The auditors are responsible to the shareholders and are required to give a
report on the accounts and books of accounts after conducting the sudit in accordance with the prescribed
procedures and requirements of the Companies Ordinance 2nd Standards.

{b) To ensure that auditors of listed companies perform their duties diligently and discharge their responsibilities
effectively under the statuie, 2 database of audit firms woeuld be developed. This would be used as a tocl to
achieve effective monitoring, This will not only improve their performance bur will also be helpful to establish
effective enforcernent of laws and accounting standards.

{c} Databases: Currently thete is ne tepository of histotical financial data and this results in 2 cumbersome exercise
to collate company financizl data for previous years; morecover, not 4ll non-financial infermation is available.
The availability of a financial information database would be helpful and vital for monitoting and tracking the
performance of companies over the years. Both financial and non-financial information would be fed in the
database and the application of relevant analytical tools would support the work of the Enforcement Department.

(d) Intelligence-led Enforcement: Thete has been a global increase in the prevalence of corperate frand in recent
years and corporations have developed new ways 2nd means to hide their wrongdoings. The Enforcement
Department has to play a proactive role in developing procedures to prevent and detect frauds in 2 timely manner.
Financial analysis is also tequited to identify and detect fraud or fraud risk,

fe} In-house Investgation: The Commission proposes to conduct investigation by in-house investigation officers
to ensure a result-oriented investigation under Section 263 and 265 of the Companies Ordinance. Moreover,
the inspection of recotds of listed companies will be done whenever requited as 2 proactive measure to jtnprove
compliance and to take up limited scope investigations under Section 231 of the Companies Ordinance. This
shall support efforts for detection of frauds and malpractices by listed companies.
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Securities Market Division

CBIECTIVE:  Te develop and promote the capital markets in Pakistan as a_faiv and modern market providing for investor
profeciion and adeguate vk managemetit,

7.1 Operational Structure

711 Stoucture

Securites Matket Division (SMD) is responsible for developing, regulating, and monitoring the capital market of
Pakistan, SMD is entrusted with instituting approptiate repulatory reforms to develop and promote the market,
enhance transparency, promote effective risk management and ensure good governance at the stock exchanges,
commodity exchange, central depository company, and nations! cleating company to sttengthen investot confidence.
It is responsible for regulation of all aspects of the capital market including licensing and coerdination, repulation
of secondary matket, public offerings, market intermediaries and market surveillance.

SMD regulates the primary and secondary market activities, as well as market intermediaries with the objective of
protecting Investors through repistration, survelllance, investigation, enforcement, compliance and rule making, SMD
processes and grants approvals of prospectuses for public offerings of both debt and equity securities and performs
the ovetsight funciion fotr monitoting the wotking and activities of commaodity exchange and other players in the
capital market. SMID iz divided inte following Wings:

*  Btock Exchanges, Depesitory and Clearing and Policy and Regulation Wing
*  Monitoring and Surveillance and Beneficial Crornership Wing

*  Capital Tssues Wing

+  Commodity Exchange Wing

*  Brokers Registration and Inspection Wing

* Investor Complaints Wing

7.1.2 Management Team

Mr. Rashid I. Malik, who joined the Commission in January 2005, oversees SMI: He is a Chartered Accountant
from England and Wales and a fellow member of ICAF He also holds a Master’s Degree in Economics and possesses
ovet thirty yeats of professional and wotking expetience of business opetation, management, finance and accounting
in Pakistan and UK.

During the vear, Mr. Shahid Ghaffar resigned as Commissioner, after serving the Commission for almost five years.
Mr. Arif Mian, a Chartered Accountant by profession, was the Executive Director heading SMID as at the close of
the year under review. He was assisted by various professionals in the Division, which include lawyers, chartered

accountants, financial analysts, management accountants, and business administration expetts,

Subsequent to the close of the year, My, Arif Mian left the Commission and Mr, Imtinz Haider was promoted as
Ezecutive Director of SMLY
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7.1.3 Laws Administered

Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969
Companies Ordinance, 1984
Listed Companies {(Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and Take-overs) Ordinance, 2002
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997
Central Depositories Act, 1997
Securities and Exchange Rules, 1971
Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Rules, 1985
Central Depository Companies (Establishment and Reguladons} Rules, 1995
Companies (Issue of Capital) Bules, 1996
Companies (Buy Back of Shares) Bules, 1599
Companies (Asset Backed Securitisadon) Rules, 1599
Share Capital (Variation in Rights and Privileges) Rules, 2000
Brokers and Agents Registration Rules, 2001
Stock Exchange Members (Inspection of Books and Records) Rules, 2001
Members’ Agents and Traders (Eligibility Standards) Rules, 2001
Balloters, Transfer Agents and Underwriters Rules, 2001
Public Companies (Employees Stock Option Scheme) Rules, 2001
Margin Trading Rules, 2004
. Clearing Houses (Registration and Regulation) Rules, 2005
Commodity Exchange and Futures Centracts Rules, 2005
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1.2  Capital Market Overview

During FY2006, the Karachi Stock Ezchange 100 Shares Index (KSE-100 index) increased by 34 percent and
closed at 9,989.41 on 30 June 2006. The KSE-100 index touched its all-time high level of 12,273.77 on 17 April
2006. Mariket capitalisation of the Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE) surged to Ra. 2,801.18 billion (US$ 46.69 billion),
an increase of 35.44 percent over FY2005% market capitalisation of Rs. 2,068.19 billion (US§ 34.47 billion).
For KSE performance at a glance see Table 6.

While the stock markets remained bucyant in Pakistan during the first three quarters of FY20085, the last quarter
witnessed a sharp decline.
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Figure 8: KSE-100 Index and Daily Turnover at KSE (July 2005 — June 2006)
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Figure 10: Traded Value in Ready and Futures Markets at KSE (July 2005 — June 2006)
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73 Performance Review at a Glance

As the apex regulator of the capital markees, the Commission actively pursued its goals to increase investor
confidence, proactively undertake market reform initiatives, and further implement sustainable tisk management
measures to minimize systemic risks. The Commission’s various initiatives and reform programmes contributed
towards a high level of integrity and transparency in terms of price discovery and trade settlement.

Drring the year under review, the Commission explored the implementation of a new tisk management structute,
hased on international best practices, to improve the prevalent one at the exchanges, After a detailed review, a2 new
stucture was proposed on 18 June 2006 that incuded among others, a new netting regime; a margining system
hased on value at risk (VaR) and capital adequacy.

The Commission alse started wotk to introduce a new funding product, the Continuous Funding System (CF5)
Mk 10, 25 a replacement for the existing CFS product.

The detailed proposal on CFS Mk IT was presented to financial institutions and circulated amongst the management
and members of the three stock exchanges, the Central Depository Company of Pakistzn Limited (CDC), and
the Nadonal Clearing Company of Paldstan Limited (NCCPL).

The Commission approved amendments in the Natonal Clearing and Setilement Systermn (NCSS) Regulations
relating to margin financing on 8 September 2005, Minimum long-term credit rating of “BBB” was prescribed
for financial institutions to become and/or contnue as clearing members. The Commission approved amendments
in CDC Regulations in September 2005 wherein the reporting requirement on the part of the issner was reduced
from quarterly to hi-annual basis. To protect investors and curb market abuse, the Propriety Trading Regulations,
2004 were amended in October 2005 to disallow aggregation of orders by brokers. In October 2005 the Comrmnission
approved initdal standardised contract specificadons for ninety days cash settled futures contract. These were
further revised in 2006. The regulations governing CSF contracts for cash were being amended by KSE in light
of the Commission’s revised specifications,
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As a step towards boosting investor confidence, the capital gains tax exemption has been extended till june 2008
and stamp duty on transfer of shates has been deferred for two yeats.

In order to bring the listing regulations of the stock exchanges in line with the Code of Corporate Governance,
the Commission approved amendments ia the listing repulations of KSE and Lahore Stock Exchange (LSE} in
November 2005 such that all listed companies are required to follow the Code of Corporate Governance.
To strengthen marker integtity and minimise systemic risk, the KSE complied with the Commission’s directive and
implemented a pre-trade matgin systern, both in the Ready and Futures Matket, The system allows for checking, at
the time of placing an order, whether the concetned member is within his capital adequacy limit and has sufficient
margin deposits for the execution of trades in the market,

In pursuance of the Commission’s objective to increase market transparency and imptove its sutveillance capacity,
the implementation of a Universal (Client) Identification Number (LTTN) Systemn at the stock exchanges was developed
during the reporting periad. The requisite software and hardware changes were made by the stock exchanges and
NCCPL as per the implementation plan agreed by the stakeholders and the same was implemented with effect from
1 August 2006.

In late 2006, the Commission introduced the procedure whereby {inancial institutions place the requisite margins
directly with the stock exchanges. This initative would go a long way in providing a level playing field to small
brokerage houses and will significantly enhance the capacity of the broker community te trade in the market place,

Dhuring the year under review, the Commission continued its participation as an active member of IOSCO ta promote
a high standard of regulation for just, efficient, and sound markets. As the Chair of the Working Group 3 {Wi3)
of the Emerging Markets Commitiee (EMC) and inline with WiG3%s mandate on “Guidance 1o Emerging Market
Regulators regarding Capital Adequacy requirements for Financial Intermediaries,” the Commission prepared a drafi
report and shared it for comments with all EMC members. At the close of the year under review, the Cormmission
was in the process of scheduling 2 W(G3 meeting in Islamabad for August 2006 to discuss and finalise the draft

report.
7.4 Development of Laws and Regulations

7.41 Amendments in Proprietary Trading Regulations

Far the protection of investors and curbing market abuse, the Proprietary Trading Repulations, 2004 were amended
on 7 October 2005 to diszllow aggregation of orders by brokers. The amount of penalty for violation of the
Regulations was incressed from Rs 25,000 to Rs. 100,000

7.4.2 Amendments in General Rules and Reguladons and Listing Regulations of Stock
Exchanges

To bring the listing regulations of the stock exchanges in line with the Code of Corporate Governance, the
Commission made amendments in the listing repulations of both KSE and LSE in November 2005, In order to
broad-base the equity ewnership and enhance the quantum of public oifering, the minimuem paid-up capital for
listing at KSE and L5E was increased to Rs. 200 million and allocation of share capital to overseas Paldstanis was
restricted to 20 percent of the public offer.

To further protect the interest of the general public, allocatdon of shares to sponsors in excess of 25 percent and
allocation of shates under pre-Initial Public Offer (IPO) placement including employees of the companies/group
companies ete,, would not be saleable for a petiod of six menths from the date of public subsctiption, This would
prevent the pre TPO investors from selling the shares in bulk immediately after the closing of public subscription,
resulting in a decrease in the price of shares.
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Moteovet, at LSE, the offer of shates to the general public would not be less than Rs, 100 million ot 25 percent
of the share capital of the company, whichever is higher, while at KSE, if the capital of the company was Rs, 500
million or less, then at least 50 percent of such capital would be offered to the public, If the capital was in excess
of Rs, 500 million, the public offer would be at least Rs, 250 million or 25 percent of the capital, whichever was

higher,

Certain amendments were also approved in the listing regulations of KSE through which listed companies were
required to provide information relating wo free float of shares on a quarterly basis.

7.4.3 Amendments in CDC Regulations

On 29 September 2005, the Commission approved amendments in CDC Regulations relating to “Registrar/ Transfer
Agent Reconciliation Process” in which the teperting requirement on the part of the issuer was reduced from
quartetly to six-menthly basis instead of annually as proposed by the CDC,

On 5 April 20046, the Commission initiated substantial reductions in Central Depository System’s (CDS) tadff
structure, The reduced cost of transacting securities would encourage investors” participation in the capital market,
The custody fee was reduced by 50 percent and the transaction fee by 16,67 percent, Accordingly, the revised
custody fee on shares became 0,015 percent pet anmum and on Term Finance Cettificates (TFC), Bonds, and Units
hecame 0.0125 petcent per annum, The transaction fee for Investor Account Setvice was teduced to Rs, 0.0040
and for other than Investor Account Service was reduced to Rs. 0.0020,

The Commission also reduced the initfal deposit fee payable by the Government of Pakistan to the CDC for the
ptivatisation of state-owned enierprises,

744 Amendments in NCSS Regulations

On 8 September 2005, the Commission approved amendments in the NCSS regulations relating to matgin financing,
Furthermore, 2 minimum long term credit rating of “BBB” was prescdbed for finandial institutions to become
and/ or continue as cleating membhers, In May 2006, the Commission approved amendments in NCSS Regulations
relaved to admission of NCSS as a cleating member, Accordingly, the minimum long term credit rating was specified
as “A” and the minitmm shott tern eredit rating for admission as a cleating member was specified as “A3” for
banking companies, investinent companies, and mutual funds.

7.4.5 Fees and Penalties under the Cleating Houses (Registration and Regulation)
Rules, 2005

The Policy Board had specified initial registration and renewsl fee for a Clearing House in its meeting on 13

October 2005, The amount of penalty for contravention of the Clearing Houses (Registration and Regulation)
Rules, 2005 was specified at an amount up to Rs, 100,000,

7.5 Development of New Products

7.51 CFSMkII

The CFS was introduced with the promulgation of Continueus Funding Systern Regulations on 22 August 2005
to teplace the Catty-over Trading (COT) /badla systetn, The CFS was inttoduced as an intetim measute to enhance
the level of liquidity in the matket pending development of altetnative safe and modetn medes of leverage
financing, The CFS Regulations provided for a review of CFS phase-out after the reporting perioad,
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In anticipation of the phase-out, the Commission commenced work on a new product—CES Mk II—two adequately
address the biases inherent in the existing model of CFS that propagated systemic tisks and precluded the formation
of a level playing field for all market pardcipants.

Salient features of CFS Mk IT Include the following:

*  Financiers would provide funds directly to the market and not through brokers;

= CFS financed securities to be kept in 2 separate, blocked CDC account (this has alteady been implemented
for the curtent CFS system);

*  separate CFS Mk II protection fund;

*  available funding certain for ninety days;

*  CFS Mk II matgins to be kept separate from other markets;

= costof finance to be determined through the forces of demand and supply;

* reduction of finander’s risk - quantum of funding te Increase substandally;

*  competition between financiers to achieve full disbursement would reduce financing cost;

*  all CFS transactions to be carrded out on a matching trade basis through the NCCPL to ensure transparency,
wide availability and equitable disttbution of finances;

*  steady and certaio source of liquidity at competitive rates; and

*  market systemic fdsk due to netting across markets will be removed as Ready and CFS markets will be
sepatated and no netting will be allowed hetween the two.

CFS Mk IT would allow a level playing fleld for all market participants. It would also allow for ease of transactions
and hassle-free execution whereby financial institations could provide financing to the stock market directly through
the stock exchanges’ trading terminals. Moreover, a steady and assured source of liquidity at competitive rates would
be available to all market players causing overall market activity to increase.

In this regard, the Commission held numerous discussions with stakeholders and a comprehensive proposal on CFS
Mk 1T was presented to financial institntions and the SBP on 29 Aptl 2006, It was also circulated to the management
and members of the three stock exchanges, the CDC and the NCCPL. On 23 June 2006, the Commission constituted
a high-powered Committee under the chairmanshitp of Mr. Shaukat Tarin and consisting of representatives of the
Commission, the three stock exchanges, Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan, various brokers, and bankers to
address the different matters relating to CFS Mk IT and to prepare a roadmap for implementation.

7.5.2 Cash Settled Futures Contracts

The Commission approved standardised fututes contract specifications fot ninety days cash settled futates contract.
The specifications for cash settled futures contract included, iwerafe, the contract code, size, contract petiod, position
limits, and settlement mechanism. The regulations governing cash settled fututes contract for ninety days are being
finalised by KSE in light of the Commission’s observation. The KSE Board of DHrectors decided in its meeting held
on 11 May 2006 to start 30 days cash settled futures contracts initially in one scrip i.e. Pakistan Telecommunication
Company Limived.

7.5.3 Free Float Index

To ensute that the KSE-100 index represents a fair picture of the matket, the Comimission advised the KSE to
review and examine inmternational best practices on the construction of market indices based on parameters such
as fiee float rather than the mumber of outstanding shares.

In this regard, the Commission approved a revised concept paper for the KSE-30 Sensitve Index. The requisite

amendments have been carried out in the KSE software to introduce KSE-30 index based on a free float from 1
September 2006,
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7.6  Regulatory Actions

7.6.1 Risk Management

In order to strengthen market inteptity and minirise systetnic risk, the Comission introduced the following risk
management measures duting the petiod under review:

{B Pre-Trade Margin Verification Systemn

The Commission directed the KSE to implement 4 pre-trade margin verification systern to ensure that brokers
do not exceed the capital adequacy limit and deposit requirements. The KSE implemented pre-trade margin
vetification system in the Ready Market on 12 September 2005 and in the Futures Market on 18 October 2005.
The system is pre-emptive in that it checks at the time of placing an order whether the concetned member will
be within his capital adequacy limit after emecution of the order and has sufficient margin depasits for the execution
of trades in the market

(i) Exit Mechanism - Circuit Breakers

It was observed that situations had emerged in the past when investors were unable to exit the market due to the
lock-in effect of circuit breakers. Many irvestors had expressed concern on the non-availability of exit opportunities
in the event that share prices remained at the circuit breaker levels. The Commission felt that there was a need
to provide exit options to irvestors. In this regard, the Commission approved an exit mechanism as proposed by
KSE on 6 December 2005 for immediate implementation. As par this mechanism, the eircuit brealers apply at 5
petcent on day one, 10 percent on day two and 20 percent on day three. Subsequent events, however, proved that
20 percent drop in the market was untenable and therefore the circuit breskers were revised to 5 percent up and
5 percent down ot Re. 1 whichever is lower

The Commission also began the process of studying vatious internadonal models/practices in relation to market
halts based on free-float indices. Reform would be intreduced after studying the working of free float index -
KSE-30.

(iii) Proposed New Risk Management System

The Commission reviewed in detail the existing risk management framewotk and proposed 2 new risk management
struciure on 18 June 2006 designed to improve risk management at the stock exchanges, bringing them in accordance
with international best practices. This new risk management structure includes the following:

= Resttictions on netting actoss markets, scross clients and across settlement periods;
*  Mark-to-market loss collection and profit distribution;

*  VaR based marpining system;

= VaR based mechanism for valuation of securities eligible to be held as security;

*  New capital adequacy regime;

*  Position limits;

*  Special marging;

The stock exchanges were advised to review these risk management regimes and furnish their comments and
observations to the Commission.
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(v UIN

The tationale behind the UIN was to significantly enhanee risk management at the client level and to improve the
surveillance and monitoring capacity of the Commission and stock exchanges, The TIIN would result in a more
transparent market with increased investor protecton as it created a traceable link between the orders executed
through different traders and distinguishes proprictary trades from client trades. In this regard, the Commission
apptoved the procedutes for implementation of UIN in consultation with the stock exchanges, the CIDC, and the
NCCPL on 3 April 2006,

'The stock exchanges, in coordination with CDHE/NCCPL have made changes in the recuisite automated trading
system for implementation of UIN, As a first step, insertion of client code at pre-trade level was made mandatory
from 5 June 2006. Subsequent to the clese of the year under review, the UIN at pre-trade level was successfully
launched at the three stock exchanges on 1 August 2006,

7.6.2 Market Governance and Transparency
(i Regulations for Good Governance

In crder to sirengthen governance, enhance transparency, and reduce conflict of interest on the Board of the stock
exchanges, the Commission made regulations for the stock exchanges on 2% November 2005 to provide for the
clection of the Chairman of the Beard of Directors from amongst the non-member directors. The regulations
stipulated that the Managing Director i3 not permitted to participate in the election for the Board’s Chairman.

In compliance with the said Regulations, the Board of Directors of KSE, LSE, and ISE elected non-member
Chairmen on the Boards of Directors for the year 2006.

(ii) Disclosure in Futures Market

After leoking at various practices from munerous international jutisdictons, the Commission directed the exchanges
to disseminate names of the top members in terms of open interest in futures without indicating whether the open
interest is that of sale or purchase through their respective websites. This was implemented from 235 June 2005.

(iii) Standardisation of CDC Sub-Account Opening Form

The Commission had observed on several oocasions that the forms used by brokers for opening CDC sub-accounis
varied considerably in their terms and conditions and were, on occasion, to the disadvantage of the sub-account
holders. To ensure adequate protection of the rights and obligations of both the sub-account holders as well as the
brokers, it was felt that a standardised account opening form would be developed and made mandatory. In this
regard, CDC wras requested to develop account opening forms for individuals and institutions in light of the
Commission’s observations and send the same for fnal approval of the Commission

7.6.3 Issue of Capital

The Capital Issues Wing (CIW) deals with the approval of prospectuses and offer for sale documents for public
offer of securities. The prospectus/offer for sale document of any company inviting public subscription of its
securities under the Companies Ordinance is required to be approved by the Commission prior to its issue, circulation,
and publication. The CIW also processes matters regarding issuance of commercial papers, repistration of SPVs,
applicatons for relaxation from requirements relating to the public offering of securities and matters regarding
making of fictitious applications and submission of more than one application by a single applicant for subscriptdon
of shares,
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Duting the year under review, seven companies issued or offered shares to the public as compared to twelve in
FY2005. New capital of Rs, 9.60 billion was listed in FY2006 as compared to Rs. 24,33 billion in FY2005, Listing
of capital of Rs. 24,33 billion during 2005 was primarily due to listing of Pakistan Petroleum Limited with Rs,
6.8 billion share capital, Kot Addu Power Company Limited with Rs, 8.8 billion share capital, and United Bank
Limited with Rs, 5.1 billion share capital, Similarly, cight companies issued debt instruments, i.e, TFCs to the public,
as compated to fourteen in the preceding year, TFCs of Rs 10,505 billion wete listed duting FY2006 as compared
to Rs, 16,250 billicn in FY 2005,

@)  Share Capital
Of the seven equity issues duting FY2006, six wete fresh through which 185,10 million ondinaty shares amounting
te Rs. 2,326.5 million {inclusive of pretmium amount of Rs. 475.5 million) wete offered to the general public, Of

the total seven issues, five were oversubsctbed while two were undersubscribed. The details are given in Figure
11 and Table 7.

Figure 11: Public Issues During the FYs 1998-2006
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(if) Redeemable Capital

Durting the year under review, eight companies made a public offer of TFCs involving an aggregate amount of
Rs. 9,975 billion, An ameunt of Rs. 10,505 hillion (inclusive of green-shoe opticn) was raised of which Rs, 7,515
billion was through private placetnent and Rs. 2,99 billion was from the peneral public, Of these eight TFC issues,
three were undersubscribed.

Figure 12 gives a compatative presentation of TFCs raised over the last ten-year petiod,
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Figure 12: TFC Issues Floated During the FYs 1996 — 2006
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(iii)  Section 18-A of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

During the year under review, ordets in tespect of thirty-five cases of multiple applications under Section 18-A of
the Secutities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 wete passed and ate available on the Commission’s wehsite,

(iv)  Takeovers

To protect the interest of minofity sharehelders and to discourage viclation of the regulatory requirements in respect
of substantial acquisition of shates and takeover of companies, action under the Listed Companies {(Substantial
Acquisition of Voting Shares and Take-overs) Ordinance, 2002 {Takeover Ordinance) was taken in the case of
Gammon Pakistan Limited whereby all the directots of the company were directed vide order dated 28 October
2005 not to restrain the acquirer from exercising voting fights in light of his ewnership of 806,973 shares.

Further, in the matter of Trust Leasing and Investment Bank Limited, the acquirers and manager to the offer were
given a stern watning to be cateful in futute and to comply with all the tequitements of the Takeover Ordinance,

7.6.4 Registration of Brokers and Agents

In otder to have a direct regulatory nesxus, Brokers and Agents are required to be tegistered with the Commission
under the Brokers and Agents Registration Rules, 2001,

()  Brokets

Duting the year undet review, 37 brokets changed theit status from individual to corpotate entities and seven new
members of the exchanges wete registered as brokets with the Commission. As a result of these new registtations
the total numher of repistered brokers has increased from 304 to 311 as of 30 June 2006, This is a healthy sign for
the stock market as corporatisation and institutionalisation of hrokers would improve governance practices in the
brokerage business. The details of registration are given below:
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Total Number of Addidon Duting Cancellatio Total Number of
Registered Brokets the Year g‘;“m‘lﬂ - Registered Brokers
(30 June 2005) it (30 June 2006)

304 44 37 3

Classificatiofs of brokers into cotporate and individual broker at the stock exchange level are given below.

. Percentage of Brokers
Stock Exchange Corporate Brokers | Individuals Total 4t each Exchange
ESE 119 3 170 35%
LSE 57 37 24 30%
ISE 44 3 47 15%
Total 220 91 nm 100%
Percentage of Total Brokers 1% 29% 100%
(i)  Agents
Following ate details of agents as of 30 June 2006:
Total Number | Additlons Cancellation Total
Stock of Reglatered | Dyring the Surtender of Numnber of Percentage of
Exchange Agenta Aais Cettificate of Agents Total Agents
(30 June 2005} Registration (30 June 2006)
KSE 105 132 40 197 54%
1SE 54 4% 18 95 31%
ISE 20 13 24 15 5%
Total 195 194 82 307 100

(iii)  Enforcement of Section 5A

The robust performance of the stock exchanges has attracted substantial investment from all over Pakistan. As a
result, many stockbrokers of the exchanges have opened their branches in various cities of the country after getting
themselves registered and completing the required formalities to facilitate local investors. Howewer, the Commission
got reports from various sources that various unanthorized brokers/agents were dealing in the securities business
in vatious towns and cities in viclation of Section 5-A of the Secutities and Exchange Otdinance, 1969.

To curb the activities of these illegal and unauthorised entties, a comprehensive campaign began during the year
under review to protect the interest and confidence level of investors and the general public.

A detailed circular dated 6 January 2006 was issued to all the exchanges of the country with the instructions to
notify all their Members to operate branch office(s) only after duly informing the exchanges and in strict compliance
with applicable rules and regulations. Membets were also advised to refain from dealing with such illegal funanthorised
brokerage houses/branches and inform the exchange and the Commission if any such entities came to their
knowledpe. The exchanpes wete required to advertise in newspapers - especially in the cites of Faisalabad, Multan,
Bahawalpur, Rahimyar Khan, Peshawar and any other deemed fit - warning the general public to refrain from
dealing with such elements. Moreover, they are to have regulations for registration of member’s branches and
conduct of business. The exchanges were also advised to establish a dedicated helpline to disseminate information
to the general public about the status of the brokerage houses and their authorised branches and widely publicise
this facility in the national media.

During FY2006 2 total of nineteen unregistered/illegal hroketage entities were teported to the Commission. A

thorough investipation was made in all cases and subsequent action was taken under the applicable securities laws,
rules and regulations, The status of the above cases s as under:
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Number of Tllegal Brokerage Houses/Branches reported 19
Prohibitory Order/Final order Issued 10
Warning letter issued 1

Show Cause Notices/Prohibirory Order issued
Action not initiated due to lack of documentary evidence
Hgouses/Branches found legal /registered

LT o ]

7.7 Monitoring and Enforcement

7.71 Matket Monitoring and Surveillance

The Market Monitoring and Surveillance Wing (MSW) is responsible for detecting unfair market practices and
adherence vo laws, rules and regulations of the Exchanges. The M5W keeps a close watch on price movements of
scps, monitors abnormal price fluctuations and high turnover, detects cases of market manipulation and insider
trading, and conducts detailed investigations for such cases. The MSW alsc carries out detailed analysis of systemic
risk indicators and undertakes research to analyse and introduce steps to further strengthen the risk management
framework,

Druring the petiod under review, MSW continued its efforts to ensure market fairness and actively pursued and
implemented measures relevant to strengthening the risk management framework. On occasions that MSW detected
suspicious trading activities as a result of its surveillance, it conducted investigations and vndertook enforcement
actions against the responsible participants. Details of actions taken by the MSW during the reporting pericd are
given in Table 8.

MSW also adopted a number of measores to strengthen market integrity through effective enforcement practices;
a number of cases relating to market abuse are presently under investigation.

7.7.2 Investor Complaints Wing

Section 20{5)(b) of the SECP Act entrusts the Commission with the responsibility of maintaining confidence of
investors in the securities market by ensuring adequate protection for such investors, In an effort to ensure investor
protection and provide relief to aggrieved investors, the Investor Complaints Wing (ICW) works in dose coordination
with the stock exchanges 50 as to investigate illegal practice of market intermediaries. It also exercises vigilance over
stock exchanges for expediticus and efficient dispute resclution.

In case of defaulting members, it works diligently in monitoring the default procedures and practices of stock
exchanges 30 as to provide relief, within minimum possible time, to investors aggrieved by such defanlts.
Moreovert, in cases that warrant investigations, ICW appoints investigating officers to nndertake detailed investigations
and crders are passed on these cases based on the findings of the investigating officers after affording opportunity
of hearing to the parties.

In case of detection of some lag or delay, the Commission seeks explanation from the stock exchanges and efforts
are made in accordance with law to expedite the marter by helping remove any hindrances. Further, all the awards
passed by an arbitrator appointed by KSE are also sent to the Commission for information. Though the Commission
does net invelve itself directly in resclution of disputes, a proper track of complaints is nevertheless kept and
vigilance is maintained. In addition to this, the Commission guides the investors at every step and facilitates the
resolution of their grievances.

The statistics of complaints received and handled by the ICW for the period July 2005 — June 20006 is given in Table
E
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()  Complaints Handled Directly by ICW

Although the Arbitration regulations of the exchanges specify the course of action to be followed in disputes
between brokers and investors, the Commission may directdy take up any matter where it observes an apparent
breach of laws falling under its purview or deems it appropriate in the interest of the investor. However, this only
happens in cases where priwa facie evidence is available or facts of the case are such that the matter requires urgent
action and/or the issue may have domine effect on the market.

During the year under review, the ICW passed twelve arders to dispose off the complaints against stock exchange
members. (4 these, three were challenged before the Appellate Bench of the Commission and cne order, wherein
member’s certificate of registration as broker was revoked, was challenged before the honourable High Court of
Sindh. Proceedings of appeals filed against the orders of the ICW before the Appellate Bench were pending with
the Appellate Bench at the end of the reporting period, whereas the Commission’s order was suspended by the
honourable High Court of Sindh and a final decision was still avwaited.

(if) Frequently Asked Questions

Duting the reporting period, the ICW prepared a comprehensive list of Frequently Asked Questions for the
assistance of genersl public and investors regarding complaints. These are available on the Commission’s website.

17.3 Inspection Wing

Durng the year uader review, the Commission continued its endeavours to check market manipulation activitdes
by securities market participants and enforce compliance of securities laws. In this regard, the Inspection Wing
conducted inspections and targeted enquiries/investigations into the affairs of a number of brokerage houses,
detail of which are given as undes:

»  The Inspection Wing conducted a number of inspections and six inspection repotts were finalised. After
providing the brokers with an oppottunity of hearing, as envisaged under the law, compliance letters were
issued to the respective brokers for taking corrective measures and rectifying the defaults observed,
Follow-up inspections would be conducted to evalnate the level of compliance by the said brakers, failing
which cognisance of the same would be taken in accordance with the law

*  An inquiry was conducted under Section 21 of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 19569 into the
affairs of 2 brokerage house to check possible defaults of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
{Bstablishmenit and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules). In another enquiry under the same section,
the Inspection Wing undertook joint investigation with the other department to lock into the quality of
assets of the broker as an entity and possible viclations of securities laws, The report on the findings
was prepared and action on the same was underway as per the law

To ascertain the reasons for market volatility in March 2005 and in continuation of the taskforce report, the SMD
obtained KATS data from KSE for the month to check for any possible market abuse. Analysis of the data revealed
that trades were executed in such a manner that buyet(s) and seller(s) were the same thereby depicting no change
of beneficial ownership. The possibility of price manipulation and for brokers benefiting from some unfair
advantage could not be ruled out. Such a pattern of trading by brokers is not in conformity with secutities laws
and such practices could not be allowed as these have 2 negative impact on the market,

The Commission took action against brokers under the Brokers and Agents Registraton Rules, 2001, for indulging
in unfair trade practices by failing to exercise due skill, care, and diligence in the conduct of business. Show cause
notices were issued to ninety-seven brokers of the cxchanges and, after following due process, ninety-three were
penalised while four were issued warnings to be careful in future.

In connection with the market volatility of June 2006, preliminary investigations were conducted into the business
affairs of sixty-two brokerage houses of the exchanges. On the basis of these findings, professional services of
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four CA firms were engaged for further investipations in the matter, Under Section 21 of the Secutities and Exchange
Ordinance, 1969, these firms were appointed as Enquiry Officers to probe into the business affairs of thirty-six
brokers of KSE and twenty-six brokers of LSE. The enquiry was in progress at the end of the reporting pedod.

To furthet improve brokers’ complance with the applicable secutities laws, rules and tegulations of the Commission
and the exchanges, a system audit of the business affaits of the brokerage house was made compulsoty under the
Regulations Governing System Audit of the Brokers of the Exchanges, 2004, ‘To ensure maximum compliance with
the system audit reports, the Inspection Wing began analysis of the contents of each system audit report of brokers
from the current year, In this regard, 228 system audit reports were analysed, of which eighteen showed full
compliance by the brokers, For the temaining, enforcement letters highlighting the non-compliant areas wete sent.
to tespective exchanges for further necessary action under the said regulations, At the end of the reporting period,
LSE and ISE had tzken action against fotty-nine brokers; no enfotcement status had been submitted by the KSE
as this issue was pending with its Board of Directors as at the close of the year under review.

The Inspection Wing also monitored compliance by companies and stock exchanges in terms of companies’ voluntary
delisting from the exchanges and related matters such as handling and tesolving complaints ledged by
complainants/shareholders regarding purchase of shates by the majotity sharcholders of companies that opt for
voluntary delisting, While it is the responsibility of the stock exchanges to ensure compliance with Section 32-A
of the listing regulations, the Inspection Wing also proactively reviewed the delisting process and addressed any

gomplaint lodged by the company against decisions of the exchanges, During the year under review, cases of fourteen
companies telating to the buy-back of shates/delisting of companics wete reviewed by the Wing,

7.74 Beneficial Ownership

Te protect the interests of small shareholdets and investots, the tetms of Section 224 of the Companies Ordinance
prohihit directors, chief executives, managing agents, chief accountants, and secretaries of listed companies who
are beneficial owners of any of their equity secutities, and every person whe is directly or indirectly the beneficial
owner of maore than 10 percent of such securities from retaining the amount of profit made by them on account
of transactions made within a petied of six months, In compliance with the said provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, these people ate requitred to tendet the said amount of gain to the issuing company of the Comtrission,
as the case may be. For the putpose of finding such cases where tenderable pain has accrued, the returns of beneficial
ownetship, filed in compliance with Section 222 of the Companies QOrdinance, are examined,

During the period under review the Commission received 2,392 returns of beneficial ownership, Every listed
company is requited ie file annual retutns on Form-A, the prescribed additional informatien and a soft copy of
list of its membets, in accordance with S,R.0, No. 1014/(1)86 dated 12 November 1986 and cireular No. 6 of 2001,

(i Enforcement Actions

The position of tenderable gain cases as of 30 June 2006 is summarised below:

Stats No. of Cases
Order passed under Section 224 of the Companies Ordinance 3
Amount of gain tendered in favour of the Commission in response te Orders and letters 8
In process 3
Proceedings dropped 2
Pending with Lahore High Coutt, Lahore 1
Pending with Supreme Court of Pakistan 2
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(i) Administrative Appeals

Bestway {Holdings) Limited, a beneficial owner of Bestway Cement Limited filed appeal against the order of
Executive Ditector (SMD) before the Appellate Bench of the Commission, which was pending on the dose of the
petiad undet review,

Dutring the pefiod under review, the Commission filed two appeals in the Supreme Coutt of Pakistan against the
Order of Lahore High Court, Lahore, passed in two different appeals filed by First Capital Securities Corporation
Limited vs. SECE,

7.8 Developmental Activities

781 Derivatives Committee

The Commission constituted a Derivatives Committee to look into the feasihility of an Exchange-Traded Derivatives
Market in Pakistan. The Committee submitted its report in February 2006. It recommended the introducton of
exchange-traded derivatives in Pakistan and identified cermin pre-requisites such as adequate legal, regulatory, and
governance infrastructure and oversight to be in place. The Committee also provided a readmap for introduction
of derivatives in the market and their future development.

The report was forwarded to various smkeholders for comments, The KSE proposed a phased approach such that
Fututes Conttacts of multiple dutaticns would be introduced in the fitst phase, index fututes and options in the
secotid phase, and stock and index options i the third phase.

At the end of the reporting peried, the Commission was preparing a roadmap for implementing the recommendations
of the Derivatives Committee along with the supgestions received from KSE.

7.82 NCCPL

While tisk management is ptimadly the responsihility of the stock exchanges, in accordance with international best
practices it needs to be transfetred to an independently manaped cleatinghouse, i.e, NCCPL. It is imporrant that
the NCCFL be adequately capitalised before it assumes tisk management functions from the exchanges as it would
require sipnificant expenditure for the putchase of risk management infrastructure — software, hardware, and funds
for the Clearing Protection Fund.

In this regard, the Commission, in consultation with MCCPL, prepared a roadmap and is working towards restructuring
NCCPL te facilitate the transfer of risk management system. This, interalia, includes independent management of
NCCPL, restructuring of the governance and capital structure of the company, development of an effective risk
management sysvem, and unification of the Clearing Heuse Protection Pund into Setilement Guarantee Fund.

Recenty, the Commission approved the appointonent of an independent CECQ of NCCFPL. The NCCPL, under the
Cleadng Houses (Registration and Repulation} Rules, 2005, has set up a clearing and settlement fund with an initial
conttibution of Rs, 100 million, The fund would he utilised to satisfy clearing membets” obligation towards the
cleating house in case of default by any member,
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7.8.3 NCEL

Amendments introduced in Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 vide the Finance Act 2006 provided the
Commission with interimn legislation to govern NCEL. Extensive reviews and regular dialogues were undertaken
during the reporting period to ascertain and ensure the efficiency of various functdons to be performed by the
NCEL.

NCEI. organised the st Annual Pakistan Derivatives Conference called “Demystifying Derivatives.” Under the
Commission’s recommendation, NCEL undertook special programmes on investor education and seminars were
conducted in Karachi, Lahote and Islamabad to enhance the knowledge base of market participants and convey
the basics about fututes markets and furates trading. NCEL was also encoutaged to undertake consultancy projects
like providing VaR based risk management systems ta the stock exchanges.

7.8.4 Corporate Debt Market

The Commission formed a working group on “Diebt Market and Commercial Paper™ to identify impediments to
the development of the debt market and to recommend appropriate steps for promoting issuance and market-
makiog of money market instruments. The working group comprised of members from SBP, the Commissien,
commercial hanks acting as ptimary dealers of government securities, issuers of secutities, consultants to various
cotpotate debt and commercial papet issues, KSE, CDC, and the NCCPL. On the recommendation of the wotking
group, KSE reduced the mazimurn initial listing fee for debt instruments from Rs. 500,000 to Rs. 100,000. The
working group also recommended the following amendrments in the Stamp Act, 1899, which have been forwarded
ter the Chief Commissioner of Islamabad Capital Territory, and Boards of Revenue in Punjab, Sindh, Balochistan
and NWTEFFP:

*  The stamp duty rate of 0.05 percent or Rs. 1,000,000, whichever is lower, on first issue of debentures,
bonds including participation term cerdficates, TFCs or any other instrument of redeemable capital (other
than commercial papet) at the time of registration instead of the existing rate of 0.15 percent.

= Stamp duty of 0.02 percent per annum ie. linked to the matutity period of the commercial paper or Rs.
100,000 whichever is lower upon issuance of commercial papers instead of the existing rate of 0.2 percent.

The Commission alse constituted a Debt Capital Market Committee headed by the Chairman SECP, for the
development and prometion of debt capital market in Pakistan, The committee comprises of representatives from
commercial banks, investment banks, mutual funds, issuers and lawyers and has been tasked to idendfy the issues
hindering the growth of the debt market and to make recommendations for its development. The committee will
send its final recommendations to the Commission for necessaty action with relevant authotities.

7.8.53 I0SCO

The Commission continued its participation as an active member of IOSCO to promote high standards of regulation
in crder to maintain just, efficient, and sound markets. In its capacity as the Chair of WG3 and in line with WG3's
mandate on “Guidance o Emerping Market Begulators regarding Capital Adequacy Requirements for Financial
Intermediaries”, the Commission drafted a questicnnaire for crcnlation amengst all WG3 members for their
comments and conducted extensive analytical research, After receiving comments, a draft report was prepared and
shared with all EMC members. Subsequently, the Commission also tock steps te schedule a W3 meeting to be
held in Islarnabad in Angust 2006 to discuss and finalise the recornmendations of the draft report.
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7.9 Annual Plan

7.9.1 Work in Progress
(i) Securities Act

In light of present-day national and international market trends and products, the existing Secudtes and Ezchange
Ordinance, 1969 is a considerably outdated legisladon with several shortcomings that need to be addressed. Despite
the numetous amendments made to the Ordinance over time, thete is a need to update it to bring it in line with
cuttrent matket realities and needs.

Dhaing the reporting period, the Securities Act was drafted in line with IOSCOYs Principles of Securities Regulation,
which are an international benchmark for effective and efficient regulatdon of the securities industry and enhancing
investor protection. The Commission’s poal is to create a regulatory framework which is complete, comprehensive,
and adequately caters to the needs of an emerging market. Further refinements of the Act will continue during
FY2007.

{ii) Fatures Trading Act

To introduce detivative products and futures trading, a comprehensive regulatory infrastructure is required to be
cstablished through legislation so as b0 ensure the effectiveness and enforceability of ftures and derivative transactions.
The legislatdon must also provide for a centralised clearing system as well as recognise the system and the clearing
and settlement concepts that it embodies,

Duting the year under review, the Commission prepated a draft Futures Trading Act with the assistance of external
consultants provided under the FMGP. In addition to providing a regulatory framework for futures trading, the Act
would accommodate the issuance of more specific rules, regulations, guidelines, and formats. The Commission
would subsequently issue Rules under the Futures Trading Act, which would support and allew establishment of
standards for ascertaining the financial strength and investment appetite of potential clients and making them
sufficiently cognisant of the risks of forures trading,

A draft Futures Trading Act, submitted for apptroval to the Ministry of Finance in December 2005, is pending
promulgation,

{iif) Demutualisation of Stock Exchanges

The Commissicn is vigorously pursuing the precess of demutualisation and is maintaining clese liaison with stock
cxchanges and other stakeholders to ddve the process, In this regard, the Commission infdated a consultatve process
with all stakeholders and arranged various meetings with the stock exchanges to discuss the medalides and
implementation of demutualisation and possible integration soon after the submission of the report by the experts
commitiee on demutualisation and integration, The stock exchanges evinced firm commitment to support the
Commission’s efforts in this regard.

The Commission and KSE signed a Mol on critical issues for demutnalisation on 28 January 2006. The Mol,
interalia, covers matters relating to issuance and transfer of trading rights, the meratornium perdod, Code of Governance,
issuance of shares, transfer of assets, sharcholding structure, and composition of Board of Directors, As per the
Mo, the KSE will be converted into a public unlisted company and 100 percent of its share capital will be {ssued
to the members in accordance with the valuation cartied cut within six month of enactment of the Act, Within

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan = 78

=]
(=]
(=]
o
-
o
o
o
Lt
o

ANNUAL




«w
(]
=
o
b—
o
o
o
k]
o

ANNUAL

eighteen months of the enactment of the Act, membets shall disinvest 60 percent of theit shates to institudons
and general public and list the exchange. The shareholding of KSE shall be as follows: 40 percent brokets, 40 percenit
financial instimtions, and 20 percent general public.

In consultaton with the FMGY consultants, the Commission prepared the proposed governance and regulatory
structures of a demutualised stock exchange.

The Commission alse drafted a mechanism to address coaflict of jnterest in a demutualised stock exchange.

During the year under review, the Commission proposed amendments to the Securities and Exchange Ordinance,
1269 in order to effect demuiualisation, Pursuant ic these amendments, the stock exchanges shall stand corporatised
and demutualised with effect from 31 Decembet 2006 ot from such later date as may be specified by the Commission,
in such manner and in accordance with such conditicns as may be presctibed under secondary legislation. As per
the Moll with the KSE the deadline for demutualisation has now been extended to 31 December 2007,

(iv) Formuylation of Rules and Regulations
Preliminary deaft of the following Rules has been prepared:

*  Bankers t an Issue Rules;

*  Debenture Trustee Rules;

*  Balloter and Securities Transfer Agent Rules; and

*  Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and Takeovers) Rules,

These would he notified after necessary review and due deliberation by the Commission,
V) Investor Awateness

The Commission and the CDC conducted road shows as patt of continued efforts towards investor education and
awateness. From July to December 2005, two road shows were conducted in Quetta and Multan respeciively, while
a third was held in Sukkur in January 2006. Similar road shows will be held in Sahiwal, Faisalabad, Gujranwala and
other places in FY2007,

7.9.2 Future Plans and Actions
The SMID plans to catry cut the following activities duting the coming year:
(EH] CFS Mk II

SMD will continue wotk on the new CFS Mk IT that will adequately address the hiases in the existing model of CFS
that propagates undue systemic risks and precludes the formation of a level playing field for all market participants,

(id) Iraplementation of Stock Lending and Borrowing Mechanism

Subsequent to the promulgation of Securities Lending and Borrowing (SLB) Regulations, the Cormmission asked
the CDC to prepare an implementation schedule for SLB facility through CIDC, In February 2006, the CDC submitted
a report on the objectives, demand, and model of SLB, According to the CDC, the report was prepared kecping
in view international best practices, local demand and supply of SLB, and the informal feedback from vatous market
pariicipants, The CDC Repott was sent to the stock exchanges on 28 April 2006 for their comtments befote futther
action,
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Legislation

Finalisation of a Securities Act to replace the existing Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 196%
Finalisation of Futures Trading Act and supplementing Rules

Investor Education

ERoad shows for invester education
Introduction of focused investor awareness and education prtograms

SMD has also implemented the following teforms as at February 01, 2007,

)

(vi)

Risk Management

Margin system based on VaR

Netting not to be allowed across markets and across settlement periods
Mark-to-market loss collection and profit distribution

Veluation of secutities eligible to be held as secutity

Position limits in each martket

Intreduction of special margins

Client level netting is due to be implemented with effect from 1 March 2007
Introduction of new capital adequacy regime

Role in Global Matket

Finalisation of dtaft report on capital adequacy, as part of the mandate of WG3 of the EMC of IOSCG.
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Specialised Companies Division

OBJECTIVE: (i} To develop and strengthen NBECr by ensuring a comprebensive repulatory framework and ify proaciive
enforcement throuph sustained monitoring te protect the interests of all stakeholders; (i) ¥ build a framenork for occupational
saving sehemes Hhat premotes sational savings and provide for refivement bevfsly and ensure s regulation; and (#5) v develup
nei financial products designed te strengthen and diversify the financial secior and enbance foreign divect investmens,

8.1 Operational Structure
8.11 Structure

The Specialized Companies Division (SCD) is primarily responsible for regulating and monitoring NBFCs,
mutual funds, Modarabas, and private pensions. Its core objective is to provide a conducive regulatory environment
to foster growth in the non-banking financial sector, safeguard the financial system, and protect the interests
of shareholders, depositors, and pensioners under the relevant laws. The SCD has been organized into the

following segments.
{i) Non-banking Finance Companies Department

The Non-Banking Finance Companies Department (NBFCD} is responsible for licensing and regulating entities
under its purview and ensuring their enforcement and compliance with applicable laws. These include NBFCs
- compatiies engaged in the business of leasing, investment finance services, discounting setvices, housing
finance services, venture capital investment, asset management services, investment advisory services, Modarabas,
and Modaraba Management Companies (MMC). The NBFCD consists of the following Wings:

= NBFCs

= Modaraba

=  REITs and New Initiatives
= Monitoring and Inspection

{ii) Pensions Wing

A separate Pensions Wing was forrmed within the S3CID last year for regulation of private pensions in the country:
While the Wing would initially be implementing and administering the valuntary pension system (VPS), it would,
on a longer term, devise a regulatory framework for existing oecupational pensions and saving schemes as well.

8.1.2 Management Team

The SCD is headed by Commissioner Mr. Salman Ali Shaikh. He is a senior emerging markets banker having
over thirty-two years experience with various leading banks in the country including Citibank. He was also the
Managing Director of an investment bank and part of the senior management tearn that led the turnaround
of Habib Bank Limited.

Druring the period under review, Ms. Jawetia Ather, Director, was heading the NBFCD while Mr. Akif Saeed,
Director was heading the Pensions Wing. Subsequent to the close of the year, Ms. Jaweria Ather left the
Cornmission and Mr. Akif Saeed was promoted as Executive Director of the 3CI) He is assisted by a team of
professionals with diversified experience and academic qualifications in the fields of business, accounting and
actuarial sdence.
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8.2 Laws Administered

-

Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Fleamton and Coentroll Ordinance, 1980
Companics Ordinance, 1984

Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981

iv. Non-Banking Finance Companies {(Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003
v. Voluntary Pension Systern Rules, 2005

vi. Prudential Reguladons for NBFCs

vil. Prudential Reguladons for Modarabas

B B

8.3 Sector Overview

8.3.1 NBFCs

To bring efficiency in the financial sectot and consolidate the fragmented business of NBFIs, the NBFC
concept was introduced and in this connection, the NBFC Rules were promulgated on 1 April 2003, Under
these Rules, NEFCs are allowed to conduct businesses of {i) Investment Finance Services (i) Leasing (iii)
Venture Capital Investment (iv} Discount Services (v} Investment Advisory and Asset Management Services
and {vi} Housing Finance Services.

With a view to strengthen the NBFC Sector, the concept of Universal NBFCs was introduced last year with
the primary objective of consclidating the non-banking financial services sector by allowing multiple businesses
under one umbsrella. The Universal NBEC concept would enable the offering of a range of financial products,
tailored to the needs of customers, through a ene-window operation. Appropriate amendments are underway
in the NBFC Rules to reflect the concept.

The formulaton of an independent NBFC Law is also in progress 8o as t¢ overcome the encumbrances of
being a subordinate law to the Companies Ordinance.

The table belew shows comparative composition of the NBFC sector over the last two years:

2008 2005
Investment Banks 13 13
Leasing Companics 23 23
Housing Finance 3 3
Diecount Houscs 3 3
Fund Managers (Investment Advisors + Asset Manapers) 34 22
Venture Capital 4 | &

8.3.2 Modarabas

The Modaraba sector has an established legal framework that provides a Shariah compliant mode of financing
and investment. Since their inception, Modarabas have played a vital role in the development and growth of
Islamic modes of financing in the cconomy and capital markets.

A Modaraba can be either specific or multd-purpose and can be formed for either 4 fixed or an indefinite period.
Most Modarabas in Paldstan are in the financial sector whilst others have been formed for industrial, trading
or other service sector purposcs. Mast Modarabas fleated in Pakistan are like closed-end mutual funds and
arce exempt from income tax provided they distribute 90 percent of their profits amongst certificate holders.
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Major sources of funds of Modatabas consist of equity and borrowing from banks and financial institutions
on Murabaha /Musharaka basis, The funds penerated by Modarabas durng the period amounted to Rs, 949
million, All the funds raised through the said sources were mainly utilized in leasing, extending Musharaka and
Murabaha fadilities, investing in shares of listed companies and trading etc,

At the close of the yeat, there wete twenty-nine Modatabas in operation, There was a 10 percent increase in the
total assets of Maodarabas as compared to last year, depicting a growth trend in the sector. It is expected that
the trend would contimie, The tahle helow shows comparative petformance of the sector over the last two years
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L 2006 205

= Moduata Compunis 51 51
Modarahar 29 35

s Modarsbas Undet Winding Up n 4

= Moadarabas that are Inoperative 0 1
Modarabas Under Floataion 6 1

< Totsl Faid-up Fund of Madssabag (Rs, in Million) 8,000 7,863
Total Asects of Modarabas (Re. in Milkion) 24,328 22,128

8.3.3 Pensions

The pension system in an economy has both sedal and economic implications; on ene hand it provides retitement
benefits for the masses and on the other hand, it mohilises long-term savings which contribute to the development
of financial and capital markers,

Thete are three broad types of tetitetnent benefit schemes prevalent in the ptivate and public sectots In Pakistan;

*  Provident Fund
*  (ratuity Schemes
*  Pension (or superannuation) Schemes

The first two are, hy far, the maost popular. Technically, these two do not strictly qualify as retirement benefits,
particularly in case of private sector where funds under these schemes are usually consumed before retirement
in shape of early withdrawals and borrowings or are consumed at the time of job switching when these are paid
in lump sum.

In Pakistan, the traditional ‘joint farily” systern is slowly being replaced by the ‘maclear family.” With improvements
in health and medieal facilides resulting in increasing life spans, it is not hatd to foresee an aging population
dependent on a decteasing percentage of a younger, reveoue-generating group, This ‘greying’ phenomenon is
already visible in most of the developed world and even though problem is not forecasted to hit Pakistan for
another two decades, it is important to take the preliminary steps now ta prevent a crisis sitvation later,

Pension schemes in Paldstan have remained confined to the salaried section of the pepulation in the form of
aecupational pension and savings schemes. Most individuals are outside the organized labour sector and the
concept of a 'regular monthly pay check' is alien to them. Individnals who ate either self-employed or engaged
in the informal sector fall in this category. Tt is important to extend the concept of pensions to this gronp as
well

To extend the scope of retirement benefit schemes to the masses, the Government decided to develop a new
defined contrbution system for people who do not have access to a retirement scheme. On 15 March 2003, the
Government assigned the regulation of private pensions to the Commission. A new VPS was designed under
the VPS Rules that are presently at the implementation stage. The VIS is based on tax incentdves for which
necessary amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, have been made; it is flexible in terms of contribution,
asset allocation choice, switching from one scheme to othet and above all, portability.
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It is envisioned that VPS5 would make long-ter savings and pensions available to the masses of the country
in a secute and regulated envitonment, while allowing the patticipants the fleibility to choose between various
investment options and different fund managers.

Presently, private coccupational savings schemes, including pension funds, gratuities and provident funds are
not being regulated by any agency. Under private oceupational pension and saving schemes recognized by CBR,
the employer, participant, and the invested assets enjoy certain tax advantages. On account of this, CBR may
be seen as a quasi-regulator for these schemes. There is no register of occupational pension and saving schermnes,
ot are thete collected statistics, published ot otherwise, on the number, assets of membetship ot of any
pension demographics, whether by age, gender or reglon,

Therefore, the Commission began work on developing a regulatory framework for private occupational pension
and saving schemes so that a uniform system of pensions may be developed ia the country where each part
complements the other,

8.4 Performance Review
341 NBFCs
) Mutual Funds

Among the NBFCs the mutueal funds industry showed the highest growth; it comprises twenty-seven open-
end funds and twenty-one close-end funds. Net assets of mutual funds have increased from Rs. 125 billion
on 30 June 2005 to Rs. 160 billicn on 30 June 2006, depicting a prowth of 28 percent. This growth resulted
mainly from the diversified products offered by the industry. Key statistics of the close-end funds and open-
funds ate shown in Table 10 and Table 11 respectively. Figure 13 depicts the assets under mapagement of
different categoties of the mutual funds:

Figure 13: Assets Managed Under Different Categoties of Mutial PFunds

l=lamic Funds Asset Allocation Funds
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(ii) Issmance of Fresh Licenses

During the period under review, twenty-seven fresh licenses were issued to businesses such as leasing, investment
banking, and asset management companies, Details of these are given in Table 12,

No-objections for establishment of NBFCs intending to undertake investment advisety and asset management
services were also issued to eight entites,

w
(]
=
o
b—
o
o
o
tehed
o

(iii)  Opening of Branches

Duting the peticd under review, approval for opening of twenty-six new btanches in different cities of the
country was granted, Permission for opening an international hranch in Duhai was granted to Secufity Investment
Bank Limited subject to completion of formalities under other relevant laws,

ANNUAL

(iv)  Renewal of Licenscs

Duting the peticd undet teview, licenses of fifty-nine NBFCs wete tenewed, details of which can he found in
Table 13. For licences which have not been renewed ot refused see Table 14,

() Public Offering
Duting the petiod under teview, public offeting of the following twelve new mutual funds was approved:

i, PICIC Enetgy Fund

i, AKD Tndex tracker

iii, TP Fund of Funds

iv.  Al-Falah GHFP Value Fund

v. United Growth and Income Fund
vi. NAFA Cash Fund

vii. KASE Liquid Fund

vili. AKD} Opportunity Fund

ix. ASKARI Income Fund

%, Pakistan International Element Islamic Fund
i, AMZ Plus Income Fand

zi. UTP - A30+ Fund

(vi) Mergers and Amalgamations
During the reporting period, the following mergers and amalgamadons were approved and allowed:

«  Jehangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited was granted a no-objection, in principle, to merge with
American Express Limited for forming a new banking company incorporated with the name J§ Banlk
Timited.

*  Atlas Investment Bank Limited was also granted a no-objection to merge with Atlas Bank Limited
{formerly Dawood Bank Limited).

*  Three funds namely, ABAMCO Capital Market Fund, ABAMCO Stock Fund and ABAMCO Growth
Fund were approved for merger to form UTP - Growth Fund,

(vil) Investmentin Unquoted Shares

During the period under review, three NBFCs were granted permission to invest in nnquoted shares,
Crescent Leasing Corporation Limited was granted a no-objection to aceuire 24 percent shareholding of Universal
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Leasing Limited and First International Investment Bank was allowed to acquite 100 percent shareholding of
Finex Securites Limited by forming a 100 percent owned subsidiary, Moreover, Trust Leasing and Investment
Bank was allowed to transfer the controlling shares of its existing sponsots to new sponsors.

{viif) Other Regulatory Issues

Certain NBFCs, which appeared to have higher cost of deposits compared to market conditions, were placed
on 2 priority list of on-site inspections, Moreover, legal proceedings in respect of Islamic Investment Bank
Limited were initiated by the NBFCD), The revival plan of an investment bank was also considered and
comments in this respect were submitted to the coutt as the revival plan petition by the investment hank was
pending in the Lahotre High Coutt, Rawalpindi Bench at the end of the reporting petiod.

8.4.2 Modarabas
(i) Registration of New Modaraba Company

Duting the petod under review, three MMCs were registered under Section 6 of the Modaraba Companies
and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (Modaraba Qtdinance), These are;

i Vanguand Modaraba Management (Pvt,) Limited,;
ii. Global Econo Trade (Pvt,) Limited; and
iti, Chenab Modaraba Management,

(i} Authotisations to Float Modaraba

Dharing the petiod under review, authorisation was issued to MMCs for floatation of six Modarabas. Details
are given in Table 15.

(iii) Merger of Modarabas

The Modaraba Wing has been instrumental in encouraging mergets. During the year, Sindh High Court approved
schemes filed by the MMCs for merger of Second Tri-Star Modaraba into First To-Star Modaraba and Modaraba
Al-Tijarab inte Modaraba Al-Mali,

{iv} Registration, Modification, and Vacation of Chatges

Rule 27 and 28 of the Modarabz Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 (Modaraba Rules) require that every
mortgage or charge created by a Modaraba is required to be registered with the Registrar Modaraba, During
the petiod under review, thirty-seven cases of registraton, modification, and vacation of mortgapes/charges
created by vatious Modarabas werte registered and registration certificates were issued.

{v) Appointment of Chief Executive and Directors

In terms of conditions of registration certificate of a Modaraba Company, every Modaraba Company is required
te obrain approval for any change in the board of directors, During the pericd under repeort, nine approvals
for appointment of Chief Ezecutive and Diirectors were communicated to the Modaraba Companies.
{vi) Appointment of Auditots of Modarabas

Rule 19 of the Modaraba Rules requites that terims of appointment of statutoty auditors should be renewed

annually with the apptoval of Registrar Modaraba, Duting the petiod under review, the Modaraba Wing approved
twenty-eight cases for approval of appointment of auditors.
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(vil) Permission tv Raise Deposits from General Public on Musharaka Basis

After completing the due process of law, permission was granted to two Modarabas, namely, First National Bank
Madaraba and First Punjab Modataba, to raise funds from the general public through issuance of Certificates
of Musharaka,

(viii) Changes in the Prospectus

Dufing the pedod under report, five requests for inserton of object clauses in the Prospectus of the Modaraba
were received, After approval of the Religious Boatd, the insettion of new business clauses in the prospectuses
of the applicant Modarabas was allowed.

In addition, proposals for insertion of business clauses to undertake real estate business activitics were received
from three Modarabas and the cases were submitted to the Religious Board for consideradon. The Religious
Boatd apptroved the said business clauses allowing the Modatabas to undertake rezl estate business but with priot
permission of the Registrar (Modarabas) /Commission.

843 VPS
() Consultatiohs

For smeoth itmpletnentation of the VPS, the Commission Initiated a consultative process with the market under
which a series of seminars were held in Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad. Based on the feedback received, tax
treatment of VPS5 was modified through the Finance Act, 2006. The scope of VPS was also expanded and the
contribution cap was removed. Provisions were also made to account for participants’ disability or death.

(i) Avvareness Ralsing Activities

In view of the fact that private pension is a new area in the country, the Commission made a conscious effort
for creating market awareness. In this regard, the Pensions Wing organized an international conference on
“Voluntary Pension Systems-Prospects and Futare Challenges” on 9 December 2005 in Islamabad. Experts on
pensions from around the world including Indis, Ireland and TISA participated in the conference and shared their
experiences regarding development and reforms in pension sectors around the world.

The Pensions Wing and the World Bank also jeintly hosted an international workshoo on “Re-Thinking Pension
Provisions In Pakistan™ in Lahore on 1415 April 2006, This brought together the key stakeholders including
Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Labour, Employees Old-Age Benefit Insdtution, all the provincial finance
departments, and key market participants. In this two-day workshop, experts on pensions frem India, Turkey,
and Latin America made presentations along with prominent local speakers.

(i) Guidelines

Durng the year, the Commission issued guidelines on Investment Palicy, Allocadon Policy, and Fit and Proper
Test (Criteria) for Chairman/Chief Executive, Board of Directors, and other key employees of a Pension Fund
Manager registered under the VPS5 Rules.

The Pensions Wing is in the process of finalising goidelines for registratdon of a Pension Fund Manager,
authorsation of Pension Fund, and repistration of the Trustee.
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(iv)  Processing of Application

Applications submitted for the grant of repistration to act as Pension Fund Manager were also screened as per
the criteria developed for this purpose by the Commission i.e, the Fit and Proper Test, The wotk on processing
of five applications received so far for registration as Pension Fund Manager was at an advanced stage at the
end of the reporting petiad,

8.5 Monitoring and Enforcement

8.51 NBFCs
) One=site Ingpections

On-site inspections under the terms of Section 2821 of the Companies Ordinance wete undertaken for analysing
the affaits of (@) Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited (if) Escort Investment Bank Limited (i) Pakistan
Industrial and Commercial Leasing Litnited {iv} Speedway Fondmetall (Pakistan) Limited and (v) Abamco
Limited

Inspections of these entities were carried out to gauge the true financial health, review performance of the
management and the Boatd, and assess compliance with prevailing regulatory framework, Inspections of two
entities were undertaken o investigate complaints received from vatious quatters and to assess the factual
posidon. As a result of these inspections, the Comtnission diligently pursued avenues to rectify mistnanapement
af these NBFCs. Under the terms of Section 265 of the Companies Ordinance, investigation proceedings
wexe also initiated against four murmal funds for defranding its members, These investigations were ongoing
at the end of the reporting perod,

(ii) Off-gite Examination of Audited A¢counts and Periodical Returne

Annual audited accounts and other periodic statements of some companies were examined duting the year
to ensute compliance with the NBFC Rules, Prudential Regulations for NBFCs, Companies Ordinance and
TAS notified hy the Commission in terms of Section 234 of the Companies Ordinance, On the basis of the
examination, appropriate praceedings were initiated against noncompliant companies,

The latest accounts of NBFCs seeking renewal of licenses wete alse examioed, as pet the prevalent practice,
at the dme of renewal of licenses to ensute compliance with the regulatory framework,

(iii)  Specialised Companies Returns Submigsion and Compliance System

During the yeat, the NEFCD continued to teceive ptinted petiodical retutns in weekly, fottnightly and monthly
frequency from NBFCs, mutual funds, and Modaraba secter as per varlous provisions of applicable laws and
repulations, In order to streamline the frequency of returns through electronic means and their effective
processing by the Commission, development of an information system named Specialised Companies Returns
Submission and Compliance System was initiated during the period under review

The system would be a collection of analytical tools desipned to provide the Commission with an integrated
approach to screening and analyzing the financial condition of companies, This will contdbute towards detection
of catly warning signals emanating from the financial data and timely inidation of corrective measures where
necessary, The system would not only lessen the information submission burden on NBFCs but would also
enhance the analytical ability of the NBFCD to extrapolate meaningful information from statements,
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Until the formal activation of the system, the requitement for fortnightly and monthly feturns was teplaced with
comprehensive weekly returns in case of investment advisors, asset manapement companies and investment
banks,

{iv) Show Cause Notices

During the period under review, several show canse notices were issued by NBFCD nunder varions sections of
the Companies Ordinance and NBFC Rules. The details of these cases are given in Table 16.

() Orders
During the period under review, the NBFCD issued eight orders and two letters under Section 282] and M of

the Companies Ordinance. The said correspondence included those that had been issued for disposing off three
show cause notices issued during the past year and six during the year under review.

8.5.2 Modarabas

The monitorng and surveillance activities were Auther augmented during the pericd under review. The Modaraba
Wing maintained effective off-site monitoring of the sector by reviewing periodic returns and annual andited
accounts. Some activities and outcomes are given herewith:

(kY] Show Canse Notices

Show cause notices were 1ssued to nine Modaraba companies for violating various provisions of the Modaraba
Ordinance and Modaraba Rules. 'The notices mainly pertained to the violations of Prudential Regulations, non-
filing of accounts and mismanagement of the Modaraba Fund by the MMCs.

(i) Ordets

Orders under Sectdon 32 of the Modaraba Ordinance were passed by the Registrar (Modarabas) in the case of
six Modarabas and penalties amounting to Rs. 625,000 were imposed on the chief executive
and directors of six Modarabas.

(i) Winding up of Modarabas

Three cases for winding up of Modarabas were fled with the Modaraba Tribunal under Section 23 of the
Modaraba Ordinance,

({iv) Warnings

Warnings under Section 32 of the Modaraba Ordinance were issued to three Modarabas for non-compliance
with the provisions of the Prudental Regulations for Modarabas.

() Inspection Otders
The Begistrar (Modarabas) ordered an ineuiry into the affairs of two Modarabas by appointing inspectors under

Secton 21 of the Modaraba Ordinance. On receipt of inguiry report, show cause notces were issued to the
MMCs and their directors.
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(vi)  Revival/Rehabilitation of Modarabas

The proposals for revival of First Schon Modaraba and Unicap Modaraba wete submitted by the relevant
sponsots. Examinations and evaluatons of these wete in process at the cose of the year under review,

8.6 Miscellaneous
8.6.1 Sharing of Information
Different statistical data was provided to various Government Ministries, SBPF, IOSCO, and other foreign

agencies such as the World Bank, In addition, information on financial crimes identified during on-site inspections
were shated with the National Accountability Butean to assist them in their investigative processes.

8.6.2 Investor Complaints

During the petiod under review, 386 complainis were received from investots; these pertained mainly to the
following issues:

* non-receipt of dividend warrants;
*  delay in ttansfer of cettificates; and

* non-receipt of anmual and interim accounts

Immediate and approptate actions were taken on all complainis received duting the period under report.

8.7 Annual Plan

871 Work in Process

i Review of NBFC Rules

Duting the pedod under review, NBFCD initiated the process of amending the NBFC Rules. The amendments
are aimed at remaving ambiguities, addressing requirements of market participants, facilitating operators and
safeguarding Intetest of investors, The dtaft tules have been discussed with the industty assocations and will
be notified for public opinion after approval by the Commission,

(i) Real Estate Investment Trost Rules

RETTs are a new asset class that allow houschold investors to invest in the teal estate market through pocling
of funds, in 2 manner similar to mutual funds. The product was designed to provide an alternative asset class
to financial markets while, at the same time, provide a boost to the real estate industry through an organised
and well-regulated method of development, Internationally, the praduct is driven by a unique tax-transparent
system and the principle of broad-based owmership,

The Cominission dtafted the tegulatory framewotk for introducing REITS in Pakistan, The tules wete finalised
by the Commission during the reporting pefiad and would be notified shortly,

(iii)  Private Equity and Venoare Capital Rules

Private equity and venture capital funds provide an alternate asset class to financial markets with an architecture
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of risks and returns that is completely different from publicly available conventional financial products. In
addition, these funds are also expected to provide the necessary management expertise and financial facilities
to companies where traditional financing facilittes are not available,

In otdet to boost Investments and allow a liheral avenue to investors seeking oppottunities in start-up companies,
veniure capital, and othet such areas, the Commission began wotk on framing the Ptivate Equity and Venture
Capital Rules.

(iv) Modarabas

{a) Amendments in the Modaraba Ordinance and Rules: Proposals for amendments in the Modaraba
Ordinance were being finalized se as to improve governance and monitodng, protect the imvestors and
remaove bottlenecks allowing for prowth of this sector.

{b) Deferment of Applicability of IAS 17 to Modarabas: In view of the praciical difficulties being faced
by the Modaraha Sector, the Commission deferred the applicability of IAS 17 to Modarabas, During
the yeat under review the applicability of the said IAS was reviewed and the Modarabas were allowed
to prepare their accounts for the year 2006 without applying the requitements of the said standard to
the Madarahas,

{c) Custody of Share/Certificates: In order to prevent the affairs of any Modaraba heing conducted in
a manner detrimental to the interests of the certificate holders, all Modaraba Companies were directed
to place Moedaraba Company's shates ot Modataba Certificates either with the Registrar (Modarabas)
in the Commission ot in an account at the CDC,

{d) Mectings of the Religious Board for Modarabas: During the petiod under review, four meectings
of the Religious Board constituted for Modatabas under Section 9 of the Madaraba Ordinance were
convened. Various matters pertaining to floatation of new Modarabas and draft agreements for conducting
new businesses by the existing Modarabas were approved during these meetings, The Religious Board
alse examined the overall petformance of the Modaraba sector and recommended vatious steps for
improving the same.

(v}  Voluntary Pension System

The Commission was In the process of finalising the guidelines for streamlining the operations of pension fund
managers and trustees (o be involved in the Voluntary Pension Schemes in Pakistan at the end of the reporting
petiod.

8.7.2 Futute Plans
() NBFCs

*  Promulgation of the regulatory framework for REITS, In this respect, 2 task force headed by the Adviser
to the Pime Minister on Finance and Revenue has been created to remave any hurdles in creating such
an environment for REITS in Pakistan, Active liaison would he maintzined with the provindal governments
and ICT to create an enabling environment, both legal and fiscal, for RETTS,

*  Promulgation of the tegulatoty framewotk for ptivate equity and venture capital funds. Moereover, an
enahling environment will be created for these asset classes,

*  Amendments to the NBFC Rules drafted in consultation with the stakeholders and in Eght of international
best practices will be promulgated,

* Formulation of an independent NBFC Law so as to overcome the regulatory and enforcement issues
being faced undet the present set-up whete the requirements applicable to NBFCs ate divided between
the Companies Ordinance and the NEFC Rules,
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(i

On-site Inspections of entities, especially deposit raising institutions to determine theit true financial
health and their compliance level with specific reference to NBFC rules and regulations will he
conducted,

Off-site examination of NBFCs will be carried out to review their periodical returns and pinpoint the
violations committed by them and give obsetvations on other fisk related issues,

Computerized guartietly analysis of petiodic information, including hotizontal and vettical analysis,
to assess the financial health of the NBFCs, mutual funds and Modaraba sectors will be catded out,

Modarabas

Vatious amendments have been ptoposed in the Modataba Otdinance and Modataba Rules which,
once finalized, will he submitted to the Ministty of Finance for approval.

Prudential Regulations for Modarabas were issued in Janzary 2004, To remove the practical
difficulties being faced by the sector, these would be reviewed and recommendations would be finalized
in consultation with the Modaraba Assodiation of Pakistan,

Statutoty tegisters pettaining to the statements/repotts being filed by Modatahas undet the Modataba
Ctdinance/Modataba Rules will he updated.

Various finance agreements being used by Moedarabas are being reviewed to bring them at par with
the Agreements used by other Islamic financial institutions. The revised Agreements would be submitted
to the Religions Board for consideration,

Pensions

Feedback obtained during market consultative process highliphted certain anomalies in the VP5 Rules;
a comprehensive exercise would be undertaken during the year to amend and update these Rules to
bring clarity and operational ease for both the participants and pension fund managers,
Guidelines on recerd keeping, marketing and advettisement, and disttibution would be issued after
matket consultation through the Advisory Committee.

Wotk on development of regulatory framewatk for ptivate occupational pension and saving schetmes
wotuild be initiated.
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Insurance Division

OBJECTIVE:  To cusure fhe proteciion of the inferests of instiranee pokicybolders and to promsote sound developorent af the insurance
indnstry
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91 Operational Structure

9.1.1 Structure

Insurance Division 1) supervises and monitors the insurance industry ncluding insurance and takaful comparnies
and intermediaties) under the relevant insurance laws. The ID consists of the following Wings:

ANNUAL

+  Life Insurance

+  Non-life Insurance

+  Research & Development
+  Registration

9.1.2 Management Team

The tearn is lead by Mr. Shafaat Ahmad, Executive Director who direetly reports to the Chairman. He is assisted
by a relatively young teamn of officials incloding a qualified actuary - Mr. Shoalb Soofi, Director Life in managing
the affaits of IT). Professional expertise in insurance is also available to IT} in the form of Adviser (Insurance), D
Mumtaz A. Hashmi who has been guiding I on technical issues, training the officials and contibuting towards
achieving the agreed objectives.

9.2 Laws Administered

i Insurance Ondinance, 2000

ii. Secnrites and Exchange Commission {Insurance) Rules, 2002
iii. Federal Government, Insurance Rules, 2002

iv. Takaful Rules, 2005

9.3 Sector Overview

The Pakistan insurance sectot, by law, is divided into life and non-life insurance. Composite insurance (ie. a firm
offering both life and non-life insurance) is prohibited under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Insurance Ordinance).
Tatgeting the objective of raising the insurance penetration level {i.e. insurance premium as a percentage of GIF)
a potentally unattended avea is takafil business (Islanic Insurance) for which a regulatory regitme has been natified
duting the period under review.

As at 30 June 2006, there were fifty-eight insurance companies (including one general takaful operator).
Pukistans insutance matket is under-developed relative to its potential. Howevet, in recent years the insurance sector

has shewn a promising average annual growth exceeding 20 percent. Registeting a growth tate of almost 26 percent,
total premium of insutance sector increased from Rs.36,662 million in 2004 to Rs. 46,167 million in 2005
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Type of Insurance Company Numhet of Companies
2006 2005
Life
Public 1 1
Privatc 4 i
“Total 5 5
Nen-Life
Pablic 1 1
Private 51 51
‘Tatal 52 52
Relngnrance
Publi: 1 I
a) Life Insurance

During the year under review, total premium of the life insurance sector increased from Ra 14,583 million in 2004
to Ra. 18,552 million in 2005, showing an increase of 27.2 percent. Total assets of the sector have also risen ata
rate of 14.9 percent from Ks.123,200 million in 2004 to Rs.142,328 million in 2005.

Total incurred claims have increased at a rate of 11.4 percent from Rs.8,180 million in 2004 to Rs.9,114 millien
in 2005.

State Life Insurance Cotporadon of Pakistan though continues to be the market leader, its market share has
declined gradually from 87 percent in 2001 to around 75 percent in 2005, Two leading players in private life sector
are EFU Life and New Jubilee Life with 13.5 and 7.4 percent share, respectively.

Gi} Non-Life Insurance

Total premium of the non-life insurance sector rose at a rate of 25.1 percent from Rs.22,079 million in 2004
Rs.27,615 million in 2005.

Total incurred claims, recorded increase of 8.3 percent from Rs.11,089 million in 2004 to Rs.12,004 million in
2005. Key statistics are contained in Table 17,

Top five companies (including public secter National Insurance Cotporation) wrete 73 percent of the premium
of the non-life sector insurance market.

Gii) Takaful Companies

The takafudl regulatory framework was enforced in September 2005, and as at 30 June 2006 there was one takaful
company namely Pak Kuwait Takaful Limited, registered as general Takafol operator, which commenced its
operations in December 2005.

an Reinsurance Companies
State-owned Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited (PRCL) is the only reinsurance company in Pakistan.
On popular demand from the non-life private sector insurance companics, 30 percent compulsery cession to

PRCL was gradually reduced and effective 1 January 2005 it was completely withdrawn; hence, a decline of 20.6
percent in PRCL’s premiwm income from Rs.5,241 million in 2004 to Rs.4,160 million in 2005.
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9.4 Performance Review

94.1 Development of Laws

i Proposed Amendments in the Insurance Ordinance

To strengthen the Commission’s role as an effective regulator, the ID reviewed the regulatery framework in light
of the recommendations of the independent consultants, as well as discussions with the industry. Proposed
amendments have been drafted which would be communicated to the Federal Government, for its necessary action.

(ii) ‘Takafnl Rules

In pursuance of the Government’s objective of Islamization of the economy, the Commission constituted a task
force for making recemmendation with regard to developing a regulatery framework to supervise and monitor
takaful companies. Based con the recommendations of the task force, the Takaful Rules, 2005 were drawn and
notified in September 2005,

9.4.2 Operational Activities of the ID
o) Citculats

During the year ended 30 June 2006 six circulars on the following subjects for guidance of the industry, were issued
by the IIx

«  Group Life Insurance

«  Market Conduct for Life Insurance Companies

+  Rotation of Auditors

- ‘Treaty Reinsurance Arrangements

«  Life Insurance Policies through Provident Fund

«  Maximum Expense Limits for Life Insurance Companies

(i Exercise to Raise Mitimum Paid-up Capital Requirement

Protection of policyholders” interest and sound development of the insurance industry are directly dependent on
the financial scundness of the insutance companies, and when compared to the nelghbouring countties, the minimum
paid-up capital requirements in Pakistan are considered very low. In this regard, an exercise was carried out to
considet the necessity of taise in the minimom paid up capital requitement for life and non-life insutance ({including
family and general takaful) companies in a phased manner. 'This proposal was under discussion with the industry
at the end of the teporting petiod.

i)  Actuarial Valuation Basis

The ID, in consultation with the Pakistan Scdiety of Actuaries and the industry, has finalized actuarial valuation basis
for life insurance policyholders’ liabilities and the draft awaits its netification.

{i¥) Repgistration of New Insurance Companies
During the reporting period, seven partes showed interest in establishing insurance/takaful companies who were

given consenit by the II) for necessary incotporation under the Cotnpanies Ordinance, a necessaty first step before
comunencement of the formal registration process.
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m Registration of New Insurance Brokers

Following issuance of licence to act as an insurance broker to a fresh applicant, there were two registered insurance
brokers in Pakistan, as on 30 June 2006.

{vi) Registration of New Insurance Surveyors

During the reporting period, 213 companies were issued licences to act as insurance surveyors and 148 individuals
were registered to act as anthotized surveying officers.

{vii) Creation of a temporary Complaint Cell

As required under the Insurance Ordinance for the Federal Government to establish the Insurance Ombudsman
Office to attend to any mal-administration on the part of insurers in dealing with the policyholders, a complaint
cell was established in the I} during the year. This cell not only maintained complete records of all complaints
received but also acted in addressing the grievances. The idea of this makeshift arrangement was to ensure smooth
transfer of all insurance related complaints to the Insurance Ombudsman upon his appointment, which tcok place
in May 20006.

(viii)  Self~Assessment of Insurance Core Principles

During the year under review, self-assessment of first five Insurance Core Principles of the International Association
of Insurance Supervisors (IAIS), was carried out by the II} and submitted to the TATS.

9.5 Initiatives/Plans

* To work towards materialising the suggested amendments in the Insurance Ordinance.

*  Por further strengthening of the existing legal framework encompassing the Insurance Ordinance and
the rules framed thereunder, to continue revisiting the same by identifying anomalies/shortfalls for
amendments,

* ‘To materialise the proposed raising of the minimum paid-up capital requirements to Rs.500 million (ife
assurance/ family takaful) and Rs.300 million {non-life insurance/general takaful), for new entrants.
However, the existing insurer/ takaful operator would be allowed to meet the requirements in a phased
mADner.

* 'To enable electronic filing of returns, complete the on-going insurance regulation seftware development,

*  'To review the minimum solvency requirements, including allecation of investments, criteria for admissibility
of assets, and reporting on scolvency by insurers as part of the regulatory accounting returns.

*  To review and strengthen the Takaful Rules, 2005 via adequately addressing the anomalies/shortfalls
identified from time to fime.

*  For availability of insurance protecdon to less privileged people of the society, to develop a regulatory
framewark to mandate micro-insurance for both public and private sectors insurers,

*  Bascassurance (a Prench word means an arrangement of selling insurance via banks who act as distribution
channel for the insurers to sell their insurance products), is gradually spreading in Pakistan, Bawmeercsurance
has not been defined in the Insurance Ordinance and there are issues of regulatory namare. ‘To this effect,
identify the areas of concern with regard to policyholders’ interests and initiate corrective measures,

* ‘Transitional period of five years provided in the Insurance Ordinance for the conversion of all those
who at the time of its promulgation were registered as insurance surveyor under the repealed Insurance
Act 1938, has ended on 18 Augnse 2005, Howewer, a good number of the insurance surveyors did not
act promptly. Purther, anomalies and weaknesses in the applicable rules and inconsistencies therein with
the relevant sections of the Insurance Ordinance have been identified. ‘Therefore, to appropdately review
and amend the rules pertaining to the insurance surveying,

*  To focus on improving the level of TI¥s compliance /chservance of the insurance core principles of TATS.
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Legal Department

OBJECTIVE:  To manage the legal affaive of the Conrmission, provide prompt legal advice i each operational Division and effectively
manage aff Brigation by and against the Commrission.

10.1 Structure

The Legal Department (LI} has heen functioning as a depattment of the Commission since December 2004 when all
the legal staff was centralised in the LD and then tasked with the tesponsibility to manage the legal affaits of the
Commission, The LD reports directly to the Chairman, It is divided into three wings; advisory, litigation and legislation,

10.1.1 Management Team

The LD is headed by an Executive Director, Ms, Amber Diarr, a Barrister qualified from both the US and UK, possessing
extensive experience of a broad range of practice areas The Wings are supervised by Joint Directors with relevant expertise;
they are assisted by a team of lawyers possessing a vatiety of professional experience and good acadeimic qualificadons.

10.2 Performance During the Year

10.2.1 Advisory Wing
(i) Internal Advice

During the course of the year, the LD advised the operatonal Divisions and Departments on 4 number of wide-ranging
and important areas such as Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVY; Section 224(2) of the Companies Ordinance; whether a
provisional manager of a Modaraba appeinted under Section 314{4) of the Companics Ordinance is a manager of the
Modaraba in place of its Board of Directors; applicability of Section 208 of the Companies Ordinance to non-banldng
finance companies (NBFC); applicability of the Voluntaty Pension Systemn Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) issued under the
Companies Ordinance to life insurance companies; the exercise of powers by inspectors under Section 286 of the
Companies Ordinance; and whethet the objects of a not-for-profit association fall within the temit of Section 42 of the
Cempanies Ordinance,

()  Extetnal Advice

The 1.D is often referred work of an advisory nature by the Federal Government where they seek the Commission's
expertise on issues pertaining to the corperate and securities market sector

During FYZ2006, the LD assisted the Ministry of Finance on the Political Risk Guarantee Facility under the FMGE
(iii) Vetiing of Contracts and Agreements

The Advisory Wing is also entrusted with the tesk of drafting or vetting contracts, agreements and Memoranda of
Understanding to be sighed by the Commission.

10.2.2 Lidgation Wing

The LD} manages all litigation filed on hehalf of or agginst the Commission in consultation with the concerned operational
Diyisions. The Litigation Wing is involved at all stages of the litigation process, whether it entails providing a legal opinion
as to the metits of the case, appointing counsel and settling fees, vetting show cause notices, pleadings, etc. of providing

written: comments in respect of the same,
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() Litigation

During the year nnder review, fifty cases were concluded of which the Commission won forty-five and lost five. Appeals
have been filed against the lost cases. As at 30 June 2006, 281 cases were pending in various courts, of which the
Commission is appellant in 105 cases and 4 respondent in 1746 cases. A synopsis of the cases is given in Table 18.

(if) Adjudication

The Litipation Wing is alse responsible for wetting and, where requested to do so, drafting totifications, drenlars and
notices on behalf of the Commission.

10.2.3 Legislation Wing

The Commission is continucusly updating the regulatory framework to address rapid changes. The LI facilitates the
operational Division or Department leading the reform process in formulating relevant legislation.

During the year, the Commission, in association with international consultants engaged under the FMGP, undertook
afl extensive review of the legislation administered by it with a view to strengthening the regulation, enforcernent and
governance of non-bank financial matkets, The LD, togethet with the concetned opetational Division of Department,
has heen entrusted with the task of finalising the new legislation or amendments to existing legislation,

@D New Draft Legislation
The LD provided assistanice to the following legislative initiatives which ate pending enactrment:

*  Netting of Financial Contracts Act;

*  Financial Services Commission Act;

*  Securities Act:

*  Futures Trading Act;

*  Hmployees Provident Fund (Investment in Listed Sccurities) Rules;

*  Registrar to an Issue and Securities Transfer Agent Rules;

Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and Take-ovet) Rules;
Commodity Exchange and Future Contracs Rules;

Dehenture Trustee Rules;

Associations Not-for-Profit (Licensing and Corporate Governance) Rules; and
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules.

(i) Amendments to Existing Legislation

The LD was involved in the amendment of the following laws, rules, etc.:
= Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Rules, 1585;
*  Non-Banking Finatice Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003; and
*  (eniral Depositoty Company Limited Regulatons, 1997,

(i) Legislation referred to the Commission by the Federal Government

During the reporting period, the LI reviewed the Umrah/ Hajj JZiaraat Organisers Services Regulation Act, 2006 upon
referral from the Ministry of Finance,
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(iv) Advice on Legiglative Issues

The Legislation Wing alsc provides advice on issues pertaining solely to legislative matters. The LD has advised, fwer
alia, on:

¢ registration and operationalisation of the National Commedity Exchange Limited (NCEL};
*  the options available to effect the demutualisation of the stock exchanges; and the impact of existing tenancy
laws on Real Estate Investment Trusts (REIT).

Officers of the LI} also undertake certaln activities which are additional to thelr regular duties within the LD
10.2.4 Corporate Laws Review Commission

The Commission established a Corporate Laws Beview Commission {CLRC) in Nevember 2005 under the leadership
and guidance of former Chief Justice of Pakistan Mr. Justice (Retd) Ajrnal Mian, and comprising eminent members of
the legal, accountancy and business community to catry out 2 holistic teview of the Companies Ordinance.

The Executive Director (Law) is the Secretaty to the CLRC and assisted by other employees of the LD, acts as the
Secretariat to the CLRC. In May 2006, the CIRC presented a Concept Paper to the Commission which aims to provide
direction for the review of the Companies Ordinance.

10.3 Annual Plan

Since its inception, the LI has achieved its initial goals of providing 4 sireamlined service and work. However, the LD
recognises the need to continue to develop legal expertise in line with international best practices. To this end, it plans
to enhance training for lawyers working within each wing and enhance access to legal resources (ie. reference books
anid access to electtonic joutnals/databases, etc) for the staff within LD.

Further, one of the LD's major poals over the coming year is to enhance the legal capabilities within each CRO for both
advisory and litigation matters. In this regard, the LD intends te build 2 small legal team in the Commission's regional
office in Karachi and assign or recruit (where necessary) a lawyer for each CRO.
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Support Services Division

11.1 Operational Structure

Objeckive: T faciltate dscharge of statuiory funcons by otber Divisions of the Camurission by providing human resossces,
information techsiolygy and ﬁmﬂm’ BLCORMLS.

11.1.1 Struchure

The Support Services Division (38D is responsible for facilitating the overall operations of the Commission
and ensuting its smooth functoning, It has been organized into the following departments:

*  Hurnan Rescurces and Training
=  Finance and Administration
= Information Systems and Technology

11.1.2 Management Team

‘The 55D works under the direct supervision of the Chairman. Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui, Executive Director heads
the Finance and Administration Department

Mr. Arshad Javed Minhas, Executive Director, heads the Information Systems and Technology Diepartinent.

Mr. Mansur Ahsan, Executive Director heads the Hurmnan Resource and Training Department.
1.2 Human Resources and Training Department

‘The Hutman Resoutrces and Training Diepattment (HR&T) is tesponsible for facilitating the overall HR operations
of the Commission to strengthen the capabilides of human resources and to ensure the transfer of skills to
etiable building of talent pool.

It has been structured into the following Wings:

*  Human Resources Wing
*  Training Wing

The HR Wing Is responsible fot vatious activides that include:

*  manpower planning;

*  recruitment, staffing, retention and separaticn;

*  performance management and promotions;

+  developing HR policies and procedures;

*  managing employee benefits and compensation;

*  maintaining personnel records;

*  coordinating with other departments in connection with staff development; and
*  processing emplovee promotons, transfers, retirements and dismissals.
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11.2.1 Recruitment and Selection

Duting the period under review, the Commission hited several officers with expertise in different disciplines
like business administration, accountancy, and law Details of professionals inducted during the vear are fllustrated
in Tahle 19.

11.2.2 Young Professionals Induction Scheme

In order to meet the continons and growing human resource needs, every vear the Commission hires young
and dynamic peeple holding master’s degrees in subjects relevant to the Commission's functions at entry level.
The scheme was updated during the period under review and titled “Young Professionals Induction Scheme™
(YPIS}, replacing the Junior Executive Induction Scheme.

YPIS aims to attract recently gqualified competent young postgraduates and to provide them fast wack career
at the Commissiont. The YPIS, when advertised in January 2006, approzimately 800 applications were received.
Officers under this scheme are in the process of being appointed.

11.2.3 Training

The Training Wing ensures continuous capacity building of employees of the Commission through need-based,
milor-made programs.

Durng the pedod under review, the Wing, in collaboration with consultants engaged under the FMGP, organized
capacity building training programs for the officers of the Commission as well as market participants.
Consultants /Experts of international repute shared their experiences and discussed scenarios and dynamics
of international as well as local market. The programs aimed at the development of expertise and the fostering
of better understanding across a range of capital market related subjects.

11.3 Finance and Administration

10.3.1 Finance

The Finance Wing is responsible for directing and controlling the areas of accounting, financial reporting,
treasury management and budgeting. A multi-user accounting software is being used for the maintenance of
bocks of accounts and a scund accounting system is in place. The Finance Department works within a
transparent and effective internal control system. Moreover, policies and procedures are well docemented,
regularly reviewed and improved upon, and consistently adhered to.

The Finance Department fellews the relevant requirements of the SECﬁAct in processing payments, recording
transactions, and preparing and maintaining bocoks of accounts.

11.3.2 Administration

The Administration Wing provides a wide range of support services to manage the Commission's facilities
and assets, including, transport; equipment; office supplies; furniture and fixture; hiring and maintenance of
office premises; maintenance of assets; mail receipts and delivedes; printing of reports; and other allied matters.
It has been extensively engaged in developing a conducive environment for Divisions at the head office of the
Commission and for CROs to efficiently discharge their duties.
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11.4 Information Systems and Technology
11.4.1 Structure

The Information Systems and Technology Department (IS & T) provides a range of services for vatious
management support functions, specialized applications, MIS applications and managed workstations. Major
areas of operations include software systemns and database maintenance and development; website and intranet
engineeting and maintenance; Local Area Network (LAN)/Wide Area Network (WAN) connectivity and central
services; managed workstation services; hardware maintenance services and training in information technology
{I'T) ptoducts and services.

The division has been informally divided into Systems, Networlk and Security, Disaster Recovery, Software, and
databases and data warehousing wings.

11.4.2 Performance Review

Most current and fortheoming projects of the Commission like the e-Bervices, Scanning and Archiving of
docurnents, Disaster Recovery Centre, ERF, Insurance Industry Regulatory Systern and Market Monitoring and
Surveillance are driven by I'T. The Commission has been awarded the IS0 9001:2000 Certification for its
Information Systemns and Technology Departiment. The Federal Minister for IT, Mr. Axvais Abmad Khan Leghari,
awarded the certificates to the Commission’s officials in a ceremony organized by the Pakistan Software Export
Board (PSEB). The IS & T initiated the certification project in collaboration with the financial assistance of
PSEB and the Ministry of IT and Telecom. The main goal of the project was to ensure that the processes being
followed by the IS & T wete based on internatonally recognized quality standards. Consultancy services for the
project were obtained from NUST Consulting and the final andit was conducted by Moody International before
recommending the Department for the certification.

11.4.3 IT Projects and Initiatives

One of the main objectives of the 18 & T is to maximize the automation of functions and general services at
the Commission without excessively straining its financial resources. In this regard, some of the external
partnerships formed by the IS & T are with E-Government Directorate (EGD} and ADB, which are funding
the development and itnplementation of various IT-based projects at the Commission. Some of the major
projects being carried out at the Commission during the period under review are as follows:

{i} E-Services Project

The E-Services project is a major initiative of the Commission being funded by the E-Government Directorate.
E-services will enable all regulated companies to submit required documents/information electronically using
a pre-defined format through a web portal provided by the Commission. The companies can submit their antmal
ard quarterly returns online, which can then be archived, removing chances of erroneous returns. The systern
will alse reduce undue paper wotk and improve vaticus processes within the Commission. The features of the
systern for internal benefit include implementaton of watkflow environment, business process analysis, document
analysis, buman resource analysis and business activity monitoring and tracking ete.

The project is currently in the implementation phase. Some of the business processes of the Commission were

ready for deployment and the training of the end users was being cartied out simultanecusly as these processes
went Tive'.
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(ii) E-Surveillance Project

In order to translate high-level objecrives of a compertitive market characterized by fairness, efficiency and
liquidity, the information for measuring performance and monitoring activity has to be readily available on real
time basis, The Commission is in the process of procuring a Matket Surveillance Solution as the preferred
soutce for teliable matket data and cnline alert genetation to tmenitor market activity.

In this regard after extensive research carried out jointly by IS & T and MSW along with the advice of
independent consultants under the FMGP TA, 2 solution which meets requisite ohjectives has been selected,
A pilot of the sohation is in the process of heing Implemented,

(iii)  Database Clustering and Storage Consolidation Project

This project has heen funded by the ADB under the FMGP TA. The RAC solution obtained provides the basic
infrastructure for 4 stable foundation for husiness process management, electronic transactions, and business
intellipence, In addition, it alse provides high levels of availability, exceptional performance, scalability, daia
intepration, end user productivity, and flexibility in a changing environment, The project has delivered a sound
hack-end database management platform for the various applications deployed at the Commission,

(iv) Scanning and Archiving Project

The main goals of the project ate to scan and atchive all the documents and files being used for day to day
reference and decision making at the headquatters as well as all the CROs, In addition to scanning and atchiving,
scanned images of the files will be searchable, based on metadata stored with the archived images, This solution
will, in turn, be integrated with the E-services system in order to enable end to end digitalization at the
Commission, The implementation of the project is scheduled to start shortly,

(v) ERP Project

The main goals of the project are to automate and inteprate the financial, payroll, and human resource
management functions of the Commission. The project is cutrently in the planning phase.

(vi) Disaster Recovery Centre

Evety businiess atd otganization cah experience a setious incident ot occutrence which can prevent it from
continuing normal operaticns. This can happen any day at any time. The peotendal causes are many and varied
like flood, explosion, computer malfunction, accdent and many more. I8 & T has always foteseen the business
continvity needs of the organizaten, Keeping in view the above, IS&T is undertaking the establishment of
the Disaster Recovery centre to provide high availability of its Internet and Intranet applications for the
Commission's employees and citizens of Pakistan; it will be established in Karachi.

(vii) Imsurance Industry Regulatory System

The I} has two main objectives i.e. to ensure the protection of the interests of insurance policyholders and
to promote sound development of the insurance industry.

The Insurance Industry Regulatory Systern {TTRS} is being developed to facilitate the ITD to carry out its functions.
The ITIRS would be a collection of analytical tools desighed to provide the IID with an integrated approach to
screening and analyzing the financial condition of insurance companies opetating in the country, The project
is currently being implemented.
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Fot the putpose of procuting data watehouse solniion, IS & T has alteady prepared the PC-I and sent it to
EGD for approval, Work on the project is expected to ipitiate soon after approval,

11.4.4 Annual Plan

(0 Work in Progress
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Development Activities: A number of activities are being carried cut by the IS & T. These include the
development and maintenance of a oumber of IT systems and projects. Some of the major develepmental
actvites are given below:

{a} Besume Submission System
This system is used for receiving online resumes and provides automated short-listing procedure, based
upon the candidates input.

(b) Document Tracking System
This system keeps track of the actions taken on documents received ar the Commission along with time
taken to respond to them,

(c¢) Legal Opinion Management Systern
This system maintains record of lepal opinions and replies to legal queries sent by all Divisions to outside
parties. It helps in tracking opinions given by the commission on different cceasions and in ensuring
censistency of opiniens on an issue.

{d) Brokets and Agents Registration System
It is an automated system for close vigilance of actvities of brokers and agents and secks to facilitate
enforcement of Commission's regulatory functions.

(e} Purchase Managetnent System
The system has been developed for the Finance and Administration Diepartment te automate the purchase
functicn.

{f) Inventory Management System
Iris one of the key systems of Enterprise Resource Plan and addresses the difficulty previcusly encountered
in manually handling data and maintenance of inventory records.

{g) Court Case Database
This database keeps track of all cases filed by or against the Commidssion in vadouns courts of law and
maintains an up-to-date status of =ach case

(h) Intranetof IS & T
The intranet site referred to as ‘IntralT”, holds key organization wide informatien for the employees of
the Commission. It also acts as a portal for an automated, paperless environment and disseminates
information and knowledge on valuable uses of IT.

() Intranet for Human Resource and Training Depattment
This is an initiative to share informatdon relating to human rescurce matters with employees of the
Commission. The partal contains links for editing personnel profile, claiming reimbursements as well
as viewing natable events.

j} Intranet for Legal Wing
An intranet portal for Legal Wing has been developed that is information-rich and integrated with other
applications developed for the Wing

{k} Enhancement of Enforcement and Monitoring System
Enhancement inte the existing enfercement and monitoring system provides for inidal review of accounts,
decision support feature, submission of returns and detailed examination of accounts etc.

ANNUAL

Infrastructure Enhancement: In order t¢ cater to the continucusly evolving requirements and enhancements
in the existing infrastructure and to ensure accommodation for all existing and future processing needs, the
fellowing actvities have been carded out for infrastructure enhancement:
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(2) Server Consolidation
With increased load and processing requirements on the Commission’s Servers due o increased staffing
and resource demanding applications, server consolidation has heen carried out. This will ensure
centralization, data integrity, and application integration and reduced infrastructure costs to Commission,

(b) Network Secutity Enhancernents
With increased number of staff, data processing and sensitive applications, secutity is one of the most
important considerations, For this putpose, an elaborate Intrusion Detection and Prevention system
has heen commissioned to ensure protection of data,

{c) Network Expansion
With outmnber of new applications connecting vatious CROs with the Commission’s head office and
increased numbet of staff using such applications the network has been expanded to allow for increased
number of usets to access data without least amount of delay.

(d) Help Desk
Help Desk is an imporiant feature of any organization wide IT department, The Help desk with its
state of the art complaint receipt, management and tracking system enseres minimum response time
to any and all requests,

() Physical Access Control Systems
The Commission did not have any Physical Access Control System for preventing, monitotng intrusion
and unauthorized access, time and attendance and visftors management in its premises. This system
is collection of Proximity readers for authentication, TCP/IP converters for logping records to database
in real-titme and server for running database services, The system is capable of assisting the Commission
in maonitaring and preventing unanthotized access and titme and attendance of the employees of the
Commission, All employees will be provided with preximity catds to entet ot exit from their respective
floors, Multiple type of reports will be generated by the application running on the server which will
consists of the details about the present / absent status, employee location indication, total working
hours in a month, total visitors time and total out of office time during working hours etc,

11.4.5 Futute Plans
Future projects of the IS & T include but are not limited to the following:
()} Data Warchouse Project

The Commission has commenced wotk on designing a data warehouse for analysis and strategic decision
making. For this purpose, the Commission would deploy a system which could generate reports dynamically
and help in assessing repulatory and pelicy implications, The objective would be to empower users in various
divisicns and depattments to work on the data warehouse from thelt operational tequitements point-of-view
fot generating vatious repotts and attendant impleations,

By building a data warehouse and inttoducing business inielligence applications/tools, employees can use the
data to support enterprise level decision-making and appropriate information could be disseminated to the
stakeholders,

Fot the putpose of ptocuting data watehouse solution, IS & T has alteady prepared the PC-I and sent it to
EGLY for approval. Wotk on the project is expected to initiate soon after approval,

(ii) Capacity Building and Training Needs
I8 & T regularly carries out varicus trainings according to the training need analysis of the staff at the

Commission. This includes, but is not limited to, training of IT staff at CROs, end user trainings, capacity
building at IS & T and preparation of training manuals and interactive CDs for the purpose.
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(itiy Network Vulnerability Assessment Toals

Consideting the aim of providing most of the Commission's services onlineg, it is becoming increasingly important
to enhance level of security at servers, databases and online websites etc, For this purpose, the IS&T intends to
acquire netwotk vulnerability assessment tools to ensure security management, network fault management and
troubleshooting infrastruciure. It will help analyzing information and will alse help In ascettaining the future
tequirements,

(iv)  Infarmation Security Audit

Based upon the requitements of both exiernal auditots and IS & T, information secutity audit will be cattied
out to ascertain the cutrent secutity scenatio and identfy any requirements for adding onto the same.

) Video Conferencing
The Commission intends to estahlish a4 video confetence facility between its head office and CROs at Karachi

and Lahote, The facility may he extended to other offices in future and thetefore the system being proposed is
scalable.
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Professional Services and Policy Division

OBIECTIVE: Te regwlaiv and propeote professivnal servives and introduce policies fo attain the aier and vbjectives of the
Commission,

12.1 Operational Sttucture

12.1.1 Structure

The Professional Services and Policy Division (PSP} was established to centralise both the policy making and
professional services function of the Commission. The PSFD was entrusted with responsibilities pertaining to
professional services, regulatory policies and capital market development. Subsequent to the close of the year,
the PSPD) was merged with various Divisions of the Commission such that each Division would have an
independent Policy Wing within it.

As of the close of the year under review; the FEPDY encompassed the following two Departments,

{i} Professional Services Department

The Professional Services Department (PSI)) regulates and promotes development of Professional Bodies and
SROs in the fields of aceountancey and cotporate secretary-ship. It also regulates credit rating companies.

{ii) Policy Deparunent
The core responsibility of the Policy Department (PD) is to suggest policies regarding functions of the
Commission. In this regard, the PDD is responsible for conducting research and reperting on national and

International best practices in corporate and capital market matters to the Commission, reviewing existing policies,
and assisting in the development of futute policies.

12.1.2 Management Team
As of the close of the year under review, the PSD was headed by Mr. Muhamimad Ishag Mallal, Director while

the PI) was headed by Syed Fayyaz Mahmud, Director. Both are seasoned professionals having more than thirty
years experience and serve under the direct supervision of the Chairman.

12.1.3 Laws Administered

i.  Chartered Accountants Ordinance, 1961
ii. Credit Rating Companies Rules, 1995

12.2 Performance Review

The PSFD undettook focused assignments required of it to improve the regalatory framework exercised by the
Cormmission and to enhance oversight of professional services.

A summary of these activities is given hereunder.
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12,2,1 Applicability of Islamic Financial Accounting Standards - I “Muyrabaha®

Banks and financial institutions in Pakistan had felt the need for financing different sectors of the economy
through modes in accordance with the Sharizh, In its judgment on Riba, the Shatiah Appellate Bench
of the Supreme Court had directed TCAP to play a proactive role in Islamisation of economy. In compliance
with the said directive, ICAP constituted a Committee on “Accounting and Auditing Standards of Interest-
Free Modes of Financing and Investtnent”, The Committes, after thorough consultation with banks, financial
institutions, and SBPF, developed “Tslamic Financial Accounting Standard on Mutabaha Transactions™ (IFAS-
T}, Thus, Murabaha came out as 4 possible transitory step towards Islamisation of the economy, The Commission
issued SR.O. No, 865, dated 24 Angust 20035, requiring that the IFAS-T wonld be followed in regard to financial
statetnents prepared in the context of histotical cost convention when accounting for Mutabaha ttansactions
undertaken by banks and financial institutons,

12.2.2 Study on Modaraba Sector Performance

A study was carried out to ascertain why Modarabas have not been petforming up to their full potential. The
report and recommendations reparding remedial measures to help revive the instrument of Modaraba was
submitted for further consideration,

12,2,3 Qualifications for Research/Financial Analyst

A study was conducted regatding the role of tesearch/financial analysts in the capital market and qualifications
required for such analysts, Institutions granting certificates to analysts, their requirements, the related code of
ethics/conduct, and the international regulatory framework/licensing requirements for analysts were also
identified,

12.2.4 Basis of Caleulation of Free Reserves for Issue of Bonns Shares

The Capital Issues Rules require retention of part of free reserves while issuing bonus shares, The issue as to
the petod of accounts which should form the basis for the caloulation of free teserves for issuing honus shares
had come up for consideration,

An extensive research was cartied out to asceriain the global practice and the opinion of the PSPD) was provided
to the concetned Department for guidance.

12,.2.5 Research Regarding Tax Incentive for Dividend Declaring Companies

A tresearch study on tax incentives allowed In varicus jurisdictions on dividends declared by companies was
cartied cut. Based on the findings, PSP} ptoposed 2 tax incentive for dividend-paying companies and sent it
to the Central Board of Revenue (CBR). However, the CBR did not agree to the proposal, claiming that
unfeitered discretion should remain with company's management 1o determine the declaration of dividend,
12.2.6 Asset Managers' Code of Professional Conduct

A draft code of conduct for Asset Managers was prepared in accordance with international practices and was
under further consideration in the SCI,
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12.2.7 Resecarch into Mutual Funds

The PSPD carted out research into several factors regarding mutual funds, including fees and expenses, and
disclosures in anaual and interim reports etc. in varicus jurisdictions. A draft working paper containing suggestions
of PSPD pertaining to vadous amendments proposed in the Draft Amendments to NBEC (Establishment and
Repulation) Rules, 2003 along with background research material was made available to the NBFCL) for further
consideration and appropriate necessary action.

12.3 Sector Ovetview

12.3.1 Credit Rating

The coticept of credit rating is recefving increasing importatice it Pakistan. Curtently, two credit rating companies
- Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited and JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited-are funchoning to assign
ratings to entities and instruments.

During the year under review, the credit rating companies Issued 218 ratings for various companies. To streamline
the rating process, the Commission keeps a constant watch over the activities of these companies.

12.3.2 Accountancy Profession

The profession of chattered accountancy in Pakistan is self-regulated by ICAP under the Chartered Accountants
Otrdinance, 1961. As on 30 June 2006, the membership of ICAF was 3,812, of which 828 members were wotking
overseas. During the year under review, ICAP admitted 321 new members. As a SRO, ICAP also takes disciplinary
action against members in cases of negligence or misconduct identified /teported. In order to ensure that the
members of ICAP maintain the hiphest ethical and technical standards, a Quality Contral Review Program
remains in effect by ICAP. ICAP alsc has a Financial Statements Review Program under which a review of
financial statements of listed companies is carried cut.

12.4 Development of Laws

During the reporting period, the Commission provided recommendations to the Government of Pakistan and
(BR to ptovide tax telief and iron cut disctimination among vatious sectors, Most of these tecommendations
wete accepted by the Govetnment, These included:

*  Purther extension in ene-time capital gain tax exempton on corporatdsatdoen of individual stock exchange
membership dll 30 June 2007, Previcusly, it was allewed till 30 June 2006,
*  Equal treatment for TFCs in terms of withholding tax vis-4-vis government securities and National

Saving Schemes.

= Extension in exemption from tax to Venture Capital Companies and Venture Capital Funds tll 30 June
2014.

*  Equal tteatment to loans given by NBFCs as is given to the House Building Finance Cotpotation ot
scheduled banks,

*  Same tax exemption to REITs as is available to similar investment vehicles in case of income from
instruments of redeemable capital.

*  Same tax exemption to REITs segarding minimum tag under Section 113 as available to similar invesoment
vehicles.

= Same tax exemption to REITs regarding advance tax under Section 151 and 233 as available to similar
investment vehicles.

*  ‘Tax ctedit allowed to the employer of the participant whe makes the contribution, This change would
allow companies to offer VPS to their employees, Previously, tax credit was not allowed to employers
wha made contribution on behalf of the participant.
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*  Deduction of withholding tax in case of death ot disability, as admissible on tetitement, has been
abolished in case of payment cut of a VPS.

*  Ezempton hag been allowed to 2b percent of the aceumnlated balance teceived by a participant from
the VP35 offered by the pension fund managers under the VP8 Rules at the time of retitement or at
the dme of disability rendering the individual unable to work or in case of death of the participant
to his nominated survivors.

* ‘Transfer of balance from existing schemes of pensions to VPS would no longet be taxed. Such
provision gives flexibility to the participants in terms of switching funds according to theit objective
and considering the eficlency of the Pension Fand Manager.

The Commission maintzined a continuous dialogue with CBR on the changes it had recommended in order
to further the development of the corporate sector as part of the objective of the Government ta heost the
natonal economy.

12.5 Regulatory Acts

12.5.1 Deferment of Transfer Pricing Requirements

The Fourth Schedule to the Companies Ordinance and the listing repulations of the stock exchanges include
certain provisions with respect to related party transactions and transfer pricing. In view of varied concerns
comimunicated te the Commission from time to time about availability of relevant information for purposes
of measurement and disclosure of related party transactons on arm's length basis and the verificadon of the
sam¢ by auditors of companices, the Commission had set up a task foree to analyze the coneeins of cotporate
scctor and auditors in this regard.

The report of the task force has been received and is under consideration of the Commission. To give full
and objective consideration to recommendations of the task foree, the Commission deferred the application

of clause & of Part I of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Ordinance and listing regulatdons until 30
September 2006 to listed companies and their subsidiarics.

12.6 Monitoring and Enforcement

12.6.1 Compliance with the Code of Conduct for Credit Rating Companies
In order to ensure that credit rating companics were fully compliant with the Code of Conduct, compliance

repotts wete called from them Reports received indicated that their operations were folly compliant with the
Code.

12.7 Developmental Activities

12.7.1 Review of Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996

The Companies {Issuc of Capital) Rules, 1996 were formulated to provide a legal and policy framework for
issuc of shares by companics. Keeping in view the changed business environment and the present day needs,
PSP} finalised the new rules during the reporting petiod. The Rules are under consideration of a legal committee
before the approval of Commission.
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12,7.2 Development of Underwriters (Registration and Regulation) Rules

A review of the Balloters, Transfer Agents and Underwriters Rules, 2001 was carried out by PSPD in order to
improve the tegulatory framework governing the wotking of these important intermediaries of the capital matket,
As a result of this review, it was felt that separate rules needed to be developed for underwriters, transfer agents
and ballotets in otder to ensure effective tegulation of these service providets,

As a first step, new rules for underwriters were developed which, interalia, included underwiiting by nutual funds,
The draft Rules wete discussed and referred to the SMD for necessaty action.

12.7.3 Standard Operating Procedure for Grant of No-objection to form NBFC

Sub-section (1) of Section 282C of the Companies Ordinance provides that a NBFC cannot he incorporated
without priot approval of the Commission, & pre-requisite to undertaking a NBFC business, It was itnperative
that applications seeking permission to form NBFC were examined in a professional and standardized manner,
so that little scrutiny was required for the next stage of pranting of license, The Standard Operating Procedure
for examination of applications for formation of NBFCs was drafted and sent to the NBFCD for further
comments and action,

12,7.4 Guidelines for Calculation of Swap Ratio for Companies Contemplating Mergers

The PD developed guidelines for calculation of swap fatic on merger of companies. Consultation on the
guidelines with various Departments was in progress at the end of the reporting period.

12.7.5 Report on Observance of Standards and Codes - Accounting and Auditing

The World Bank and International Monetary Fund had conducted a study on the request of Government of
Pakistan for analysing the accounting, auditing and financial tegime of public interest corporate entities in Pakistan,
in consultation with different stakeholders, They shared their views and international hest practices with the
Cemtnission, Boatrd of Investment, ICAP, Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan and SBR.
The recommendations made by the World Bank were discussed in a wotkshop where stakeholders, including
the Commission, shared their views,

12,76 Minimum Disclosure Standards for Offering Document for Mutual Funds

It was noted that mutual funds were using different templates in preparing offering documents, Investors would
he greatly facilitated if they could compare similar information for purpese of analysis, decision making, and
investment,

Standardisation of offering docutments was undettaken by PSPD to establish minfrum disclosure standards for

the offering documents of mutual funds., This would not only help individual investors, but also the
teviewing/approving officets in the Commission, as well as set a benchmark for the industry,
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Table 1: Disposal of Complaints, Petitions and Appeals (1 July 2005 — 30 June 2006}

Receipts Brought Forward Received | Total Disposed Off | Outstanding
Complaints 236 2,571 2,807 2,618 189
Appeals 9 100 109 21 88
Ministry references o 126 1246 126 0
Enquiries 4 572 572 572 0

Table 2: Detail of Complaints Handled During The Year Under Review

Watyre of Complaints Brought Forward | Beceived | Total | IHeposed DH | Qutstanding
Nen-transfer/receipt and issue of duplicats shares 34 1,328 1352 1,336 25
Wrong deduction of Zakat 1 26 27 26 1
Short-payment, noo-receipt of dividend 18 685 703 590 1%
Non-receipt of annual and half yearly accounts 1 47 48 47 1
Complaints ageinst brokers 144 187 33 201 130
Misccllancous 38 298 336 318 18
Total 236 2,5M | 3807 2,618 189

Table 3: Number and Type of Companies

‘Type of Compani —
e anies
g 2006 2005

Companies limited by shares:
Public listed 613 612
Public unlisted 2178 2,145
Private 45,928 41,320
Single member companics 436 242
Total 49,155 44,319

Companies limited by guarantee under Section 43: 62 56
Associations fiot-for-profit under Section 42 341 286
Trade organizations 181 176
Foreigh comparries 653 606
Private companics with unlimited liability* 2 2
Public companies with unlimited Liability 3 3
Companies under Section 503 of the Companies Ordinance 4 4

Total Companies 50,401 45,452

* Only five companies were registered as unlimited liability companies; of these, three were working in the power
genetaiion sector while two wete classified in miscellaneous sectors,
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Table 4: Capitalisation Breakdewn

[
Paid-up Capital (Rs. 000) | Listed Unlisted Private Single Total Percentage o
Companies Public Companies | Meinber Increase in o
Cotnpanies Companies | 2006 2005 FY 2006 Z
Up to 100 1 478 22,832 278 23,589 | 22,139 6.5 L
From 100 to 500 1 352 6,959 81 7393 6779 31 (08
From 500 ta 1,000 102 4,077 29 4208 3555 184
From 1,000 to 10,000 36 135 9,391 30 9792 8,088 21.1 =
From 10,000 te 100,000 243 653 2,393 17 3 3022 2.6 <
From 100,000 to 500,000 234 203 241 678 575 17.9
From 500,000 to 1,000,000 7 25 19 1 8 T 155 =
Ovwer 1,000,000 61 30 11 102 %0 13.3 =
Total | 49,135 | 44,313 z
Table 5: List of Cases Approved under the Companies Ordinance and Rules and Regulations
made thereunder
Rilewaor Saction:af the Wi o isovl/Petilishin: Sought No. of Cast?s Disposed Off
Companies Ordinance Regisitation | Enfotcement
ot Regulation Department | Department
Section 21 Amendment in memotandum and 21 0
atticles of association
Section 24{3) Extension in time for filing the documents 3 0
on confitmation of alteration
Section 37 Availability of name 13,907 0
Section 39 Change of name 137 0
Section 42 Grant of license to associations 63 0
Section 44 Conversicn  of public companies into 10 0
private companies
Section 86 Further issue of capital 4 11
Sections 121,129,132 Registration, modification and satisfaction 6,075
of chatge
Section 131 Condenation of delay in submission of 11 0
particulars of charge
Section 146 Commencement of business certificate 55 0
Section 156 Extension in pericd of filing anmyal remrn 5
Sections 158(1), 233 Extenision in peticd for holding of AGMs 62 16
Sections 158(2) Holding of AGM at any other place than 0 4
the registered office of the company
Section 159(7) Holding of an EOGM at a shorter notice 1 0
Section170 Calling of owrdue meetings 15 ]
Section 195 Grant of leans to directots 4 B
Section 233 Prepamation of first accounts exceeding 2 0
twelve months
Section 237 Exemption for consolidation of accounts 5 12
Section 245 Approval of placing of guarterly accounts 0 47
on website of companies
Securities and Exchangs Commission of Pakistan 12
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i No. of Cases Di d O4f
b= T Narure of Approval/Permission Sought i Heg FRNe
Companies Ordinance ;
o oo g Registration | Enforcement
O Department | Departmett
$ Section 251(2) Withholding or defer payment of dividend 0 2
o Section 252 Appointment of auditors 1 0
Section 258 Approval of appointment of cost auditor 65 53
Section 439(% Restoraton of name of company to the 4 ]
register of companies
Section 466(5) Issue of certified copies of documents 31,181 ¢
Ruie 5, 6,8 read with Rule 100 Grant of relazation from issuance of shares 1 9

of the Companies (Issue of for consideration other than cash

Capital) Rules, 1996

Rule 5 of the Companies Issuance of different classes and kinds of 2 ¢
Share Capital (Variation in capital

Rights and Privileges) Rules,

ANNUAL

2000

Section 90 read with Issuance of more different kind of share 3 5
Companies Share Capital capital having different rights and privileges

{Vanaticn in Rights and

Privileges) Rules, 2000

Regulation 18 of the Inspection of records maintained with 8,982 0
Companies {Registration CROs

Offices) Regulatons, 2003.
Miscellaneous (minor activites, providing 37,400 0
information te different agences and
shareholders, etc.}
Clause (xlvii) of the Code of Relaxation of condition regarding statement 0 ot
Cotporate Governance of ethics - citculation of a “Statement of
Eithics and Pusiness Practices”.

Total 98,226 168
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‘Table 12: New Licenses Issued by NBFC During the Year

Name of Company

Escorts Investment Bank Limited

Pakistan Industtizl and Commercial Leasing
Al-Meezan Investment Management Limited
ABAMCO Limired

Escorts Investment Bank Limited

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited

AKD Investment Management Limited
Alliance Investment Management Limited
AMZ, Asset Management Limited

Askari Investment Management Limited

BMA Capital Management Limited
First International Capital Management Limited

HBL Asset Management Limited

HABIB Asset Management Limited

KASB Funds Limited

MCB Asset Management Company Limited
National Asset Management Limited

National Fullerton Asset Management Limited
Noman Abid Investment Management Limited

NBP Capital Limited
PICIC Asset Management Company Limited
WE Investment Management Limited

Securltles and Exchange Commlisslon of Paklstan

Nature of Business

Leasing
Leasing

Investment Banking

Investment Banking

Housing Finance

Housing Finance

Asset Management Services License
Investment Advisory License

Asset Management Services License
Investment Advisory License/
Asset Management Services License
Asset Management Services License
Investment Advisary License/
Asset Management Services License
Investment Advisory License/
Asset Management Services License
Asset Management Services License
Asset Management Services License
Asset Management Services License
Investment Advisory License/
Asset Management Services License
Asset Management Services License
Investtment Advisory License/
Asset Management Services License
Asset Management Services License
Asset Management Services Iicense
Investment Advisory License
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Table 13: Renewal of Licenses of NBFCs

Name of Company

SME Leasing Limited

Netwotk Leasing Corporation Litnited
Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Lid.

Grays Leasing Limited

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited
Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited

Union Leasing Limited

NBP Capital

Trust Leasing and Investment Bank Limited
Crescent Leasing Corporation Limited
First Dawood Investment Bank Limited

First International Investment Bank Limited
Secutity Leasing Cotporation Limited
Crescent Standard Investment Banl Limited
Security Investment Bank Limited

Escorts Invesmment Bank Limited

Jabangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited
First Credit and Investment Bank Timited
AKD Investment Management Limited

AMYZ Asset Management Limited
Intersecurities Management Limited

KASB Funds Limited

PICIC Asset Management Company Limited
Safeway Management Limited

First Capital Investment Limited

ABAMCO Limited

Al Meezan Investment Manapgement Limited
Arif Habib Investment Management Limited
Atlas Asset Management Limited

Al Falah GHP Investment Management
BMA Asset Management FLimited

Crosby Asset Management {Pakistan) Limited
Dawood Capital Management Limived

Faysal Asset Management Limited

UBL Fund Managers Limited

National Investment Trust Limited

Asian Housing Finance Limired
Internatienal Housing Finance Limited
AMYZ Ventures Limited

TMT Venture Limited

TRG Pakistan Limited

Nature of Business

Leasing

Leasing

Leasing

Leasing, Discount Services

Leasing, Investment Finance Setvices
Leasing, Investment Finance Services
Leasing, Investment finance Services, Housing
Finance Setvices

Leasing, Investment Finance Services
Leasing, Housing finance Setvices
Leasing, Investrnent Finatice Services
Investment Finance Services
Investment Finance Services
Investment Finance Services
Inyestment Finance Services
Investment Adwisory

Investment Adwisory

Investment Advisory

Investment Advisory

Investment Advisory

Investment Adwisory

Investment Advisory

Inwestment Advisory/Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/Asset Management Setvices
Investment Advisory/Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/ Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/ Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/Asset Management Services
Investment Advisory/Asset Management Services
Asset Management Services

Housing Finance Services

Housing Finance Services

Venture Capiral

Venture Capital

Venture Capital
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Table 14: Licences of NBFCs Not Renewed

Paldstan Industrial &
Commercial Leasing

Crescent Leasing
Corpotation Limited
J& Abamco Limited

JP Mongan Pakistan
Limited

International Asset
Management

Leasing licence granted in 2006 was not renewed in 2007 due to non fulfillment of
conditions of licence and minimum equity requirements

IFS licence granted in 2005 was not renewed in 2006 due to the Commissions
decision that sitnilar group companies can ot have similar Ecences

J5 ABAMCO wide lemter dated June 20, 2006 withdrawn the licences for
undertaking the business Leasing, Venture Capital and Housing Finance

JP Monpgan Pakistan Limited's Investment Advisory license had expired on
4 January 2006 which was not renewed in subsequent year as the company
infotrmed that they no longer intend to undertake investment advisory activity
in Pakistan. Their file was closed we.f 15 May 2006

Intetnational Asset Management Company Limited's Investment Advisory
license had expired on 11 August 2004 which was not renewed as the company
failed to meet minimum equity requirement at the time of renewal of license in
the subsequent year, Moreover Commission in its 30th meeting of 2005 has
decided that only one license will be issued in a Group to undertake any of the
activities given in the NBFC Rules. The license was also not rencwed for the

1eason that two of its two other group companies{Asian and Safeway) were having
IA license

Table 15: Authorisations issued by Registrar (Modatabas)

S whe

Narne of Modaraba Name of Modaraba Managernent Comparry
First Treet Manufacturing Modaraba Global Econo Trade (Pvt.)} Limited
Total Modaraba Total Hospitality Management (Pwvt.) Limited
Allied Rental Modaraba Allied Engineering Management Company
Modataba Al-Souk ]S Finance Limited
Medaraba Al-Makatb JS Finance Limited
Madaraba Al-Tameer J5 Finance Timited
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Table 16: Show Cause Notices Issued to NBFCa

Show cause notices to the auditors, CEQ and CFO of Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited
for failute to bting cut matetial facts about the affairs of the company in their andit report; for not
keeping proper books of accounts of the company, investment in real estate, etc.; and for not keeping
proper books of accounts of the company, investment in real estate, etc,

Show cause notice to Lease Pak Limited for failure to carry out business inaccordance with the
requirements of the law

Show cause notice to Odx Investment Bank Limited for making investment in equities in excess of its
liquid net worth,

Show cause notice to National Asset Leasing for viclation of certain requirements of the regulations.

Show cause notice to the auditors of Islamic Investment Bank Limited for failure to attend to their
duties.

Show cause notice to Natover Lease for violation of investment limits for leasing business.

Show cause notice to Investec Mutual Fund and its ditrectors since the fund was being managed by an
unlicensed Investment Adviser since 31 Decermber 2003 and certain other violatens.

Show cause notices to Arif Habib Investment Management Limited and its directors as quarterly
accounts of the company for period ended 31 Drecember 2004 had revealed a negative net capital
balance contraty to provisions of clause (a) of Rule 33 of the NBFC Rules and viclation of
investment lirmits,

Show cause notice to Prudential Stocks Fund Limited for failure to taise its capital to Rs, 100 million
and Inahility to fulfil other regulatory requirements.

Show cause notice to Trl- Star Mutual Fund Limited through its CEO since the Fund was being
manaped by an unlicensed Investment Adviser since 31 December 2003 and inability to meet other

regulatory requiretments.

Show cause notice to Asian Stocks Fund Limited and its directors for investment of an amount
exceeding 10 percent of the paid up capital of the investee companies in contravention of Rule 49 (3}
of the NBFC Rules; and for violation of investment limits as defined in Rule 49 (3) and 49 (4) of the
NBFC Rales.

Show cause notice to ABAMCO Limited and its directots since transactons made by ABAMCO
Limited and its officers in respect of its funds were considered contrary to the interest of the
certificate /unit holders and in violation of its obligations stipulated in cermin rules.

Show cause notice to TRG Pakistan Limited and its directots for non-holding of AGM for the year
ended 30 June 2005.

Show cause notice to Safeway Mutual Fund Limited and its directors for violation of investment
limits as defined in Rule 49 {3) and 49 (4) of the NBFC Rules.

Show cause notice to Safeway Fund Limited as Crescent Standard Business Management had
transferred 100 percent of its shareholding in Safeway Pund without approval of the Commission, in
contravention of Rule 72{c) of the NBFC Rules.

Show canse notice to Asian Capital Management Limited as Crescent Standard Business Management
had transferred 190 percent of its shareholding in Asian Capital Management Limited without
approval of the Commission in contravention of Rule 72 (¢} of the NBFC Rules.
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Table 17: Details of Life and Non-Life Insurance (Rs. in million)

Premivm Claims Asscts Lighilities
2006 | 2005 | % Imcrease | 2004 | 2005 | % Increase | 2004 | 2005 | Y Increase | 2004 | 2005 | % Imcrease

Life 14,583 18,552 21.22 5180 | 9,114 142 123,900 | 142,238 1487 | 122,011 | 140204 14.91
NoolHe | 22079 27615 2507 | LL089 | 12,004 825 43468 | 54,133 24.54 25670 | 3,421 18,51
Totl | 36662 46,167 2595 | 19269 | 21118 u6 | 167,368 | 196461 1738 | 147,681 | 170,625 15.54
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Table 18: Major Cases Handled by Legal Depattment

Title of Case

C.E. No. 1388 of 2006: 8iddiq Mot vs 8ECP and others

W.E No. 188 of 2006: Muhammad Khalid vs SECP and
othets

Sunit No. 49/1/1999: Zafar Moti vs LSE and others

Appeal No. 946 of 2005: SECP vs First Capital Securities
Corporation Litnited and others

Cominercial Appeal No. 9/2004: Lahote Stock Exchange
vs SECP and Pakistan National Shipping Corporation

Intra-Coutt Appeal No. 7 of 2005: SECP vs Prudential
Investment Bank I imited

Civil Suit No. 480 of 2006: Taher Moochala & Co. vs
SECP and others

Wit Petition No. 1842 of 2005: Ashraf Sugar Mills Limited
ws SECP and others

Description

Civil Petition for leave to appeal under Article 185(3)
of the Constitution of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan,
1973 (the Constitrtion) against the order of the Lahore
High Ceurt, Rawalpindi Bench, Rawalpindi in
Commercial Appeal No. 3/2001.

Writ Petition under Article 199 of the Constitution
before the Lahore High Court, Lahote against the
Commission’s letrer dated 25 January 2006 in which it
advised the petitioner to direct his complaint to the
LSE {being the relevant forumy).

Suit for declaration with consequential relief under
Rules 1 and 2 of Order 39, read with Secdon 151 of
the Civil Procedute Code, before the Civil Coutt
Lahore, regarding the impugned order dated 24 June
1997 paszed by the then Corporate Law Authority.

Appeal from the judgment and decree of the Lahore
High Court, Lahote before the Supreme Court of
Pakistan regarding the interpretation of Section 224
of the Companies Ordinance.

Appeal under Section 34 of the SECP Act, against the
Commission’s decision to de-list the Paldstan National
Shipping Corporation from LSE and ISE, before the
Lahore High Coutt, Lahore. The Court set aside the
decision of the Commission. The Commission is to
file an sppeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

The Commission filed a petition for the winding up
of Prudential Investment Bank Limited (PIBL) before
the Lahore High Court, Rawelpindi Bench, Rawalpindi.
PIBL filed a revival plan which was accepted by the
Court and the winding up petition was dismissed. ‘The
Cominission has filed an intra-countt appeal against the
dismissal of the winding up petition before the Division
Bench.

The suit has been filed before the Sindh High Court,
Karachi against the list of approved auditors for
performing the audit of modaraba and insurance

companies.

A it petition was flled before the Lahore High Court,
Bawalpindi Bench, Rawalpindi against a show cause
notice issued by the Commission. On 26 April 2000,
the Court decided in favour of the Commission. It
held that the Court was an appellate forum against an
order of the Appellate Bench of the Commission and
therefore, the petitioner should have first filed an appeal
before the Appellate Bench.
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Table 19: Professionals Inducted During FY 2005-2006
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Designation 30 June | Induction Outgoing 30 June
2005 Employees 2006

Cominissioner 5 1 3 3

Adviser 2 1] D 2

Executive Director 3 2 2 3

Director 16 3 1 18
Joint Ditector 17 9 8 18 —!
Deputy Ditector 35 7 5 37 =X
Assistant Director 43 10 10 43 =
Junict Executive 26 9 0 35 =
Total 148 54 43 159 =
=,
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Abbreviations and Acronyms

ADB Asian Development Bank

AGM Annunal General Meeting

ALICO American Life Insurance Company

AML Anti-money Laundering

APCRF Asia Pacific Corporate Registers Forum
APG Asia/Pacific Group on Money Laundering
CA Chartered Accountant

CBR Central Boatd of Revenue

cDC Central Diepository Company of Pakistan Limited
CDxSs Central Depository System

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFS Continuous Funding System

CFT Countering the Financing of Terrotism
CGAML Consultative Group on Anti-money Laundering
CIS Collective Investment Scheme

CIWw Capital Issues Wing

CLA Corporate Law Authority

CLD Company Law Division

CMA Cost and Management Accountant

COD Certificate of Deposit

COl Certificate of Investment

Companies Ordinance Companies Ordinance, 1984

COT Catty-ovet Trading

CRO Company Registration Office

Cs Chaitman's Secretariat

DFI Dievelopment Finance Institution
EGD Electronic Government Directorate
FiU Fraud Investigation Unit

EMC Emerging Markets Committee
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FMGP
FRU

IAIS

ICAP
ICMAP
10w
D

1DF

Insurance Ordinance
IOPS

1G5CO

IPCG

ISE

IT

JEIS

KSE.

KSE-100 Index

LSE

METRO

MIS

MMC

Maodaraba Ordinance

Maodaraba Rules
Mal
MSW

Financial (non-hank}) Markets and Govetnance Program
Foreign Relations Unit

Financial Year

International Association of Insurance Supervisors
Insutance Assodation of Pakistan

International Accounting Standard

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan
Investor Complaint Wing

Insurance Department

Institutional Deselopment Fund

International Monetary Fund

Insurance Ordinance, 2000

International Organization of Pension Supervisors
International Organization of Securities Commissions
Initdal Public Offering

Information Systems and Technology

Islamabad Stock Exchange

Information Technology

Junior Exzecutive Induction Scherme

Kartachi Stock Exchange

Karachi Stack Exchange 100 Shares Index

Legal Department

Lahore Stock Exchange

Metropolitan Life Assurance Company of Pakistan Limited
Management Information System

Modaraba Management Company

Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floataden and Control
Ordinance), 1980

Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981
Memorandum of Understanding
Monitoring and Surveillance Wing

Securitias and Exchangs Commission of Pakistan
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NAB

NAV

NBFC
NBFCD
NBFC Rules

NCCPL
NCEL
NIT
OT1C
Policy Board
PRCL
PSPD
REIT
ROSC
SAARC
SASRF
SBP
8CD
SECP Act
SMC
SMD
EME
SMEDA
SOE
SPV
SRO
85D

TA

Takeower Ordinance

National Accountahility Bureau

Net Asset Value

Non-banking Finance Company

Non-banking Finance Companies Departoment

Neon-banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation) Rules, 2003

Non-bank Financial Institution

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
National Comodity Exchange Litnited

National Investinent Trust

Over-the-counter

Securities and Exchange Policy Board

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited
Professional Setvices and Policy Division

Beal Estate Investment Truast

Reports on the Observance of Standards and Codes
South Asian Associaton for Regional Cooperation
South Asian Securities Regulators Forum

State Bank of Pakistan

Specialized Companies Division

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1957
Single Mernber Company

Securities Market Division

Small and Medivm Enterprise

Small ahd Medium Enterptises Development Authotity
State-vwned Enterprise

Special Purpose Vehicle

Self-regulatory Organization

Support Services Division

Technieal Assistance

Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisidon of Voting Shares
and Takeovers) Crdinance, 2002
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The Commission
UK
VaRk

VES Rules
W33

Term Finance Certificate

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
United Kingdom

Value at Risk

Voluntaty Pension System

Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005

Working Group-3

Securities and Exchanges Commission of Pakistan
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Annexure B

Management Directory

Headquarter Office Islamabad
PABX: +92-051-9207091-94

Name

Razi-ne-Rabivan Khan
Saltan Ali Shailsh
Raghid I, Malik

Abdul Rehman Croteshi

D, Mutedas Ahtoed
Hashtni

Jaoyed Biddicui
Mansur Ahsan

Nazit A Shabeen
Alif Samed

Atshad Javed Minhas
Tahir Mahmood
Zafar Abdullah
Payyaz Mahtnod
Abhar Shah

Muhamimad Siddique
Muhammad Naveed
Chaudhry

AL Aveem Thram
Tariq Bakhtwwar

Hizbullah Siddigui

Iroran Inayat Batt
Rashid 5. Paracha
Umer Hayat Khan
Asif Jalal Bhatti
Muhammad Afzal
Bilal Rasul
Wascern Irshad

Chandhry Imtiaz Huossain

Bushra Aslarn
Abid Huseain
Hasnat Ahmad
Ashraf Tiwana

Deaignation
Chaittnan
Commissionet (SCD)
Commissipner ({CLI and SMI)
Advisot te Cornmission

Advizor (Insutance]

Exeeutive Directr (880}
Exerutive Director (HE)

Registar of Companics

Exenutive Dirsctor (SCD}

Tixccutive Ditcctor (J5&T}

Tizecutive Ditector (Boforcement)

Tixccutive Ditcctot (3MD)

Diitertar (Chairinan's Sectetariaf)

Additional Registrar

Additional Registrar (Regdstration Departraent
Director (CTI)

Director (Enforcement}

Directar (Finfarcament and FIU}
Dircetor (Complaints Wing/Brokers,
Regisuation and Inspecton)
Dircctor (MSW)

Ditectot (Commedity Brchenge)
Dircctor (NBFC-T)

Director (Monitoring and Inspection — NBEC)
Dirceror (NBFC-IT}

Repistrar Moderaba

Dircetor (Administration)

Ditector

Ditectar

Directot (Bnforcement)

Dircetor (Pension)

Repisirat {Appelate Bench}

Sacurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Email Address

chairmani@secp govpk
salinan shaikh@seep.zovpk
rashid soalik@secp govpk
tehtoan. qutcshi@sccp.govpk
tmmtsz hasni@sep govpl

javed sddiqui@secp.gev.pk
mansur ahsani@secp govpk
nasitshaheen@scep govpk
akif saced(@secp gov.pk
atshad.minhas@scep.gowpk
tahir. rahmood @sccpgovpk
abdullah zafat@sccp.zavpk
fayyazmmahvud{@recy govple
skbarshah@scep.govpk.

twhamimad fddique@seep georpk

muhammad naveedfllsecpgonpk

alisreem{fllsecp.gowpk
tatic bakhizwar@scop govphk
hizbellah siddiquig@scep. govpk

imran. butt@scop.gowpk
rashid. pitacha{@sccp govpl.
omachapati@scepgovpk

asif jalal@iizecpgowpl
muhamniad afzal{@sccp. govpk
bilaLrasuli@secpgovpk
wmscern.irshad{@sccp.gov.pk
imtiaz hussain @secp povpk
abid hussaini@lsecpgovpl
hasnarahmad@scepgovpk
ashtaf. twana/@scopgov.pk

Telephone
Number
+92-51-5204841
+92-51-9206513
+92-51-0222771
+02-51-9202692
+92-51-9209985

+92-51-9206003
+92-51-92060114
+92-51-9206306
+92-31-9212084
+92-31-9212103
+92-51-9207598
+92-21-92175%
+92-31-9207a48
+92-31-9230208
+92-31-9231207
+92-51-9230099

+492-51-9205588
+92-51-9209707

+92-51-9206317

+92-51-9225224
+92-51-92257224
+92-51-9210211
+92.51.9218597
+92-51-9212050
+92.51.9212070
+92-51-9205713

+92-31-92103302
+92-51-9221513
+92-531-9200921
+92-51-8206011
+02-51-9200514
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Regional Offices/Company Registration Offices

Namae

D Mumtaw A, Hashimi

Zafur Ahdullah

Livvrars Tebal Panjwani

Jawed Hussain

Ahmad Muzammil
Muhammad Mushareaf Khao
Zahoor Ahmed

Mudassar Rahim

Lizqat Ali Dola

Kashif Mchmood

Tftkhar Nagv

18| securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Designation

Advisot {Insvtance) Karachi

EBxeadive Direcor (SMD)} Karachi

Ditector (SMDY) Karachi
Additional Registrar Karachs
Additional Registrar Lahore
Additional Registrar Islamabad
Juint Registrar Faisalabad
Joint Registrar Peshawar

Joint Reglatrar Multan
Assistant Registrar Quetta
Aspistent Registrar Sukkuar

Email Address

mwntaz hashmiEeecppovpk

irnraniqbal@secp.gernpk
javed husssin@isecp.gowpk
amuzammiliGsecp.govpk
rusharrafkhani@sccpgov.pk
rmudassar rahim@sccp.govpk
liagat.dola@sccp. gowpk
kashif mahmoodiflscep.govpk
iftikharhasan@sccpgowpk

Telephone
Number

+92-021-9213275
+082-051-9209985

+92-(121-9217598
+92-021-9217598
+92-021-9213272
+92-042-9200274
+82-051-9208740
+92-041-9220284
+52-091-9213178
+52-051-9200920
+92-081-2844136
+82-071-5633787
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Annexure C

List of Publications
Availahle on SECP Website: wwwasecp.govpk
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Investor Guide Volume 1

Investor Guide Volume 2

Investors Guide to Lodging Complaints

Frequenty Asked Questions on Cotporate Governance

Insurance Guide

ANNUAL

Promoters Guide (English)

Promoters Guide (Urdu)

Promoters Guide (Chinese)

Promoters Guide (Arabic)

Manual on Corporate Governance

Directors and Secretaries Guide

Guide on Accounts and Accounting Reference Dates
Single Member Companies Guide

Company Mortgages and Chatges Guide

Guide on Investigation into the Affairs of a Company
Corversion of Status of Companies Guide

Winding up of Companics Guide

Directors and Secretaries Guide

Sharcholder’s Rights Guide

Foreign Companies Guide
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